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Chairman and CEO’s Statement
TERESENTERS

2016 was an extraordinary year for the whole world. Internationally,
frequent occurences of Black Swan events such as Brexit and
Donald Trump’s victory in the U.S. presidential election, would
have a profound effect on elections of other European countries
during this year. The increase of interest rate by the U.S. Federal
Reserve and the reduction of oil production will continue to impact
the financial market. In Asia, Ms. Tsai Ing-wen was elected the
President of Taiwan and Mr. Rodrigo Duterte took office in the
Philippines, adding uncertainties to the Asian economic and
political arena.

According to the data from the National Bureau of Statistics,
China’'s GDP growth rate was 6.7% in 2016. Weak export
figures, over-capacity, tightening of control over real estate,
RMB depreciation and ongoing anti-corruption campaigns made
corporations’ investments plus personal consumption more
prudent and rational. In the meantime, growth of the service sector
stood at 7.8%, outperformed the overall GDP growth, reflecting
the government’s efforts in stimulating domestic consumption and
structurally improving the adjustment in consumption and services
sector.
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As an international city, Hong Kong's economy has always
been closely related to the world and specifically impacted by
the Chinese economy. The depreciation of RMB, continued
slowdown in real estate investment, the decrease in the number
of free individual travellers, and the threat brought forward by
e-commerce, WeChat commerce, and overseas purchasing agent,
all create challenges to the traditional retail industry.

Nevertheless, the Group has gradually built a solid foundation
after its two years of successful transformation. Maximizing its
competitive advantages, the Group is making forward move amidst
the fast changing environment.

REVIEW

A) TRAVEL RETAIL

1)  Outlet malls

Shenyang Park Outlet has been improving its
operational efficiency through strengthening its
management and upgrading its product mix over the
past few years. The results are steadily improving.

Building on a solid foundation, the Group introduced a
new concept of outlet mall at the end of last year and
took the lead in establishing the first community mall in
Chongging.

2)  Duty-free business

The tense cross-strait relations resulted in a decreasing
number of mainland visitors to Taiwan, thus adversely
affecting the duty-free business of the Group in
Kinmen. However, the Group is actively pursuing
different strategies to expand product categories,
including taxable and duty-free goods, strengthening
local procurement and management to boost
efficiency.
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Chairman and CEO’s Statement
TEREENTERS

B)

C)

D)

SPORTS BRANDS

1) PONY

The development of the licensing business has
made steady progress and the Group will continue
to proactively expand its branding business to
Europe, South America, the Middle East and Asia.
Simultaneously, the Group will also optimize its
marketing strategy and upgrade the brand image.

2) Speedo

Due to the changes in global strategy at Speedo
headquarter, the Group has officially ended its
cooperation with Speedo at the end of last year.

FINANCIAL INVESTMENT

Financial Services

In spite of unstable economic factors, the Group
implemented a more robust strategy last year, adopting more
prudent approach in lending and mortgage activities while
maintaining an overall business direction of profiteering in
stability.

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

Our investment properties such as Junefield Plaza in Beijing
and Island Place in Hong Kong continued to generate return
to the Group through increased rental income and asset
value appreciation.

The Group is pleased to achieve positive development through

timely adjustment to a difficult and complex business environment

in 2016. The Group remains confident that it could enhance

business results through the experience and efforts of the

management.
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OUTLOOK

A)

TRAVEL RETAIL

1)

2)

Outlets

The Group’s direction in 2017 is to maintain its
foothold in China and at the same time expand into
Asia. In travel retail, the Group is in active negotiation
with international partners to develop more outlet malls
in Asia such as Vietnam and Indonesia. In China, The
Group is proactively discussing with a renowned listed
company regarding the development of the Group’s
flagship outlet mall in Xiamen. The target opening date
of this Xiamen flagship outlet is in October 2018. Given
Xiamen's high living standard and as a tourist-heavy
city, the opening of a flagship outlet marks another
milestone for the Group.

Simultaneously, the Henan CITS Anyang City Park
Outlet is scheduled to start operation in the second
quarter of 2017, sharing management resources with
Shenyang outlet thereby creating synergistic effect.

In addition, the community mall model will expand into
Guangzhou and other strategic cities. The Group aims
to upgrade the current mall portfolio.

Duty free

For duty free business, the Group will fine-tune its
business model responding to market conditions while
strengthening its cooperation with strategic partners.
Apart from Kinmen, the Group is in active discussion
with potential international duty-free operators to
extend our business to other countries.

R
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Chairman and CEO’s Statement

ITERESENTERS
B) BRANDS
1) International brands

(0]

8

2)

Apart from our current brands, the Group has
successfully acquired the distribution rights of a
renowned international brand, not only to enrich the
Group’s brand portfolio but also to generate business
for its outlet malls at the same time.

Sports Brands

Due to the market recognition of the operating team'’s
experience in running swimming brands, the Group
has reached an agreement with Arena Japan to
start a joint-venture in Shanghai for developing the
brand’s business in China. Operations have officially
commenced in 2017.

The Group is currently working with Arena’s parent
company Descente to develop Arena’s China business
hoping to make Arena the leading brand utilizing
the opportunity made possible by the 2020 Tokyo
Olympics. The Group is also reviewing with Descente
non-Arena related business prospects.

In addition to continuous expansion into current
licensing business in Japan, Korea and Europe and
South America, ongoing efforts will be devoted towards
enhancing PONY brand image.

FINANCIAL SERVICES

With respect to the financial services business, the Group

is actively negotiating with a potential strategic partner for

consolidation, providing more services to its clients in an

efficient manner while enhancing the investment return to

the Group.
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D) E-COMMERCE

Regarding e-commerce, the Group is in the final stage of
implementing a collaboration plan with an e-commerce
partner in the beginning of 2017 to go with the times in
the “Internet Plus” era and explore the e-commerce retail
business opportunity, while leveraging the synergistic effect
of the e-commerce platform to introduce a distributing
channel with full potential for both its joint venture with brand
partners or its role as distributor for renowned brands.

Conclusively speaking, the Group will continue to fine-tune the
concept of travel retail, create more results while perfecting
the structure. By continuing to strengthen its existing role both
as a joint venture partner and brand distributor, the Group will
progressively explore new branding opportunities so as to maximize
branding effect and the economies of scale. The Group will
continue develop the financial services business to generate profits.
A formal dividend policy of the Company will be formulated and
published by the Board in due course. The Group will continue
to generate profits, hoping to create a highly adaptable, pressure
resistant and sustainable business environment.

APPRECIATION

| would take this opportunity to thank my fellow directors, our staff
and stakeholders for their continuous support and contributions
to the Group. | hope that in the midst of the complex business
environment of 2017, management and all my colleagues will
continue to make concerted efforts to support each other and
contribute to the business and performance of the Group.
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Operation Review
E A

The Group's turnover for the year ended 31 December 2016
of approximately HKD363.9 million was comparable to that of
approximately HKD351.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2015. The gross margin remained stable at 74.7% and 75.6%
respectively for the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015. The
decrease in turnover of the Retailing and sourcing and Outlet malls
segments was compensated by the better than expected business
volume of the Financial services, Duty free, Branding and Property
investment and holding segments.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group had a one
off net gain of HKD194 million from the disposal of the trademarks
and intellectual property relating to the “PONY” brand in the
United States of America, Mexico and Canada. Similar transaction
did not take place in the year ended 31 December 2016. As
a result, the profit attributable to the owners of the Company
decreased by 84.7%, from HKD180.8 million to HKD27.7 million.
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Operation Review
K5OI

The Group’s non-current assets have increased from HKD2,266.7
million to HKD2,353.6 million mainly due to the combined effect
of investment in joint ventures and the utilization of deferred tax
assets. In addition, the Group's current assets decreased from
HKD1,457.9 million to HKD1,041.6 million mainly due to the
decrease in the year end outstanding loan amount from HKD629.2
million to HKD333.8 million under the money lending operation of
the Financial services segment.

MARKET INFORMATION

During the vyear, sales to the People’s Republic of China, Hong
Kong, Taiwan and other Asian countries comprised 96.5% (2015:
99.5%) of the total sales with the remaining 3.5% (2015: 0.5%)
shared between United States of America and other countries.

REBZIERBEER22667ABETEME
2353 6B BB TEHRKRENRGELERK
FIELRIBZ R A BE - WIN REEZ RBE
ER1A579BEETL TEEL4l6AEET =
EHNFESRBREEB THRELSEZREER
H629.2H & /87T NEE333.8F&BIT-

L]

FR-PEARANR FE AERAEMD
B 2R B 35 & BE (5 483K & $896.5% (20155 :
99.5% ) * MR~ HI3.5% (20154 :0.5% ) Bk &

HUEEHRAS
2016 FE WS 1 3



Operation Review
ES G

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had bank balances and
cash of HKD328,468,000 (2015: HKD470,025,000). The Group
was offered banking facilities amounting to HKD719,491,000
(2015: HKD737,251,000). As at 31 December 2016, the Group
obtained bank borrowings in the amount of HKD719,491,000
(2015: HKD737,251,000). The Group has variable interest rate
bank loans which carry interest ranging from 2.0% to 3.0% (2015:
1.8% to 2.5%) per annum. The weighted average effective interest
rate of the Group'’s bank loans is 2.7% (2015: 2.2%). Debt to total
assets ratio stood at 21.2% (2015: 19.8%), based on total bank
borrowings over total assets. The banking facilities are secured
by corporate guarantees from the Company and certain of its
subsidiaries. Bank loans are secured by certain land and buildings
and investment properties of the Group.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2016, the total number of employees
of the Group was 356. Employee costs (excluding directors
emoluments) amounted to approximately HKD63,177,000 (2015:
HKD72,651,000).

In addition to competitive remuneration packages, double pay and
employee share options are awarded to eligible staff of the Group
based on their performance and individual merits.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 10 June 2011, Shareholders have approved and adopted a
share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
eligible participants with the opportunity to acquire proprietary
interests in the Company and to encourage participants to work
towards enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for
the benefit of the Company and its Shareholders as a whole. All
Directors, full-time employees and any other persons who, at the
sole discretion of the Board of Directors, have contributed or will
contribute to the Group are eligible to participate in the Scheme.

Operation Review
K5OI
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Operation Review
E S )

Pursuant to the Scheme, shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme or any
other share option scheme adopted by the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue on
the date of adoption. The Company may renew this 10% limit with
Shareholders’ approval provided that each such renewal may not
exceed 10% of shares in the Company in issue as at the date of
the Shareholders’ meeting.

The total number of shares of the Company which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme or any other share option scheme
adopted by the Company must not exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time.

Unless approved by Shareholders, the total number of shares of
the Company issued and to be issued upon the exercise of the
options granted to each participant (including both exercised and
unexercised options) under the Scheme or any other share option
schemes adopted by the Company in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue.

The period within which the options must be exercised will be
specified by the Company at the time of grant. This period must
expire no later than 10 years from the date of grant of the options.
At the time of grant of the options, the Company may specify a
minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised. The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 14 days from the date on which the letter containing the
offer is delivered to that participant and the amount payable on
acceptance of an option is HKD1.00.

The subscription price for the shares of the Company to be issued
upon exercise of the options shall be no less than the higher of
(i) the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company on the date
of grant. The subscription price will be approved by the Board of
Directors at the time the option is offered to the participants.
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No options may be granted under the Scheme after the date of the
tenth anniversary of the adoption of the Scheme.

Details of the movements of the share options granted under the
Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2016 are as follows:

Operation Review
ES G
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Number of share options

BREYE
Exercise  Outstanding Outstanding
price as at Granted Exercised Lapsed as at
per share 1 January during during during 31 December
Participants Date of grant Exercise period (HKD) 2016 the year the year the year 2016
20165 12016
BRTER 1A18 12A318
ZHEAT RFEH [id (#7) HAITE  RERRE  RERTE REAKY jed R AT
Directors 9/9/2013 9/9/2013 - 8/9/2016 0.406 - - - - -
% 9/9/2014 - 8/9/2016 0.406 - - - - -
9/9/2015 - 8/9/2016 0.406 - - - - -
9/10/2013 9/10/2013 - 8/10/2016 0.402 - - - - -
9/10/2014 - 8/10/2016 0.402 - - - - -
9/10/2015 - 8/10/2016 0.402 - - - - -
17/6/2014 17/6/2014 - 16/6/2017 0.550 6,000,000 - (6,000,000 - -
4/12/2015 4/12/2015 - 3/12/2016 0.760 1,000,000 - - (1,000,000) -
Employees 9/9/2013 9/9/2013 - 8/9/2016 0.406 - - - - -
&8 9/9/2014 - 8/9/2016 0.406 - - - - -
9/9/2015 - 8/9/2016 0.406 - - - - -
9/10/2013 9/10/2013 - 8/10/2016 0.402 - - - - -
9/10/2014 - 8/10/2016 0.402 350,000 - (140,000 (210,000) -
9/10/2015 - 8/10/2016 0.402 960,000 - (870,000) (90,000) -
4/12/2015 1/7/2016 - 31/12/2016 0.760 10,000,000 - (1,000,000)  (9,000,000) -
18,310,000 - (8,010,000) (10,300,000) -
Weighted average exercise price (HKD) 0.666 N/A 0.558 0.750 N/A
MEFHTERE (B) TER TER
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Operation Review
E S )

Details of the movements of the share options granted under the
Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2015 are as follows:

REZE2015F12A31 R IEFER - RIFZAEIR
AR EEBFIFNT

Number of share options

BREA
Exercise  Outstanding Outstanding
price as at Granted Exercised Lapsed as at
per share 1 January during during during 31 December
Participants Date of grant Exercise period (HKD) 2015 the year the year the year 2015
20155 20155
BRITEE 1A1A 127317
2EAT KT AH 75 () WATE  RERRE  RERTE  RERXN HATTEE
Directors 9/9/2013 9/9/2013 - 8/9/2016 0.406 - - - - -
2% 9/9/2014 - 8/9/2016 0.406 7,000,000 - (7,000,000) - -
9/9/2015 - 8/9/2016 0.406 10,800,000 - (3,900,000) (6,900,000) -
9/10/2013 9/10/2013 - 8/10/2016 0402 - - - - -
9/10/2014 - 8/10/2016 0.402 - - - - -
9/10/2015 - 8/10/2016 0402 - - - - -
17/6/2014 17/6/2014 - 16/6/2017 0.550 6,000,000 - - - 6,000,000
4/12/2015 4/12/2015 - 3/12/2016 0.760 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
Employees 9/9/2013 9/9/2013 - 8/9/2016 0.406 - - - - -
(= 9/9/2014 - 8/9/2016 0.406 2,320,000 - (2,320,000 - -
9/9/2015 - 8/9/2016 0.406 12,000,000 - (7,800,000) (4,200,000) -
9/10/2013 9/10/2013 - 8/10/2016 0402 540,000 - (540,000) - -
9/10/2014 - 8/10/2016 0.402 4,470,000 - (4,120,000 - 350,000
9/10/2015 - 8/10/2016 0402 4,470,000 - (2,550,000) (960,000) 960,000
4/12/2015 1/7/12016 - 31/12/2016 0.760 - 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
47,600,000 11,000,000  (28,230,000)  (12,060,0000 18,310,000
Weighted average exercise price (HKD) 0423 0.760 0.405 0.406 0.666

MEFHITRE (BT

As at 31 December 2016, no share options was outstanding. As at
31 December 2015, the number and weighted average exercise
price of share options exercisable at the end of the reporting period
were 8,310,000 shares and HKDO.552, respectively.

The weighted average remaining contractual life for share options
outstanding at the end of reporting period is nil (2015: 1.13 years).
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of options
exercised during the year was HKD0.84 (2015: HKDO0.83).

The total number of shares available for issue under the share
option scheme as at 31 December 2016 was 811,726,074 shares
(No outstanding share options had been granted but not yet lapsed
or exercised) (2015: 809,323,074 shares (including options for
18,310,000 shares that have been granted but not yet lapsed or
exercised)) which represented 30% (2015: 29.3%) of the issued
share capital of the Company at 31 December 2016.
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The estimated fair value of the options granted on 9 September
2013 was HKDO0.1184 per option. The fair value was calculated
using the Black-Scholes model with Binomial Tree method. The
inputs into the model were as follows:

Share price at grant date HKDO.400
Exercise price HKDO0.406
Expected volatility 43.526%
Expected life 3 years
Risk-free rate 0.693%
Expected dividend yield 0%

The estimated fair value of the options granted on 9 October 2013
was HKDO.1204 per option. The fair value was calculated using the
Black-Scholes model with Binomial Tree method. The inputs into
the model were as follows:

Share price at grant date HKDO.400
Exercise price HKDO0.402
Expected volatility 44.015%
Expected life 3 years
Risk-free rate 0.545%
Expected dividend yield 0%

The estimated fair value of the options granted on 17 June 2014
was HKDO.1921 per option. The fair value was calculated using the
Black-Scholes model with Binomial Tree method. The inputs into
the model were as follows:

Share price at grant date HKDO.550
Exercise price HKDO.550
Expected volatility 51.087%
Expected life 3 years
Risk-free rate 0.771%
Expected dividend yield 0%

Operation Review
ES G
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IR B BRI R (E 0.4007 7T
1B 0.4067 7T
TEHR R 18 43.526%
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42 3 B 1) = 0.693%
TEHARR B & 0%
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R B (E 0.400/& 7T
1718 0.402/ 7T
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Operation Review
E S )

The estimated fair values of the options granted to eligible persons
on 4 December 2015 were HKDO0.1699 and HKDO0.1707 per
option. The fair value was calculated using the Black-Scholes
model with Binomial Tree method. The inputs into the model were
as follows:

HKDO.760
HKDO.760
56.772%/54.938%
1/1.08 years
Risk-free rate 0.09%/0.1077 %
Expected dividend yield 0%

Share price at grant date
Exercise price

Expected volatility
Expected life

The volatility assumption, measured at the standard deviation of
expected share price returns, is based on a statistical analysis of
daily share prices over the last three years.

The share options granted on 9 September 2013 were subject to
the following vesting schedule:

R2015F12A4R B MA ERA TR HBERER
et R FEESD 5 RS ) B #0.16997% T &
0.1707%8 7t > R FEETIE A = XEHARI A 1
R-FFRATEAGE R A B AZBENT

JinEs-qunl=R-ti sl g 0.7607% 7T
1EE 0.7607% 7T
T8 HA R I8 56.772%/54.938%
TEFTFHR 1/1.084
4 [ B I K 0.09%/0.1077%
TEHRRR B K 0%

BRI IR ERBREREAENRIBERR IR
BEBRE-FERRENRTBEINAER L -

R2013F9 A9 R K HMBEAX LA T BB
TR

Maximum
number of
share options

exercisable
REZT{TE
Vesting schedule BB RER fEIRESE
From 9 September 2013 to 8 September 2014 20139 A9H £2014F9 A8H 40%
From 9 September 2014 to 8 September 2015 2014F9H9H £2015F9A8H 70%
From 9 September 2015 to 8 September 2016 20159 A9H £2016F9 A8H 100%
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The share options granted on 9 October 2013 were subject to the
following vesting schedule:

Operation Review
ES G

MR2013F 10 A9 R LM EREASZ U T BB R
IRRR

Maximum
number of
share options

exercisable
RZT{T{#
Vesting schedule B ER PR HERE
From 9 October 2013 to 8 October 2014 2013F10H9H £2014F10A8H 40%
From 9 October 2014 to 8 October 2015 20145 10H9H £2015%F10H8H 70%
From 9 October 2015 to 8 October 2016 2015%F10H9H #2016 10A8H 100%

The share options granted to employees on 4 December 2015
were subject to the following vesting schedule:

R2015F12 A48 B T RENBRERASIA TR
ERERAR:

Maximum
number of
share options

exercisable
RZA{T{E
Vesting schedule HEBRFER FERERE
From 1 July 2016 to 31 December 2016 2016F7A1H £2016F12A31H 100%

No vesting conditions were set for the share options granted to
Directors on 17 June 2014 and 4 December 2015.

The fair value of share options granted was recognised as an
employee cost with a corresponding increase in share options
reserve within equity over the relevant vesting periods.

The Group recognised an expense of approximately HKD1,481,000
(2015: HKD1,666,000) for the year ended 31 December 2016 in
relation to share options granted by the Company.

MA2014E6A170 K2015FE12A4A B T EEH
EREIERTHREBEBES -

ERLBRENAFEEDEZREERA M
1A 1 B8 7 B8 13 4 s o 0 P SRk B TR AR B
Ame

BE2016F12A31H L FE  AEERARRIR
) BB AR R RE SR B S 491,481,000/ 7T (2015%F :
1,666,000/ 7T.) ©
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Board of Directors
EE=E

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheng Tun Nei, aged 53, Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer (appointed on 15 December 2014 and elected as the
Chairman on 23 December 2014)

Mr. Cheng was further appointed Chief Executive Officer on 30
September 2015.

He is an experienced investor in securities and also a seasoned
businessman engaging in securities and financing, consultancy,
hotel investment, real estate investment and development, import
and export of cigarettes, perfume and cosmetic products business
over many years. He is also a director of Goldsilk Capital Limited
(“Goldsilk”). Goldsilk is a substantial shareholder of the Company
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Mr. Chan Kar Lee Gary, aged 61 (appointed on 2 January 2014)

Mr. Chan was further appointed Chief Operating Officer on 1
November 2014 overseeing all business units for the Group.

He possesses over 35 years of professional experience in
marketing, sales, distribution and management in fast moving
consumer goods with multi-national corporations such as LVMH,
British American Tobacco and Imperial Tobacco Group.

Mr. Chan holds an EMBA degree awarded jointly by the HKUST
Business School and the Kellogg School of Management of
Northwestern University. He has also attended management
courses at Stanford Law School, Harvard Business School, The
Wharton School, Stanford-National University of Singapore,
INSEAD/CEDEP and IMD.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Hong Kim Cheong, aged 52 (appointed on 18 September
2015 and re-designated as executive director effective from 1 April
2017)

Mr. Hong holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics and
Geography from The University of Wilfred Laurier Ontario Canada.
He possesses over 25 years of retailing experience gathered from
fast moving consumer products to tobacco products. From 2015 to
2016, Mr. Hong served as a non-executive director of ItalMenu, a
joint venture between COOP ltalia (one of the largest supermarket
chain in ltaly) and a group of private investors for the Asia market.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Shum Pui Kay, aged 68 (appointed on 27 November 2013
and was re-elected on 10 June 2016)

He possesses over 30 years of experience in the retailing and
distribution of luxurious goods. He was instrumental in the
establishment and expansion of the renowned French leather good
brand Longchamp in the Asia Pacific region and has served as the
Chairman of the Asia Pacific region of the brand Longchamp since
1978.

Mr. Wah Wang Kei Jackie, aged 50 (appointed on 27 November
2013 and was re-elected on 10 June 2016)

He graduated from The University of Hong Kong in 1990 and
was qualified as a solicitor in 1992. Up until 1997, Mr. Wah
was a partner of a Hong Kong law firm. He is currently an
executive director of G-Resources Group Limited (HKSE: 1051).
Furthermore, he has also been appointed as an executive director
of NetMind Financial Holdings Limited (HKSE: 985) with effect
from 29 December 2016, the shares of which are listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange.

Board of Directors
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Board of Directors
£5=

Mr. Chow Yu Chun Alexander, aged 70 (appointed on 15
December 2014)

Mr. Chow is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He possesses over 35
years of experience in commercial, financial and investment
management in Hong Kong and Mainland China. He is currently
also an independent non-executive director of Top Form
International Limited (HKSE: 333), Playmates Toys Limited (HKSE:
869) and China Strategic Holdings Limited (HKSE: 235), all three
companies are listed on the Stock Exchange. Furthermore, he has
also been appointed as an independent non-executive director of
Aquis Entertainment Limited (Australian Stock Code: ASX: AQS), a
company listed on Australian Securities Exchange, on 7 September
2015.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Stephen Yin Wai, aged 54, joined the Group in May
2016.

Mr. Chan is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group and has over
20 years of experience in the fields of accounting, investment
banking, corporate financial management, fundraising and
property fund management. Mr. Chan held senior management
roles at international investment banks and private equity real
estate funds.

Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in Civil Engineering
from Columbia University, New York. Mr. Chan obtained
his accounting qualification from the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and is also a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Liu Kam Lung, aged 53, has been working with the Group
since October 2014.

He is the chief executive officer who oversees the compliance and
business operation of the financial services unit acquired by the
Group in 2014.

With over 25 years of experience in the financial industry, he
currently serves as the non-executive director of Megalogic
Technology Holdings Limited (HKSE: 8242), and the independent
non-executive director of Pak Tak International Limited (HKSE:
2668) and Enterprise Development Holdings Limited (HKSE:
1808), all three companies are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Senior Management
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Senior Management
SEEIZAS

Mr. Liu is a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. At the same time, he is an associate
of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and admitted
as an associate of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators of the United Kingdom. He is also a full member of
the Society of Registered Financial Planners and an associate of
the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.

Mr. Liu was awarded a Diploma of Business Administration from
Hong Kong Shue Yan College (now known as Hong Kong Shue Yan
University).

Ms. Chow So Ying Anna, aged 53, has been working with the
Group since June 2004.

She is the named company secretary of the Group.

Ms. Chow is a solicitor admitted in the Supreme Court of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region and possesses over 15 years
experience in legal and regulatory compliance. Her legal practice
used to focus on the capital markets covering IPO, bank financing,
securities and regulatory compliance, joint venture documentation
and private equity investments.

Ms. Chow graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor of arts degree.
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Mr. Lee Cheung Ming, aged 45, joined the Group in September
2014.

He is currently the Head of Real Estate division of the Group.

Mr. Lee accumulated over 14 years of experience in hotel and real
estate development cum investment in Mainland China. He used
to serve as the director of Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited
(HKSE: 8242), a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lee has completed his EMBA studies at Xiamen University. He
also holds a graduate certificate in Business Administration from
Beijing Economy Management College.

He is the brother-in-law of Mr. Cheng Tun Nei, the Chairman of the
Company.

Mr. Wong Keong Yiew, aged 47, joined the Symphony Holdings
Limited in June 2015 and currently serves as Head of Pony
operation.

He has over 15 years of experience in general management,
sales & marketing and key account management across different
product categories including the fast moving consumer goods and
perfume cosmetics industries.

Mr. Wong graduated with a Bachelor of Engineering degree from
the National University of Singapore. He is an ASEAN Scholar and
a Singapore Aerospace Scholar.

Senior Management
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Senior Management
SEEIZAS

Mr. Mok Henry, aged 55, joined the Group in April 2004.

Mr. Mok was appointed Vice President in November 2012, and is
currently overseeing the Group’s outlet mall operations in China.

He is a retail industry veteran with over 20 years of experience in
the general consumer, as well as tourism, retailing business. His
past working experience included DFS Hong Kong Ltd., a LVMH
company and Victoria Mall, a CKH Shopping Mall, Reebok China
and JFT Holdings Ltd.

He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Architecture from North
East London Polytechnic (Current name: University of East London)
in the United Kingdom.

Mr. Ng Yat Man Daniel, aged 59, joined the Group in December,
2011.

Mr. Ng was appointed the Head of leasing of outlet mall division on
1 March 2015. In his new appointment, he is responsible for high-
end brand recruitment for the Group’s outlet malls.

He is a seasoned retailer with over 30 years of experience
accumulated from working with Foxtown, Golden Eagle Shopping
Centre and Sogo (HK).

Mr. Ng attended management courses at Foxtown Outlets, Lugano,
Switzerland.
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Ms. Li Hua, aged 51, joined the company in 2009.

Ms. Li has been focusing on brand marketing and leading the
Speedo China operation from 1st March 2016 onwards.

She has worked with Henkel, Reckitt Benckiser and Wacoal during
her 22 years in sales and marketing in FMCG and sports/fashion
industries.

Ms. Li graduated from Jilin Normal University with a bachelor
degree in English Literature.

Ms. Fung Kim Wan Ewim, aged 54 joined the Group on 1 July
2014.

Ms. Fung currently oversees the financial services business of the
Group.

With over 30 years of experience in business administration,
operational and customer relationship management, Ms. Fung has
been one of the key management member of a leading tobacco
and liquor company in Hong Kong, her main responsibilities
include supervising and managing the distribution and duty-free
business.

She graduated from the City College of Commerce in 1984 in the
discipline of business studies.

Senior Management
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Directors’ Report
EERE

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Symphony Holdings Limited was incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares are listed
on the Stock Exchange. The address of the registered office is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and
the principal place of business of the Company is located on the
10th Floor of Island Place Tower, 510 King's Road, North Point,
Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Group are retailing and sourcing,
outlet malls, duty free, branding, financial services, property
investment and holding. The principal activities of the Company’s
principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 42.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group including the challenges/
uncertainties and ways to tackle them together with a discussion of
the Group’s future development are provided in the Chairman and
CEOQ’s Statement. An analysis of the Group’s performance during
the year is included in the Operation Review. A description of the
financial risks are found in Note 34(b) to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND FINAL DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
pages 62 to 63 of the annual report.

No interim dividend was declared or paid during the year. For
the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board recommends the
payment of final dividend of HKD0.0038 (2015: HKDO0.02) per
Share to the Shareholders.
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The proposed final dividend is expected to be paid on Wednesday,
5 July 2017 to Shareholders whose names appear on the Register
of Members of the Company as at the close of business on 20
June 2017. The payment of dividend is subject to the approval of
Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting to be held on Friday, 9
June 2017.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings were revalued at
31 December 2016. The revaluation resulted in a surplus of
approximately HKD26,620,000 which was credited directly to the
properties revaluation reserve.

Details of movements during the year in property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group's investment properties at 31 December 2016 were
fair valued by an independent firm of professional property valuers
base on comparable sales available in the market. The net increase
in fair value of approximately HKD20,370,000 was credited directly
to profit or loss.

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Directors’ Report
EFHRSE

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital of the Company are set out in Note 29 to
the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2016, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme adopted on
10 June 2011 (the “Scheme”) are set out in Note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BONUS WARRANT

During the year, the Company resolved at the Special General
Meeting held on 10 June 2016 to issue bonus Warrants to the
Shareholders on the record date on the basis of one Warrant for
every five existing issued shares of the Company. Details are set out
in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ Report

EEWRE
RESERVES &
Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during FRNRRNRRELEF BTN GRE U RERMFE
the year are set out in Note 32 of the consolidated financial 320
statements.
DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY A2\ S] o] 9Bl {# &
The reserves of the Company available for distribution to M2016F12H31H » AR A A D g T ARQ AR
shareholders as at 31 December 2016 were as follows: MEEDT
2016 2015
HKD’000 HKD’000
FET FAT
Share premium B imE 942,075 936,965
Contributed surplus EHAR 586,774 586,774
Retained profits B m A 188,360 246,771
1,717,209 1,770,510
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the HHREZEIBIRANE (KERT) RaMEHA

balances in a company’s contributed surplus and share premium
accounts are available for distribution. However, the company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus, if there are reasonable grounds for believing
that:

(@) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable to
pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of the assets of the Company would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium accounts.

The Company’s share premium account may be applied to pay
up unissued Shares to be issued to the Shareholders as fully paid
bonus shares.

R R ERP SR A RO - WA 52
EHBETIER "TH#T%%U*/)Ejz/)EHHx
ERNEHBGRETDR

Jill3

(@) ARBTEEH KR BB & A T RES
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B
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ARpAL Bty B R A REBUR A MR 31T 1
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Cheng Tun Nei (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chan Kar Lee Gary

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:
Mr. Hong Kim Cheong
(re-designated as Executive Director on 1 April 2017)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Shum Pui Kay

Mr. Wah Wang Kei Jackie

Mr. Chow Yu Chun Alexander

In accordance with the existing Bye-laws of the Company, Mr.
Cheng Tun Nei, Mr. Chan Kar Lee Gary and Mr. Chow Yu Chun
Alexander will retire as Directors by rotation and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

None of the directors who is proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Group which is not terminable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the chief executives and their associates of the
Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”), or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Code”), were as follows:

LONG POSITIONS

Ordinary shares of HKDO.10 each in the Company: base on total
shares as at 31 December 2016

Directors’ Report
EFEWRSE

EFNERTBASNERRRIRG
HERARGBES

RIBEF MG IGE (TEFMEE RG] ) F352
GRREBFOERMATE HRBEB A EHA
RAEFETEFRZNFESTR ([1FETR)
AR A MR R2016F12 4318 AR
AEENEETRABRESZHEBALNARE
SEH S AR - ARBR D RE SRR K
KRB EVES AT

RE

RNREEREEOIOE TH &EBAD  RER
20165F 12 A31A 2 R BT E

Number of ordinary shares held by

FHERTEERYE

Percentage

Spouse Total of the

and/or number of issued share

children Controlled ordinary capital of

Director Notes  Beneficial owner under 18 corporation shares the Company

EAFAT

ERBR/ 3 EBT

S izt BN 18RUTFX EeE  TEREKE BAEREL

Cheng Tun Nei (“Mr. Cheng”)  EJE[R ([E5%4]) 1 - - 801,830,000 801,830,000 29.63%

Chan Kar Lee Gary R 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000 0.22%

Shum Pui Kay (“Mr. Shum”) R (NLEE]) 2 - - 10,000,000 10,000,000 0.37%
Notes: B3

1. Mr. Cheng owns the entire issued share capital of Goldsilk Capital Limited 1. % A4 5 5 Goldsilk Capital Limited ([Goldsilk |) % &8

(“Goldsilk”). As at 31 December 2016, Goldsilk was directly interested in
801,830,000 Shares and 160,366,000 Warrants. Mr. Cheng was thus deemed
to be interested in 801,830,000 Shares and 160,366,000 Warrants.

2. Tung Fai Holdings Company Limited (“Tung Fai”) was directly interested in
10,000,000 Shares and 2,000,000 Warrants. Tung Fai was wholly-owned by
Asian League Limited, which in turn was wholly-owned by Mr. Shum. Together
with his direct interest as beneficial owner of 350,000 Warrants, Mr. Shum was
thus deemed to be interested in 10,000,000 Shares and 2,350,000 Warrants.

BEITIRA - R20165F12A31H ' GoldsilkEE #HH
801,830,000 i 7 %2 160,366,000 15 ARG o F Ut -
E 5t A w5 4R & #5 5 801,830,0008% % 17 12 160,366,000
1 R AERE

2. Tung Fai Holdings Company Limited ([Tung Fai | ) B
#/10,000,0008% fi% 15 K2.2,000,00017 32 A% # 75 © Tung
Faifi Asian League Limited® & #7 * fAsian League
Limited Al £ R EHEA - BERUL S AEEAERSES
A B HA350,00010 sR AR 75 2 ok Lo A A A
8 %5 710,000,000 f& 5 % 2,350,00017 7R AX #E 7 ©
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Save as disclosed above and in the section “Share Option
Scheme”, none of the directors, chief executives nor their
associates had any interest or short position in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as at 31 December 2016.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE OR REDEEM
SHARES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate. In addition, the Company has not redeemed any of its
shares during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as the margin financing arrangement as disclosed under the
heading of “Continuing Connected Transactions” from page 49 to
50 of the annual report, no Director had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party subsisting during or
at the end of the financial year under review.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Details of the directors’ remuneration are set out in Note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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issued share capital of the Company:

LONG POSITIONS

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

None of the Directors or their respective close associates has any
competing interests which need to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
8.10 of the Listing Rules.

The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, as at
31 December 2016, the following shareholders had notified the
Company of their relevant interests and short positions in the

Ordinary shares of HKDO.10 each of the Company

Directors’ Report

EENHRNEBNER

EFERE

FERAEANTERRA L RECAHFY
£ AR LR RIE810MAE A T B

B TR 25 <

FERRE

RIRE 5 K B G 160 SB33615 R E AN A RIBTFEY
TERRELMAAE 2 FEEBRERN2016512
ABIERBARFEHITRA 2 HEAER SRR

LIl

1) R#&

ARR R EAO.107E TR A D

Number of issued ordinary shares held

ERTRHEE
Percentage of
the issued
share capital
Direct Deemed Total of the
Name of shareholder Notes  Capacity interests interests interests Company
EFATF
w5 BT
g .t ERi#ER RHHER wiEnm RAEHE
Mr. Cheng 1 Interest of controlled corporation - 801,830,000 801,830,000 29.63%
BE4 REeE
Ms. Li Wa Hei (“Madam Li") 1 Spouse - 801,830,000 801,830,000 29.63%
FERLT ([Fut]) [iRLE]
Goldsilk 1 Beneficial owner 801,830,000 - 801,830,000 29.63%
@A
Or Ching Fai (“Mr. Or") 2 Beneficial owner and spouse 350,000,000 120,000,000 470,000,000 17.37%
B AE (TR%E]) X ARER
Wong Lai Ning (“Madam Wong") 2 Beneficial owner and spouse - 470,000,000 470,000,000 17.37%
FEELL ([Et]) XaARER
FEEEBRAT

2016 FE WS
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(2)

38

Notes:

1. Mr. Cheng owns the entire issued share capital of Goldsilk. As at 31
December 2016, Goldsilk was directly interested in 801,830,000
Shares and 160,366,000 Warrants. Mr. Cheng was thus deemed to be
interested in 801,830,000 Shares and 160,366,000 Warrants. Madam
Li is the wife of Mr. Cheng and she was also deemed to be interested in
801,830,000 Shares and 160,366,000 Warrants.

2. As at 31 December 2016, Mr. Or was directly interested in
350,000,000 Shares and 70,000,000 Warrants. Mr. Or also held
120,000,000 Shares and 24,000,000 Warrants jointly with his spouse,
Madam Wong. Therefore, Mr. Or and Madam Wong were deemed to be
interested in 470,000,000 Shares and 94,000,000 Warrants.

The acquisition of 42% equity interest in Giant Eagle
Enterprises Limited not already owned by the Company
involves the issue of consideration shares under specific
mandate and the application for whitewash waiver was
approved by the shareholders of the Company and the
Securities and Futures Commission at the special general
meeting held on 3 March 2017. Completion took place
on 8th March 2017 and 250,000,000 Shares were issued
to Goldsilk. As at 8 March 2017, Goldsilk was directly
interested in 1,051,830,000 shares (representing 35.59%)
and 160,366,000 Warrants of the Company. Mr. Cheng, the
beneficial owner of Goldsilk was deemed to be interested
in 1,051,830,000 shares and 160,366,000 Warrants of the
Company and so was his spouse, Madam Li.

SHORT POSITIONS

The Company has not been notified of any other relevant
interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2016.

Symphony Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016

1. B 55 A 45 8 GoldSilk 2 5 B B 1T AR A © 1A20164F
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1578801,830,000/% % 17 % 160,366,00017 72 A%
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APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive directors independent.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
totalling approximately HKD1,000 (2015: HKD5,000).

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s employee emolument policy is set up and reviewed by
the Board taking into account the qualifications and experience of
the Group’s employees.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are reviewed and
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and approved by
the Board, as authorised by shareholders at the annual general
meeting, taking into account the operating results of the Company,
individual performance and prevailing market conditions.

The Remuneration Committee was set up in December 2005,
advising the Board on the emoluments of the directors and senior
management. The Company has adopted share option schemes
as incentive to directors and eligible employees, details of the
schemes are set out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws, or
the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2016.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 41 to 52 of
this Annual Report.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by BDO Limited who
will retire, and being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.
A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHAIRMAN
Cheng Tun Nei

Hong Kong, 17 March 2017
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The Company firmly believes in the value and importance
of achieving high standard of corporate governance through
transparency, as well as effective risk and internal control system.
With the merger and acquisition of new business segments,
the governance system is constantly reviewed and meticulously
re-assessed, by the Board to ensure that shareholders’ and
stakeholders’ interests are safeguarded. The Company has adopted
and complied with the CG Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2016, except for the deviation from code provisions
A.2.1 and A.4.1 of CG Code.

The Board continues to monitor and review the Company’s
corporate governance practices and makes necessary changes
at appropriate times. Under the code provision A.2.1, the roles
of the Chairman and chief executive officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. Mr.
Cheng Tun Nei currently serves as both the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. In view of the evolving business
environment in which our Group operates, the Board is of the view
that vesting the roles of both the chairman and chief executive
on Mr. Cheng Tun Nei will provide the Group with strong and
consistent leadership while permitting more effective and timely
business planning and decision-making process.

Under code provision A.4.1, non-executive Directors should be
appointed for a specific term and are subject to re-election. all non-
executive Directors of the Company were not appointed for specific
term but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
annual general meeting in accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Bye-
laws of the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board assumes leadership and control by providing overall
strategic direction. As at 31 December 2016, the Board consisted
of 6 Directors (including the Chairman of the Board), amongst
which 2 are executive Directors and remaining are Non-executive
Directors. Out of the 4 Non-executive Directors, 3 are independent.

The Company continuously seeks to improve the effectiveness of
its Board and recognizes and embraces the benefits of diversity
in the boardroom. Diversity is a wide concept and diversity of
perspectives can be achieved through consideration of the
following factors, including but not limited to skills, regional and
industry experience, background, race, gender and other qualities.
In assessing its perspective on diversity, the Company will take
into account factors based on its own business model and specific
needs from time to time.
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The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive director (“INEDs”), an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all INEDs independent.

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing business strategy and managing day-today
administration and operations of the Group’s business to the Chief
Operating Officer and the senior management. While allowing
management with substantial autonomy to run and develop the
business, the Board is proactive in reviewing the results of the
delegated functions and work tasks.

The Company provides continuous professional development
(“CPD") training and relevant materials to Directors to help ensure
that they are kept abreast of the latest changes in the commercial,
legal and regulatory environment in which the Group conducts its
business and to refresh their knowledge and skills on the roles,
functions and duties of a listed company director.

ARRDEEBIFATESRELTRANE
BIMGRREREF BB HOFEHER L
BHEEEFHRBIAL

EEEEHAKENEHERIE AT BREHE
REBRNEBERAEFREEEMSEBEEA
BRE-NEEREBRRIE BEERERT
EXMBIR EFXTPHTHURSIEERT
TEERS R R B TT IR AT

ARBREFRBFESERRE I REME
Y B EREEEAKELLEXHOEL A
RERBERBNENBL YEREHBHE LD
NEEENAE  BEL MR E MR -

Type of

CPD programme*
Name HEEmiEdl
== KR EEE
Executive Directors BITES
Cheng Tun Nei EEE v/
Chan Kar Lee Gary FeR 3= £l v
Non-executive Director FERITES
Hong Kim Cheong ikt v/
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFERITES
Shum Pui Kay IEE 4
Wah Wang Kei Jackie BN v
Chow Yu Chun Alexander BEF#& v

*

including: briefings from business units, regular information updates, reading
materials relating to regulatory updates, business visits
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All Directors have full, timely and direct access to the services and

advice from the company secretary of the Company.

During the year, the Board conducted 5 meetings, attendance of

the Directors at the board meetings and general meetings is set out

Corporate Governance Report
IFPHEEBIRE

2REFHA2HE ABMERRAARFNAF
MEBSHB) S -

RADBFEE EFEHEHOREH EFNE
FEMBRAFRENERLFELBOTR:

as follows:—
Number of meetings attended/eligible to attend
HE SERHEEEZRE

Annual Special

General General
Name Board Meeting Meeting
BE=x EEE RFEEXE RBRIEBIXE
Executive Directors BITES
Cheng Tun Nei HEE 5/5 1/1 1/1
Chan Kar Lee Gary PR 5= A 5/5 11 11
Non-executive Director ERITESE
Hong Kim Cheong kit 5/5 11 171
Independent Non-executive Directors BIAFHTES
Shum Pui Kay B E 5/5 1/1 1/1
Wah Wang Kei Jackie EYN 4/5 171 1/1
Chow Yu Chun Alexander BAFE 5/5 171 171
COMPANY SECRETARY ATNHE

Ms. Chow So Ying Anna, the company secretary of the Company, is

a full time employee of the Group. She reports to the Chairman of

the Company. She has duly complied with the relevant professional

training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. Her

biographical details are set out on page 26 of the annual report.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (“Remuneration
Committee”) was set up for the purpose of advising the Board on
and reviewing the remuneration policy and other remuneration
related matters for all Directors and senior management.

MEMBERS OF REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Wah Wang Kei Jackie (Chairman)
Mr. Shum Pui Kay
Mr. Chow Yu Chun Alexander

Remuneration package is performance-based and the
recommended remuneration package includes salaries,
discretionary bonus and share options. During the year under
review, the Remuneration Committee considered the packages of
the Directors. They made recommendation to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual directors, taking into account
experience, qualifications, business performance, market practices
and competitive market conditions. Non-executive Directors are
compensated with the aim to fairly represent their efforts and time
dedicated to the Board.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (“Audit Committee”)
was established with specific written terms of reference. The
Audit Committee oversees the audit process and provides an
independent review of the effectiveness of the financial reporting
process and the internal control procedures.
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MEMBERS OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Chow Yu Chun Alexander (Chairman)
Mr. Shum Pui Kay
Mr. Wah Wang Kei Jackie

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Audit Committee
reviewed with the external auditor and senior management the
annual results of the Group as well as the accounting principles
and practices being adopted and financial reporting matters.

Our Chief Financial Officer, senior management and the external
auditor attended the meetings to respond to any queries raised by
members of the Audit Committee.

An independent internal audit service provider was engaged to
review the risk management and internal control systems of the
Company on a half-yearly basis and no material findings had been
identified.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company (“Nomination
Committee”), consists of 3 members, out of which 2 are
independent Non-executive Directors, was established with
specific written terms of reference. During the year, it reviewed
the structure, size and composition of the board and made
recommendations on proposed changes to the Board; the
independence of independent non-executive directors was also
assessed. It further made recommendation to the Board for the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors.

MEMBERS OF NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Cheng Tun Nei (Chairman)
Mr. Shum Pui Kay
Mr. Wah Wang Kei Jackie
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BOARD/COMMITTEES MEETINGS AND
MINUTES

During the year under review, management provided information to
the Directors and Board members in a timely manner to keep them
abreast of the latest developments of the Company. The attendance
of individual members of the Board and other Board Committees
meetings during the financial year ended 31 December 2016 is set
out in the table below:

RARBEE ERECERAEZTRZEEN
BRHEER FEFHEEEARRNEHER-
BE2016FI2A3IALMBEFE SEFERE
MEBENEBNER L FLENTR:

Audit Remuneration Nomination
Directors Committee Committee Committee
= EREEE FINESE REEEE
Executive Director BITESE
Cheng Tun Nei BEE N/A 736 FB N/A 5 F 11
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFEHITES
Shum Pui Kay LI E 2/2 212 11
Wah Wang Kei Jackie ERE 212 212 11
Chow Yu Chun Alexander & F & 2/2 2/2 N/A 73

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committees meetings
have been recorded. Draft and final versions of minutes of the
Board and other Board Committees were circulated to all Directors
or Committees members for comments within a reasonable time
after the meeting.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

Under the Bye-laws, one-third of the Directors (including INEDs)
must retire, from office by rotation and every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
The retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election at each annual
general meeting. Mr. Cheng Tun Nei (“Mr. Cheng”), Mr. Chan Kar
Lee Gary (“Mr. Chan”) and Mr. Chow Yu Chun Alexander (“Mr.
Chow”) will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and
being eligible offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. Details of the biographies of Mr. Cheng,
Mr. Chan and Mr. Chow are set out in the circular to be sent to the
Shareholders.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE, INTERNAL
CONTROL, GROUP RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibility of the Group’s system of
internal control, corporate governance compliance and assessment
and management of risks. Procedures are designed to identify and
manage risks that might adversely impact the Group’s business
operations. Through the establishment of policies and internal
guidelines such as the approval of detailed operational and
financial reports, budgets and plans provided by the management
of the business operations; inhouse code for the approval and
control of expenditures; periodic review of actual results against
budget or forecast; annual review by the Audit Committee of the
ongoing work of the Group’s internal audit and risk management
functions, the effectiveness of the internal control systems is
ensured. An independent service provider was appointed in
March 2016 to assist the Board to monitor the effectiveness
of the risk management and control system of the Group. The
service provider conducted review of the procedures, systems and
controls (including risk management, accounting and management
systems) of the Company in accordance with “Internal Control
Integrated Framework” and “Enterprise Risk Management
Framework” (“ERM”) issued by The Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) on a 6 months
basis. A Risk Management and Internal Control Review Report
was submitted to the Audit Committee and the Board on a half-
yearly basis so that appropriate follow-up actions can be taken by
formalizing management policies to manage risk in a systematic
manner.

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to
applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular, those with
significant impact on the Group. As far as the Company is aware
of, the Group has complied, in material respect, with the relevant
rules and regulations promulgated by the relevant regulatory bodies
to which the Group operates its business in and holds the relevant
required licences for conducting certain licensed activities.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors
of the Company is currently in force throughout the year.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

A summary of remuneration paid to the external auditor of the
Company, BDO Limited, for audit services and non-audit services
for the financial years ended 31 December 2016 is as follows:

ZRETN &

HZE2016F12A31B LM BEE - T AR A
B R AER Y EEREREBAER AR
TRt BRI RIEERRBOMEEZEE W
T

2016
HKD’000
FHT

Nature of services RS
Audit services FET R 1,860
Other services H b AR 7 360

SECURITIES TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, each of them confirmed his compliance
with the required standard set out in the Model Code for the
financial year ended 31 December 2016. Relevant employees
who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive
information of the Group are also subject to compliance with
guidelines on no less exacting terms than the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING

With the assistance of the finance department, the Directors
acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016
and confirm that the financial statements contained herein give a
true and fair view of the results and state of affairs of the Group for
the period under review. The Directors consider that the financial
statements have been prepared in conformity with the statutory
requirements and the applicable accounting standards.
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Further discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance can be
found in the Operation Review section of this annual report. Further
explanation as to how the Company generates or preserves value
over the longer term and the strategy for delivering the Company’s
objectives is found in the Chairman and CEQ's Statement from
page 4 to 9.

To maintain and promote better and effective control within the
Group, the Directors have reviewed the soundness, adequacy
and application of accounting, financial and other controls of the
Company.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group entered into
the following disclosed connected transactions with its connected
persons:

(i) under a margin financing agreement collectively signed
by Mr. Cheng Tun Nei, Goldsilk Capital Limited and
the subsidiary of the Company on 31 December 2015,
the aggregate margin financing loan facility was set at
HKD10,000,000 for term of three years; and

(i) under a margin financing agreement signed by Ms. Fung
Kim Wan Ewim, a director of the subsidiary of the Company
and the subsidiary of the Company on 31 December 2015,
the aggregate margin financing loan facility was set at
HKD10,000,000 for term of three years.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company believed
that the above continuing connected transactions have been
entered into: —

(a) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;
(b) on normal commercial terms; and

(c) according to the agreement governing them on terms that

are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s
shareholders as a whole.
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BDO Limited, the Company’s auditor, was engaged to report
on the Group’s disclosed continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. BDO
Limited has issued its unqualified letter containing its findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed above by the Group in accordance with 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by
the Company to the Stock Exchange.

SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATION

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining an effective
two-way communication with its stakeholders. Designated
members of the management meet with institutional investors
on an on-going basis providing them with the latest and
comprehensive information about the corporate developments of
the Group. In addition, stakeholders can click into the Company’s
website (www.symphonyholdings.com) to obtain updated
information in a timely manner.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders may convene a special general meeting in the
following manner:

Shareholders holding not less than 10% of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the voting rights at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written request to
the Board or the company’s secretary, to require a special general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such written request.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 December 2016.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCES

The Group promotes and implements green office policies

through the following measures aiming to enhance environmental

awareness:

a)

b)

c)

power saving: lights are turned off when not in use,
computers are turned off during lunch break and over the
weekend;

paper saving: implement paperless office, use of email and
online signature system for document review and approval;
When the use of physical papers is required, double-sided
printing or use of recycle paper is recommended and
practised where applicable;

administrative management: effective electronic office
systems including speed dialing, tele-conferencing systems
have been implemented to reduce the number of business
trips whenever applicable, and hence reduce emissions. Staff
in China operations are encouraged to commute to work
utilizing public transportation and shuttle bus services are
run between city centre and our outlet mall site.

all paper for printing the Group’s interim and annual report
are FSC certified/recycled paper. The Group will continue
to explore opportunities to develop its green purchasing
practices in this area.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES

Human resources are considered valuable asset of the Group.
Development and retention of human talent are considered vital.

The Group is committed to providing staff with a pleasant, safe and
healthy working environment. Competitive remuneration package
and share option incentive are provided to eligible employees.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH CUSTOMERS

We are committed to offer a broad and diverse range of life-
style, value-for-money, good quality products with our brand to
our customers. We stay connected with our customers through
maintaining VIP database, ongoing communications, telephone,
emails, marketing materials and social media. Training are also
provided to sales personnel to provide quality and value-added
customer services.

In addition, the Group will continue to widen the customer base by
utilizing and maximizing current network.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH SUPPLIERS/
DISTRIBUTORS

We have developed long-standing relationships with our vendors
and take great care to ensure that they share our commitment
to quality and ethics. We carefully select and assess our vendors
through track record, experience, reputation, ability to provide
quality products.

We distribute certain products to end customers through third-
party distributors. We work with our distributors like business
partners and ensure that they also share our view for upholding
brand value and customer services, specifically focusing on
attracting and retaining customers in order to drive sales growth.
We also monitor the financial position and repayment history of
these distributors and their sales performance.
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IBDO

B a5 - +852 2218 8288
{2H : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF SYMPHONY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Symphony Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 62 to 206, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2016, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk
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BUZSENIRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

FAIR VALUE OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND
BUILDINGS MEASURED AT LEVEL 3

Refer to Notes 13 and 14 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies on page 85 and 88 respectively.

As at 31 December 2016, certain of the Group’s investment
properties and buildings were measured at fair value of
approximately HKD919,268,000 and HKD304,253,000
respectively. These were classified as level 3 for which the inputs
used for determining the fair value were not largely based on
observable market data.

Independent external valuations were obtained from independent
firm of professional property valuers to support the fair value
estimations.

Valuations of investment properties were determined by two
separate methodologies, including direct comparison approach
for the Shenyang properties and capitalisation of net income
approach for the Beijing properties, which required significant
judgement by taking into account of the properties characteristics,
such as location, size, and time of comparable transactions for
the Shenyang properties, and expected vacancy rates and rental
growth rates for the Beijing properties respectively.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

FAIR VALUE OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND
BUILDINGS MEASURED AT LEVEL 3 (CONTINUED)

Valuations of buildings were estimated by using depreciated
replacement cost approach based on the properties highest
and best use, which does not differ from their actual use, in the
absence of comparable sales evidence.

We identified the fair value estimations of these investment
properties and buildings as a key audit matter because of the
significant judgement involved in the valuations and, the significant
amounts involve.

Our response:

° Evaluated the independent external valuers’ competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

° Assessed the appropriateness of the methodologies used
and reasonableness of the key assumptions used in the
valuations; and

° Checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy and relevance of
the input data used in the valuations.

IMPAIRMENT OF LOANS AND TRADE RECEIVABLES

Refer to Notes 21 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies on page 100.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group's trade and other
receivables and provision on impairment thereon amounted
to HKD142,508,000 and HKD27,741,000 respectively. Loans
receivable and provision on impairment thereon amounted to
HKD333,810,000 and HKD8&,000,000 respectively.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

IMPAIRMENT OF LOANS AND TRADE RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

The identification of impairment indicators and the determination
of the amount of impairment loss of the Group’s loans and trade
receivables require the application of significant judgement by
management, in particular, the timing and amount of estimated
future cash flows.

We identified the impairment of loans and trade receivables as a
key audit matter because of the significant judgement involved
and the significance of the carrying amounts of loans and trade
receivables to the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Our response:

° Tested the design and implementation of key controls over
the impairment assessment, including those in respect of
identifying impairment indicators;

° Challenged assumptions relating to the timing and
recognition of impairment losses and corroborating them to
underlying data such as settlement schedules agreed with
the Group’s customers; and

° Assessed the sufficiency of value of collaterals held by the
Group as security for its loans receivable.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)
IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Refer to Notes 19 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies on page 83 and 91 respectively.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives of approximately HKD35,590,000
and HKD146,417,000, respectively. As further described in Notes
4(e) and 4(j)(ii) to the consolidated financial statements, these
assets are subject to annual impairment testing.

Management concluded that there was no impairment in respect
of the goodwill and intangible assets. This conclusion was
based on the determination of recoverable amounts of the cash
generating units or the assets. The determination of recoverable
amounts required significant judgement and assumptions made
by management with respect to the underlying future cash flows
dependent on factors such as future revenue growth and gross
margins, and the applicable discount rate.

We identified the impairment of goodwill and intangible assets as
a key audit matter because of the significant judgement involved
in the determination of recoverable amounts and the significance
of carrying amounts of these assets to the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Our response:
° Checked the arithmetic accuracy of the impairment testing;

° Assessed the reasonableness of discount rates and growth
rates applied to the impairment testing;

° Challenged the reasonableness of other key assumptions
based on our knowledge of the business and industry; and

° Checked input data to supporting evidence such as approved
budgets and considering the reasonableness of these
budgets.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZSENERE

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZSENIRE
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZSENIRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

60

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Symphony Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Shiu Hong NG

Practising Certificate Number: PO3752

Hong Kong, 17 March 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

REFTEWUEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HZE2016%F12H31B8 IEFE
2016 2015
Notes HKD('000) HKD('000)
HiF FHET FET
Revenue EET 6 363,856 351,067
Cost of sales SHERA (91,998) (85,779)
Gross profit EH 271,858 265,288
Other income and gains H g A R s 9a) 11,382 250,438
Distribution and selling expenses DERHEERT (100,840) (124,988)
Administrative expenses THAX (135,141) (170,771)
Finance costs AR 7 (18,429) (10,965)
Other expenses Hith i b) (19,974) (15,635)
Increase in fair value of investment properties WEMENTBEEN 20,370 3,443
Share of results of joint ventures hEEbEEE 964 (1,757)
Profit before income tax expenses B PSR S A ) 30,190 195,053
Income tax expenses s8R 8 (16,145) (38,975)
Profit for the year FEEF 9c) 14,045 156,078
Other comprehensive income, net of tax Hib2mEW AN BHiE
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: TEEMPEEEEMNER
Surplus arising on revaluation of properties MEBHAEE B 29,222 14,149
Deferred tax liability arising on revaluation of MESHAEEZ
properties RERIEGE - (9,953)
29,222 4,196
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently Higgesmohz
to profit or loss: BEMIEE
Fair value gain on available-for-sale investments AHEERE AT EEKS - 20,354
Release of investments revaluation reserve A E AR E R AR
to profit or loss upon disposal of EE2ESEEN
available-for-sale investments ZEREENRE - (5,605)
Translation reserves released to profit or REENRBARIEEEE
loss on disposal of subsidiaries Bam 2l EE - 129
Translation reserves released to profit or loss REVGE &b IR
on abtaining control of a joint venture Boz=En 2 ELRE - (2,051)
Exchange differences arising on translation of BEBINERFELER
foreign operations EHZER (96,390) (101,239)
(96,390) (88,412)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax ~ FEHME2ERA - BFiE (67,168) (84,216)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEE2HEWALLEE (53,123) 71,862
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
HBEFENDE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

HZE2016F12A31H L FE
2016 2015
Notes HKD('000) HKD('000)
Wizt FET FHET
Profit for the year attributable to owners ARREBAEETEREF
of the Company 27,746 180,822
Loss for the year attributable to non-controlling FERERELFEER
interests (13,701) (24,744)
14,045 156,078
Total comprehensive income attributable to: EEEEBALEE:
Owners of the Company VN/NGIE PN (21,377) 115,854
Non-controlling interests R (31,746) (43,992)
(53,123) 71,862
Earnings per share F&F 12
Basic (HK cents) AR (L) 1.03 6.74
Diluted (HK cents) s (8L 1.03 6.72
HUEREEBRAT

2016 FE WS
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

iRB AR R

As at 31 December 2016
#2016 12731H

2016 2015
Notes HKD('000) HKD('000)
iz FHET FET
Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment EN e 13 596,754 611,898
Investment properties REM* 14 1,155,268 1,190,423
Prepaid lease payments A EFRIE 15 234,213 254,248
Intangible assets BVEE 16 146,417 146,417
Interests in joint ventures BETEIER 17 156,254 -
Interest in an associate BEPE ER 18 - -
Loan to an associate ERTHEDE 18 5,587 -
Goodwill S 19 35,590 35,590
Deferred tax assets RERIEEE 27 18,084 22,486
Club debenture SHES 1,876 1,876
Restricted bank deposit SRHRITER 25(a) 3,337 3,538
Statutory deposits for financial services business SRRBEBNEEFR 200 200
2,353,580 2,266,676
Current assets MEEE
Inventories FE 20 20,874 58,862
Trade and other receivables B 5 KHE it FEUBR K 21 142,508 115,842
Amount due from joint ventures JEU A & EFRIE 17 53,069 -
Advance to customers in margin financing RUHTRESHERFPZ
E 22 119,656 126,050
Loan to non-controlling interests ERTIEERER 1,668 -
Loans receivable EWE TR 23 333,810 629,196
Prepaid lease payments BNHEEREA 15 6,617 7,159
Trading securities BEZESH 24 10,714 16,420
Restricted bank deposit SEHRITER 25(a) 1,533 9,889
Bank balances and cash — held on behalf of WITEBRRRS
customers —-REFPHA 25(b) 22,679 24,494
Bank balances and cash IRITHEB LIRS 25(c) 328,468 470,025
1,041,596 1,457,937
Current liabilities mEAE
Trade and other payables B REMEMER 26 258,836 265,611
Bank borrowings BITER 28 173,082 173,002
Tax payable JETRIIR 8,729 12,853
440,647 451,466
Net current assets TBEEFE 600,949 1,006,471
Total assets less current liabilities EEBERRBDARE 2,954,529 3,273,147
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FERIFEARIR &
As at 31 December 2016

7201612 A31H
2016 2015
Notes HKD('000) HKD('000)
iz FH#ET FET

Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Bank borrowings RITER 28 546,409 564,249
Loan from non-controlling interests REFIEREZER 43 153,254 153,254
Deferred tax liabilities EREFIEAE 27 87,556 85,930
787,219 803,433
2,167,310 2,469,714

Equity Ew

Share capital e 29 270,575 269,775
Reserves & 32 1,907,242 2,049,360
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ERRHEBANEGES 2,177,817 2,319,135
Non-controlling interests RS (10,507) 150,579
2,167,310 2,469,714

The consolidated financial statements on pages 62 to 206 were BN E2E ZE20608 MiRE W BMERTIBRAR
approved and authorised for issue by the directors on 17 March RIEER2017F3A17B HZ RIFHETIE WA

2017 and are signed on its behalf by: TINEERREE:
Cheng Tun Nei Chan Kar Lee, Gary
BER =
Director Director
= -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

dE DL g
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

B E2016F12A31HILFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
FATHANES
Properties  Investments Share Non-
Share  Contributed Share  revaluation  revaluation options  Translation Statutory Retained controlling
capital surplus premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
WEER RAER Bk FER
k¥ REER RHERE L1 (1} i EREE  EERE  gFRA @t [ 321 @t
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
Fhr FT FET FAT Far Far FAT FhL T Fhr FHL FEL
(Note 29) (Note 32) (Note 32) (Note 32) (Note 32) (Note 32) (Note 32) (Note 32) (Note 32) (Note 43)
(Wi20)  (W&32)  (Wais2)  (Was2)  (W&32)  (WsEs2)  (MHEs2)  (MEs2)  (WfRs2) (Hi343)
At 1 January 2015 #2015%1A1R 266,952 523213 924,998 142374 (14,749) 4,970 38580 - 301,889 2183227 223516 2411743
Profit for the year FEEF - - - - - - - - 180,822 180,822 (24,744) 156,078
Surplus arising on revaluation of NEBHFEL RS

properties - - - 11,19 - - - - - 11,19% 2,953 14,149
Deferred tax liability arising on NEBHFEEL

revaluation of properties ERRBEER - - - (9.953) - - - - - 9953) - (9,953)
Fair value gain on available-for-sale HAEREATERKE

investments - - - - 20,354 - - - - 20,354 - 20,354
Release to profit or loss upon disposal ~ FAHE R E IR AR

of available-for-sale investments AOZRH - - - - (5,605) - - - - (5,605) - (5,605)
Exchange differences arising on BINEBFELEN

tranlation of foreign operations EifEEE - - - - - - (79,038) - - (79,038) (22,201)  (101,239)
Translation reserve released to profit RREAECEAHE

or loss on obtaining control of joint ARZEERELGE

ventures - - - - - - (2,051) - - (2,051) - (2,051)
Reserve released upon disposal of HEHBARABE

subsidiaries BREE - - - - - - 129 - - 129 - 129
Other comprehensive income FEERZERA

for the year - - - 1,243 14,749 - (80,960) - - (64,968) (19,248) (84,216)
Total comprehensive income FERENNEE

for the year - - - 1,243 14749 - (80,960) - 180,822 115,854 (43992) 71,862
Transfer to statutory reserve EEpye- - - - - - - - 2,406 (2,406) - - -
Share-based payments PARRA 3 £ - - - - - 1,666 - - - 1,666 - 1666
Exercise of share options (Note 30) TR BR ARAE (F3E30) 2823 - 11,967 - - (3357) - - - 11433 - 11433
Lapse of share options BRERM - - - - - (1,430) - - 1430 - - -
Acquisition of non-controlling interests WM SRR % - - - - - - 17 - 1938 1,95 (29,806) (27,851)
Disposal of non-controlling interests L E SRR (M 3E44)

(Note 44) - - - - - - - - - - 861 861
At 31 December 2015 M2015%12A318 269,775 523213 936,965 143,617 - 1849 (42,363) 2,406 483673 2319135 150579 2469714
Profit for the year FERF - - - - - - - - 27,746 27,746 (13,701) 14,045
Surplus arising on re-valuation of NEFHFEEC RS

properties - - - 26,620 - - - - - 26,620 2602 29222
Exchange differences arising on BINERAE 8

translation of foreign operations ERfEEE - - - - - - (75,743) - - (75,743) (20,647) (96,390)
Other comprehensive income FEARZERA

for the year - - - 26,620 - - (75,743) - - (49,123) (18,045) (67,168)
Total comprehensive income FERENNEE

for the year - - - 26,620 - - (75,743) - 21,746 (21,377 (31,746) (63,123)
Transfer to statutory reserve - - - - - - - 73 (73) - - -
Capital contribution from

non-controlling interest - - - - - - - - - - 1,668 1,668
Share-based payments MR XA - - - - - 1481 - - - 1481 - 1481
Exercise of share options (Note 30) BB RRE (Fi3E30) 800 - 5,110 - - (1,445) - - - 4,465 - 4,465
Lapse of share options BREAM - - - - - (1,885) - - 1,88 - - -
Acquisition of non-controlling interests Wi SFE IR - - - 216 - - 478 - (72,607) (71913)  (131,008)  (202921)
Dividend paid BARE - - - - - - - - (53,974) (53,974) - (53,974)
At 31 December 2016 #2016%12A318 270,575 523213 942,075 170,453 - - (117,628) 2479 386,650 2177817 (10,507) 2,167,310
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HERENEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HZE2016%F12H31BIEFE
2016 2015
HKD'000 HKD’000
FH#ET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES FEEY
Profit before income tax expenses B TSRS A S 7 30,190 195,053
Adjustments for: A
Interest income FEWA (3,814) (6,719)
Finance costs BERA 18,429 10,965
Share of results of joint ventures HEENEEE (964) 1,757
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME BELSETE 34,779 40,396
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments BNHERIEHH 6,958 7,349
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEWE BE LR
plant and equipment BiR/ (W) 10 2)
Write off of property, plant and equipment ME - BB K EMER 8 4731
Translation reserve released to profit and loss on REUGE & (b R IEHE
obtaining control of joint ventures BOzBHELRE - (2,051)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMNB AR (38) (4,470)
Fair value loss on re-measurement of equity BEHE—ARELEY
interests in a joint venture gz A FEEEBR - 20
Fair value loss on trading securities BEXRAZ AT EEER 1,630 114
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments HEMHEERE K - (5,605)
Increase in fair value of investment properties KEENTFEEEN (20,370) (3,443)
Bad debts written off B sE R 3,362 3,048
Reversal of allowance for inventories, net GFEHERERFE (3,308) (9,998)
Gain on disposal of intangible assets HEEFEENS - (222,497)
Provision of allowance for bad and doubtful debts RZREE 11,874 6,000
Share-based payments PARR 19 2 1+ 1,481 1,666
Operating cash flows before movements in working EEESEHAN
capital KERE R 80,227 16,314
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL,/ () 41,296 (7,079)
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 N H fth JE W B FR3E A0 (31,918) (16,445)
Decrease/(increase) in advances to customers in RETRESRHERFZ
margin financing BB, (Em) 6,394 (75,706)
Decrease/(increase) in loans receivable FEWE TR,/ (Hh0) 287,386 (486,190)
Decrease/(increase) in bank balances and RITHEBR LIRS
cash — held on behalf of customers -REFHE 1,815 (2,321)
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 REMBFAEZRD (9,518) (16,016)
Decrease/(increase) in trading securities BEZERD,/ (#0) 4,076 (6,989)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations TE/ (AR EEERN
Re 379,758 (594,432)
Overseas tax paid BN A (11,413) (13,318)
Hong Kong profits tax paid BAEBFEH (2,720) (1,961)
NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES RE,/ (IR E& E8H
HeF8 365,625 (610,211)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEIRENER

For the year ended 31 December 2016

EHZE2016F12A31AILFE
2016 2015
HKD'000 HKD'000
TERT FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEH
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired e -1il=ING)
(IMBRFAEZRS) 45 - 10,154
Acquisition of joint ventures, net of cash acquired WiEae b
(INBRFAEZRSE) 17 (157,639) -
Advance to loan to an associate ANF—BERFER 18 (5,587) -
Advance to amount due from joint ventures BHRTFREWAZCERE (53,069) -
Payment for acquisition of non-controlling interests sz i 4 B8 JEFR AR A 25 (202,921) (27,851)
Purchase of club debenture BEEMES - (674)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE BELRRE (11,212) (72,112)
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale HE A E RS W
investments - 65,242
Decrease/(increase) in restricted bank deposits TREBITEZRD
(350) 8,557 (8,111)
Interest received B E 3,682 5,703
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEME BE LR ERE
equipment 29 540
Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets HEEREE WG - 286,843
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed of HEHBAF
(HMBEECRE) 44 38 (6,920)
NET CASH (USED IN)/FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  (FI) /KRB R EEE
REFE (418,122) 252,814
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RIEEE
Proceeds from issue of new shares under REERRERT &I 1T
share option scheme it 2 Wz 4,466 11,433
New bank loans obtained EEHBRTER - 275,000
Repayment of bank loans RITEFER (18,000) (2,755)
Repayment to joint ventures EXTAERE - (6,221)
Dividend paid BERRE (53,974) -
Interest paid BAHE (18,429) (10,965)
NET CASH (USED IN)/FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (i) /RERIEEE
ReF# (85,937) 266,492
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS & RIRE&SEWR L FHE (138,434) (90,905)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FNHERBEEEY
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 470,025 562,362
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ~ SMEEXREHHEE R
ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ReSEhzwe (3,123) (1,432)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR, FRBEL&RIFLZEY
REPRESENTED BY BANK BALANCES AND CASH BRITEGRES 328,468 470,025
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL

Symphony Holdings Limited was incorporated in Bermuda
as an exempted company with limited liability and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
The address of the registered office is Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and the principal
place of business of the Company is located on the 10th
Floor of Island Place Tower, 510 King's Road, North Point,
Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Group remain to be provision
of financial services (including securities brokerage, margin
financing, underwriting and placing, consulting and money
lending), property investment and holding, management
and operation of outlet mall in the PRC, trademark rights
licensing and trading and retailing. The principal activities of
the Company's principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 42.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(A) ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSS -
EFFECTIVE 1 JANUARY 2016
The Group has adopted the following amendments
and interpretations, which are relevant to the Group’s
financial statements, for the first time for the current
year’s consolidated financial statements.

HKFRSs (Amendments)  Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16  Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
and HKAS 38 Depreciation and Amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests
in Joint Operations

The adoption of these amendments has no material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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HE2016F12A31HILFE

—BAH

EEEARARIN BRETM L AE
HEAREERAR HRMHNEBEBH SR
SHERAB LM -AARZMPAEER A
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda: E ¥ E& 212 AFHL
AREESIORBENELIOR -

AEETZXBEERREHRSBRE (2
RREARL RECRE BHEEEE &
AREE) MERBERBAEME EER
AN B R RE AR
URBEEMTE -ARA T EME QAN
EREBENME2

FMBEVBRERLN ([FE
At R & 2A])

(A) REFRETEIETEBMBRE
#2A-1A2016F1A1H4ER
REBEDRAFENGEUBHREE
KR T A EBPEREEB
CHEEY-E

ERBBREED 20125 E2014F B2

(BFT%) FREYE
BEGERZEIY REIPN
MERTA
BEGHER BRENEREHL

F16HREE RENE
ERREIER'S

GICEIR
BE G ER BUGHHRR  REA
F2TRAERT R

BAMBREER WEAEXHELL
FURMETR  S5tEE

RS EIATE Y AR B2 B AR
RREREANE -

HUEEHRAE
2016 FE WS 69



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&R O Bif 75 3R ZE Bt 3
For the year ended 31 December 2016

HZE2016F12A31H L FE
2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BNEEBUBREELN([FE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) MsHmEEL]) (8)
(CONTINUED)
(B) NEW/REVISED HKFRSS THAT HAVE BEEN (B) EHEMIEMREKRMIT Eig
ISSUED BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE S EEMBREER
The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant AT AT g BN ES B A B TS sR R B A Y
to the Group’s financial statements, have been issued, el BRI B A RS ERE T
but are not yet effective and have not been early LAREAR 1B MR AER B NEE R R
adopted by the Group. The Group’s current intention BUERAN - NS 18 B BTt AR B 1
is to apply these changes on the date they become RzEEs-
effective.
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative! BAEGEER BEXE

EVL DI CTIR

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses’

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
Share-Based Payment Transactions’

BR G ER RAERBRBART
FIZRMETR  HREE

BAMBREED NMBROHXARHZ
EPS L[ HEN DR E

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments? BENBRELN SMIEA?
£05
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with BEMBREED BRAEORN
Customers? F15%

Amendments to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Clarifications to HKFRS 15F

HKFRS 16 Leases’

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between

BAMBREEDN FPANWA(ER
FIHMEFTR  HBEREE]
R BB )
BRAMBREEN HE
£165
BAMBREEN REFHEBENFN

and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint F105 REE RELEZHEMN
Venture? GEERERY  AELEIFN

BB ET R

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January ! R201741A1H 36,2 1% B 16 19 F JZ Hi &
2017 R

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 RO018F 1A 1H 36,2 1% Fi5 19 F /Z FfE7
2018 ER

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 3 RO019F1A1H 5.2 1 [ 15 19 F JZ R 2]
2019 EH

4 The amendments were originally intended to be effective for K FEEFTRER2016%1 51 A 3,2 4B

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The effective
date has now been deferred/removed. Early application of the
amendments of the amendments continue to be permitted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
EHZE2016F12A318ILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRPNEEVBREEL([FE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs™) B £ER]) (48)
(CONTINUED)

(B) NEW/REVISED HKFRSS THAT HAVE BEEN (B) EMEMIEMKENRBIT EiE

ISSUED BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(CONTINUED)
Amendments to HKAS 7 — Disclosure Initiative

The amendments introduce an additional disclosure
that will enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities.

Amendments to HKAS 12 — Recognition of Deferred
Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments relate to the recognition of
deferred tax assets and clarify some of the necessary
considerations, including how to account for deferred
tax assets related to debt instruments measured of fair
value.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 - Classification and
Measurement of Share-Based Payment Transactions
The amendments provide requirements on the
accounting for the effects of vesting and non-vesting
conditions on the measurement of cash-settled share-
based payments; share-based payment transactions
with a net settlement feature for withholding tax
obligations; and a modification to the terms and
conditions of a share-based payment that changes the
classification of the transaction from cash-settled to
equity-settled.
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2.

72

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

(B) NEW/REVISED HKFRSS THAT HAVE BEEN
ISSUED BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets.
Debt instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows (the business model test) and
that have contractual terms that give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding (the contractual
cash flow characteristics test) are generally measured
at amortised cost. Debt instruments that meet the
contractual cash flow characteristics test are measured
at FVTOCI if the objective of the entity’s business model
is both to hold and collect the contractual cash flows
and to sell the financial assets. Entities may make an
irrevocable election at initial recognition to measure
equity instruments that are not held for trading at
FVTOCI. All other debt and equity instruments are

measured at FVTPL.

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment
model for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL
replacing the incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and
new general hedge accounting requirements to allow
entities to better reflect their risk management activities

in financial statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial
liabilities from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities
designated at FVTPL, where the amount of change
in fair value attributable to change in credit risk of
the liability is recognised in other comprehensive
income unless that would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 retains the
requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition of financial

assets and financial liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
EHZE2016F12A318ILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRPNEBUFREEL ([FE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AR R ZRAI]) (48)
(CONTINUED)

(B) NEW/REVISED HKFRSS THAT HAVE BEEN (B) EiEWE M KRENBIHFT EE

ISSUED BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(CONTINUED)
HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes
existing revenue recognition guidance including HKAS
18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and
related interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps
approach to revenue recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in
the contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

e Step b: Recognise revenue when each

performance obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the current
approach taken under HKFRS. The standard also
significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative
disclosures related to revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE2016F12831BILFE
2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. REWEBUBREER ([FE

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") MEBiREEL]) (&)

(CONTINUED)

(B) NEW/REVISED HKFRSS THAT HAVE BEEN (B) EREMEERENMHFET EE
ISSUED BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE A EBMBREER (F)
(CONTINUED)

Amendments HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts BB R EEREISTHIIETTE —
with Customers (Clarifications to HKFRS 15) EESHIMA (BEEMEIREERE
15552 8%)

e

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications
on identification of performance obligations; application
of principal versus agent; licenses of intellectual
property; and transition requirements.

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will
supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and related
interpretations, introduces a single lessee accounting
model and requires a lessee to recognise assets
and liabilities for all leases with a term of more 12
months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.
Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to
recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right to
use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation of
the right-of use asset and interest on the lease liability,
and also classifies cash repayments of the lease liability
into a principal portion and an interest portion and
presents them in the statement of cash flows. Also,
the right-of-use asset and the lease liability are initially
measured on a present value basis. The measurement
includes non-cancellable lease payments and also
includes payments to be made in optional periods if
the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option to
extend the lease, or to exercise an option to terminate
the lease. This accounting treatment is significantly
different from the lessee accounting for leases that are
classified as operating leases under the predecessor
standard, HKAS 17.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
EHZE2016F12A318ILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRPNEEVBREEL([FE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs™) B £ER]) (48)
(CONTINUED)

(B) NEW/REVISED HKFRSS THAT HAVE BEEN (B) EMEMIEMKENRBIT EiE

ISSUED BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(CONTINUED)
HKFRS 16 - Leases (Continued)

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses
to be recognised when an entity sells or contributes
assets to its associate or joint venture. When the
transaction involves a business the gain or loss is
recognised in full, conversely when the transaction
involves assets that do not constitute a business the
gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the
unrelated investors’ interests in the joint venture or
associate.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments, new
standards and new interpretations is expected to be in
the period of initial application and the directors are not
yet in a position to quantify the effects on the Group’s
financial statements.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

76

(A)

(B)

€

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as
the “HKFRSs”) and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for
certain properties and financial instruments, which are
measured at fair values as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION
CURRENCY

In prior years, the directors regarded United States
dollars (“USD”) as the functional currency of the
Company. However, following the acquisitions of
various new businesses, and disposed of various old
businesses in recent years, the transactions arising
from the day to day operating, investing and financing
activities of the Company and a number of its major
group entities have increasingly been based on Hong
Kong dollars. As such, effective from 1 January 2016,
the Company has changed its functional currency from
USD to HKD. The change in functional currency of
the Company was applied prospectively from the date
of change in accordance with HKAS 21 “The Effect
of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rate”, and has no
material impact on the Company’s financial statements
as HKD is pegged to USD. The consolidated financial
statements continue to be presented in HKD.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(A)

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND BASIS OF
CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”). Inter-company transactions
and balances between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the dates
of acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted
for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the
Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at
acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured
at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains
or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group
may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to
measure the non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary either
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless
they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which
case the costs are deducted from equity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

78

(CONTINUED)

(A) BUSINESS COMBINATION AND BASIS OF

CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration are
recognised against goodwill only to the extent that
they arise from new information obtained within the
measurement period (a maximum of 12 months
from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. FEERTBR (&)

(B) SUBSIDIARIES (B) KMIBAT

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements are
present: power over the investee, exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from the investee, and the ability to
use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate
that there may be a change in any of these elements of
control.

De-facto control exists in situations where the Company
has the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee without holding the majority of the
voting rights. In determining whether de-facto control
exists the Company considers all relevant facts and
circumstances, including:

° The size of the Company’s voting rights relative to
both the size and dispersion of other parties who
hold voting rights;

° Substantive potential voting rights held by the
Company and other parties who hold voting
rights;

° Other contractual arrangements; and

° Historic patterns in voting attendance.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
EHZE2016F12A31AILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

€

80

JOINT ARRANGEMENTS

The Group is a party to a joint arrangement where
there is a contractual arrangement that confers joint
control over the relevant activities of the arrangement
to the Group and at least one other party. Joint control
is assessed under the same principles as control over
subsidiaries.

The Group classifies its interests in joint arrangements
as either:

° Joint ventures: where the Group has rights to
only the net assets of the joint arrangement; or

° Joint operations: where the Group has both the
rights to assets and obligations for the liabilities of
the joint arrangement.

In assessing the classification of interests in joint
arrangements, the Group considers:

The structure of the joint arrangement;

° The legal form of joint arrangements structured
through a separate vehicle;

° The contractual terms of the joint arrangement
agreement; and

° Any other facts and circumstances (including
any other contractual arrangements).

The Group accounts for its interests in joint ventures
in the same manner as investments in associates (i.e.
using the equity method — see note 4(d)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(9]

(D)

JOINT ARRANGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Any premium paid for an investment in a joint venture
above the fair value of the Group’s share of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
acquired is capitalised and included in the carrying
amount of the investment in joint venture. Where there
is objective evidence that the investment in a joint
venture has been impaired the carrying amount of the
investment is tested for impairment in the same way as
other non-financial assets.

The Group accounts for its interests in joint operations
by recognising its share of assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses in accordance with its contractually
conferred rights and obligations.

The Company’s interests in joint ventures are stated
at cost less impairment losses, if any. Results of joint
ventures are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.

ASSOCIATES

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but not control or joint control
over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and
thereafter, their carrying amount are adjusted for the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition change in the
associates’ net assets except that losses in excess of
the Group’s interest in the associate are not recognised
unless there is an obligation to make good those
losses.

€
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
EHZE2016F12A31AILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

82

(D) ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

(E)

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate.
The investor's share in the associate’s profits and
losses resulting from these transactions is eliminated
against the carrying value of the associate. Where
unrealised losses provide evidence of impairment of
the asset transferred they are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value
of the Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and
included in the carrying amount of the associate.
Where there is objective evidence that the investment
in an associate has been impaired, the carrying
amount of the investment is tested for impairment in
the same way as other non-financial assets.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are carried at cost less
impairment losses, if any. The results of associates
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable during the year.

GOODWILL

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and
liabilities exceed the aggregation of the fair value of
consideration paid, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition date fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree, the excess is recognised in profit or loss
on the acquisition date, after re-assessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
EHZE2016F12A318ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. FEERTBR (&)

(E) GOODWILL (CONTINUED) (E) P& (48)

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating
unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets that
generates cash inflows that are largely independent
of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of
assets. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually, by
comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable
amount (see note 4(s)) and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial
year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end
of that financial year. When the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit
pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount to each
asset in the unit. However, the loss allocated to each
asset will not reduce the individual asset’s carrying
amount to below its fair value less cost of disposal
(if measurable) or its value in use (if determinable),
whichever is the higher. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised in profit or loss and is not
reversed in subsequent periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&R O Bif 75 3R ZE Bt 3

For the year ended 31 December 2016
EHZE2016F12A31AILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

84

(CONTINUED)

(F) REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and is net of
estimated customer returns, discounts and sales
related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised on transfers
of risks and rewards of ownership, which is at the time
that goods are delivered and title has passed.

Service income is recognised when services are
provided.

Commission income is recognised when the services
on which the commissions are earned are provided in
accordance with the agreed terms.

Royalty income is recognised on an accrual basis
in accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreements, which is in general on a straight-line basis
over the life of the agreements.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease, except for contingent rental income which is
recognised when it arises.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Brokerage commission is recognised on a trade date
basis when the relevant transactions are executed.

Underwriting fee and placing fee are recognised
as income in accordance with the terms of the
underwriting and placing agreements or deal
mandate when the relevant significant acts have been
completed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
EHZE2016F12A318ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. FEERTBR (&)

(G) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (G) Y% -HBERRE

Owner-occupied leasehold land and buildings are
stated at valuation less accumulated depreciation.
Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ
materially from that which would be determined using
fair values at the end of the reporting period. Increases
in value arising on revaluation are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of properties revaluation reserve.
Decreases in value arising on revaluation are first offset
against increases on earlier valuations in respect of
the same property and thereafter recognised in profit
or loss. Any subsequent increases are recognised in
profit or loss up to the amount previously charged and
thereafter to the properties revaluation reserve.

Upon disposal, the relevant portion of the revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is
released from the properties revaluation reserve to
retained profits.

Other property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. FEERTBRK (&)

(G) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

@) ¥ BMERRE(R)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s HIgWRANESRNEZIEEBBARR
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, AR F N 23 R Be ]\ZIK’E@ i 5% 18

BARARBER SEEF EMIBER Tat AE
ENREE RS- RBLEE
(@) - AR E D M REEE

as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured

reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is IEHER-FIBHMBEE RRERESE
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are BT ERFE MR B 3 N AR S 18
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the o

financial period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to Y BB MRS EENE AR E A

write off their cost or valuation net of expected residual
value over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis. The useful lives, residual value and depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at

FHEREREITE U EKA L
e (FORRTEA FIBREE) #EH - &
BEHR AEREH MHEER
FELETUAENNAR (WES)

the end of each reporting period.

ME- -BELREBOFEFENT:

The annual depreciation rates of property, plant and
equipment are as follows:

Leasehold land in Hong Kong Shorter of useful lives and REENTE L o 5 A H e 5
the remaining lease term HEFHNBEE

Buildings Shorter of useful lives and BT ERFHRESR
the remaining lease term HEFHNREE

Leasehold improvements Shorter of useful lives and HEMEEE AERFEREIR
the remaining lease term HEFHNEEE

Plant and machinery 9% - 45% 5 Rk 9%—45%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 9% — 20% BRE FBRZHE 9%—20%

Motor vehicles 16% - 20% HE 16%—20%

Vessel 10% & 10%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(&)

(H)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed
as evidenced by an end of own-er-occupation, any
difference between the carrying amount and the fair
value of that item at the date of transfer is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
properties revaluation reserve. On the subsequent
sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant revaluation
reserve will be transferred directly to retained profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceed and the carrying amount of
the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

An item of property, plant and equipment is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount if its
carrying amount is higher than the asset's estimated
recoverable amount.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are properties held either
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or for
both, but not held for sale in the ordinary course of
business, use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. Investment
property is measured at cost on initial recognition and
subsequently at fair value with any change therein
recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group holds property interests under an
operating lease to earn rental income, the Group
classifies and accounts for these property interests as
investment properties.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

88

(H)

)]

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at their fair values using the fair
value model, unless they are still in the course of
construction or development at reporting date and their
fair value cannot be reliably determined at that time.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment property are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

If an investment property becomes an item of property,
plant and equipment because its use has changed as
evidenced by commencement of owner-occupation,
the property’s deemed cost for subsequent accounting
is its fair value at the date of change in use.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the investment property (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

LEASING

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on the straight-line basis
over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

LEASING (CONTINUED)

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,
except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they
are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised
as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis, except where another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.

Leasehold land and buildings

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification of each
element as a finance or an operating lease separately
based on the assessment as to whether substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each
element have been transferred to the Group, unless
it is clear that both elements are operating leases in
which case the entire lease is classified as an operating
lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are
allocated between the land and the building elements
in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building element of
the lease at the inception of the lease.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

90

)]

@)

LEASING (CONTINUED)
Leasehold land and buildings (Continued)
To the extent the allocation of the lease payments

can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that

is accounted for as an operating lease is presented

as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated

statement of financial position and is amortised over

the lease term on a straight-line basis except for those

that are classified and accounted for as investment

properties under the fair value model.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN
GOODWILL)

(i)

Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair
value at the date of acquisition. Subsequently,
intangible assets with finite useful lives are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses and
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses.

Trademarks

The trademarks are the intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives that are carried at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. The
trademarks have been granted for periods
ranging between 7 to 15 years by the relevant
government agency with the option of renewal
when expire. The trademarks may be renewed
indefinitely at little or no cost to the Group.
The Group intends to renew the trademarks
indefinitely and evidence support its ability to do
so. As a result, the trademarks are assessed as
having indefinite useful lives.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

J)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN

GOODWILL) (CONTINUED)

(i)  Impairments
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
tested for impairment annually, irrespective of
whether there is any indication that they may
be impaired. Intangible assets are tested for
impairment by comparing their carrying amounts
with their recoverable amounts (see note 4(s)).

If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount;
however, the carrying amount should not be
increased above the lower of its recoverable
amount and the carrying amount that would have
resulted had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. All reversals are
recognised in the profit or loss immediately.

(K) FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined.

)

(K)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

92

(CONTINUED)

(K) FOREIGN CURRENCIES (CONTINUED)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise, except for exchange differences
arising on a monetary item that forms part of the
Company’s net investment in a foreign operation, in
which case, such exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity and will be reclassified from equity to profit or
loss on disposal of the foreign operation. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss
for the period except for exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect
of which gains and losses are recognised directly in
other comprehensive income, in which cases, the
exchange differences are also recognised directly in
other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group's foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HKD) at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period, and their income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that year,
in which case the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity (translation reserve).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. FEERTBR (&)

(K) FOREIGN CURRENCIES (CONTINUED) (K) 5phEs(48)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal
of an interest in a joint arrangement or an assoicate
that includes a foreign operation, of which the retained
interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss. In addition, in relation
to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests
and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates
or joint arrangements that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence or joint control), the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign
operation on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as
assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in the translation reserve.

PEBINERR (B EREEFI
B2 EER S REEREN
B 2 F R B B A B i B B e Sk 4
RN EERBSIITEBHN K
Rl BEsk B & A RIS - ERIRE
Buh—HeMEE) BHAQAE
BABEZEBR RN EROTAE
REFEFDEZEZ I WED
MHEHRB AR REBAEEIEL
ST RO B N B B0 12 4 - BIHREE B
2B EEET ORI RE
m BT ERIERER AT A H A
HorEms (B s LEHE QT
AT BEERKAERAELEKR

FENE) RO REERZE
%Ei%ﬁ DIEEETE-

20051 A1 A bAT% - BB I
BEENBBETETHNEENR
BRAFEERARTEIEBZEINE
i‘%E’JEF&E% ' iﬁ%%&iﬁﬁﬂim
RITERETRE EERERLERE
EE@ER%%M&%M

HUEEHRAE
2016 FEHE 93



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&R O Bif 75 3R ZE Bt 3F

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B ZE2016F12A31AILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

94

(L)

(M)

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(i)  Short term employee benefits
Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that
are expected to be settled wholly before twelve
months after the end of the annual reporting
period in which the employees render the
related service. Short term employee benefits
are recognised in the year when the employees
render the related service.

(i)  Defined contribution retirement plans
Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss when the services are rendered by the
employees.

(iii)  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier

of when the Group can no longer withdraw the

offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(N)

INCOME TAX
Income tax expenses represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before
income tax expenses” as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affect neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

96

(N)

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and joint ventures, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to
items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(N)

0

(P)

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax (Continued)

An exception to the general requirement on
determining the appropriate tax rate used in measuring
deferred tax amount is when an investment property
is carried at fair value under HKAS 40 “Investment
Property”.
deferred tax amounts on these investment properties

Unless the presumption is rebutted, the

are measured using the tax rates that would apply on
sale of these investment properties at their carrying
amounts at the reporting date. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all the economic benefits
embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale.

CLUB DEBENTURE
Club debenture are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment loss.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost
is calculated using the weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

98

(CONTINUED)

(Q) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

(i)  Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at
initial recognition, depending on the purpose
for which the asset was acquired. The Group’s
financial assets are classified into the categories
of financial assets as fair value through profit
or loss and loans and receivables. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

These assets include financial assets held for
trading. Financial assets are classified as held
for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
sale in the near term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(Q) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments, of which
interest income is excluded in net gains or
losses.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including amount due from joint
ventures, loan to non-controlling interest, trade
and other receivables, advances to customers
in margin financing, loans receivable, restricted
bank deposits and bank balances and cash)
are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).

(i)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(Q) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

100

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair
value through profit and loss, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of the
reporting period. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

For all financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or counterparty;

° breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest and principal
payments;

o it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(Q) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such
as trade and loans receivables, assets that
are assessed not to be impaired individually
are subsequently assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period of 60 to 90 days, observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of trade,
loans and other receivables and advances
to customers in margin financing, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade, loan or other
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(Q) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

102

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised
cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment losses was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified according to
the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.

Symphony Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016

4. FEEFTBR (&)

(Q =MIA(H)

(i) EHEE(F)
BRI BHER AT ENERE
B QA E 1R B OB B BT R R
D MR BERREERIER
AEEMFETERE  BZA
EHRANBREEREBRRE
Bl - HEEEREEDRE B AR
T & B S B A8 fim 0 8 FE RRUR
B EY#E SH R A o

(i) ZHMERRKEIR
SEERBETHNERABERK
ARTATDRBFRETZINEAR
BHARkERAEBELRBRATA
FIEFR MDA

BRATAZERARXRERNEE
(R FE B ER) B FIERE
sEAERIE L

BERFFL
ERMNELARTECRAEE
AR RAFBRADBEERE
FAHAR A — T 0% - BRI R 2
BERUFERESERAEE
ERFESR (HWER 858
Hif) o fhat B IR IR & Wt B 1
MBREFREENN K-

SRS AB BRI R EAERER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(Q) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(i)

(iii)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the
liabilities were incurred, as liabilities measured
at amortised cost including trade and other
payables, bank borrowings and loan from non-
controlling interests. They are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the assets
expire or, the financial assets are transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(R) SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

104

Where share options are awarded to employees and
others providing similar services, the fair value of the
options at the date of grant is recognised in profit
or loss over the vesting period with a corresponding
increase in the share options reserve within equity.
Non-market vesting conditions are taken into account
by adjusting the number of equity instruments
expected to vest at the end of each reporting period
so that, ultimately, the cumulative amount recognised
over the vesting period is based on the number of
options that eventually vest. Market vesting conditions
are factored into the fair value of the options granted.
As long as all other vesting conditions are satisfied,
a charge is made irrespective of whether the market
vesting conditions are satisfied. The cumulative
expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve a market
vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the
options, measured immediately before and after the
modification, is also recognised in profit or loss over the
remaining vesting period.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at the fair
value of the goods or services received, except where
the fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in which
case they are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments granted, measured at the date the Group
obtains the goods or the counterparty renders the
services. The fair value of goods or services received is
recognised in profit or loss unless the goods or services
qualify for recognition as assets. A corresponding
increase in equity is recognised. For cash-settled share
based payments, a liability is recognised for the goods
or services acquired, measured initially at the fair value
of the liability. At the end of each reporting period until
the liability is settled, and at the date of settlement,
the fair value of the liability is remeasured, with any
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(S)

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (OTHER THAN
FINANCIAL ASSETS)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of the following assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

° property, plant and equipment under cost model;

° prepaid lease payments;

° investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associate; and

° club debenture

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use) of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash
flows expected to be derived from the asset or cash
generating unit (see note 4(e)), discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset or cash generating
unit.

(S)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(M

(V)

106

PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which will probably result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reasonably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised as revenue in
profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants whose
primary condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred revenue in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit
or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the
useful lives of the related assets. Government grants
that are receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(V) RELATED PARTIES

(a)

A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(iii)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees of the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(V) RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)

(b)  (Continued)

(vii)

(viii)

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those

family members who may be expected to influence, or

be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity and include:

(ii)

that person’s children and spouse or domestic

partner;

children of that person’s spouse or domestic

partner; and

dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the

Directors are required to make judgements, estimates and

assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on

historical experience and other factors that are considered to

be relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.

108
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

(A) CRITICAL JUDGMENTS IN APPLYING

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(i)  Classification between investment properties
and owner-occupied properties
The Group has developed criteria which require
judgements to determine whether a property
qualifies as an investment property. Investment
property is a property held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property
generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by the Group. Owner-
occupied properties generate cash flows that are
attributable not only to property but also to other
assets used and service provided. If an entity
provides ancillary services to the occupants of a
property it holds, an entity treats such a property
as investments property only if the services are
insignificant to the arrangement as a whole.

Included in the Group’s prepaid lease payments
and buildings of approximately HKD240,830,000
and HKD304,253,000 (2015: HK$261,407,000
and HK$319,634,000) are the land and building
portions, respectively, of an outlet mall in the
PRC. Based on the mode of operation of the
outlet mall, in particular, that income earned is
largely dependent on the performance of the
retail business of the occupants and the Group
has the power to make significant operating and
financing decisions regarding the operation of
the Property, management is of the opinion that
the Property is in the nature of owner-occupied
properties under existing use for accounting
purposes.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(A) CRITICAL JUDGMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

110

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Income and other taxes

The Group is subject to income and other
taxes in a number of jurisdictions. Significant
judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. Transactions and
calculations may exist for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the tax
and deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused
tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies.

Trademarks

The trademarks have been registered for periods
ranging between 7 to 15 years by the relevant
government agency with the option of renewal
when expire. The trademarks may be renewed
indefinitely at little or no cost to the Group.
The Group intends to renew the trademarks
indefinitely and evidence support its ability to do
so. As a result, the trademarks are assessed as
having indefinite useful lives.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(A) CRITICAL JUDGMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

)

Determination of control of subsidiaries and
Jjoint arrangements

Judgement is required to determine when
the Group has control of subsidiaries or joint
control of joint arrangements. This requires
an assessment of the relevant activities and
when the decisions in relation to those activities
are under the control of the Group or require
unanimous consent.

Judgement is also required in determining the
classification of a joint arrangement between
a joint venture or a joint operation through an
evaluation of the rights and obligations arising
from the arrangement.

Differing conclusions around these judgements,
may materially impact how these businesses
are presented in the consolidated financial
statements — under the full consolidation
method, equity method or proportionate
consolidation method.

)
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(B) KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year:

(i)  Impairment of interests in joint ventures

The determination of whether interests in joint
ventures are impaired requires an estimation
of the share of the Group’s present value of
the estimated future cash flows expected to
be generated by the joint ventures and the
proceeds on ultimate disposal of the interests,
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. Adequate impairment
loss had been recognised to the extent that the
recoverable amounts exceed the carrying amount
of the interests in joint ventures.

(i)  Fair value measurement
A number of assets and liabilities included in the
Group'’s consolidated financial statements require
measurement at, and/or disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s
consolidated financial and non-financial
assets and liabilities utilises market observable
inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs
used in determining fair value measurements
are categorised into different levels based
on how observable the inputs used in the
valuation technique utilised are (the “fair value
hierarchy”):
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HZE2016F12A31H LFE
5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 5. EEEHHENRGFIAHABEEE
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION BIEERIE(F)
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)
(B) KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION (B) fhstAEABIAREERIR
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED) (#8)
(ii)  Fair value measurement (Continued) (i) L FEEZE(4E)
o Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for o [E 41 -8RI B 5 E 8
identical items (unadjusted); MIZHRE (RIEFAR)
o Level 2: Observable direct or indirect o [E#2 - B EE ] 8
inputs other than Level 1 inputs; 2y A\ BE (T RIERE
Wl ABUE)
e  Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not o EAI:TAHEEMEHA
derived from market data). HE (AT IEREMHE
B) -
The classification of an item into the above levels IBER LEMERNDEIRE
is based on the lowest level of the inputs used R AMEZIEE 2 A FEE
that has a significant effect on the fair value FEBEARATENBAREDN
measurement of the item. Transfers of items HIRERMEE - BEEEHRZHE
between levels are recognised in the period they BB RS P 25 A BRI AR o
occur.
The Group measures a number of items at fair REEAAFEBEFTZEUNTIA
value: H:
e  land and buildings within property, plant e WE WMEMREETH
and equipment (Note 13); T REF (HFEL3) :
e Investment properties (Note 14); o REWZE (MiEl4)
e Trading securities (Note 24); and o EBEEFHSF(MWiE24) K
o Financial instruments (Note 34) o  HET A (KMIE34)
For more detailed information in relation to the RLEMIEE A FEBETENE
fair value measurement of the items above, — G BB EEN -

please refer to the applicable notes.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(B) KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)
(iii)  Provision for inventories

114

(iv)

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of
inventories at each reporting date to determine
whether the inventories are carried at lower of
cost and net realisable value in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in Note 4(p).
Management estimates the net realisable value
based on the current market situation and
historical experience on similar inventories. Any
change in the assumptions would increase or
decrease the amount of inventories write-down or
the related reversals of write-down and affect the
Group's profit and net asset value.

Trademarks

Trademarks that are acquired through
business combination are capitalised on the
consolidated statement of financial position.
These trademarks are valued on acquisition
using a discounted cash flow methodology and
the Company’s directors make assumptions
and estimates regarding future revenue growth,
prices, marketing costs and economic factors
in valuing them. These assumptions reflect the
directors’ best estimates but these estimates
involve inherent uncertainties, which may not be
controlled by the directors.

Symphony Holdings Limited
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(iii)

(iv)
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(B) KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)
(iv) Trademarks (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR O B FE 3R X Bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2016
EZE2016F12A318ILFE

5. FEEFIETRMETTHBEER
BIEZRIE (48)

(B) AT FHAMERMERRE
(&)

(iv) EH (&)

Upon acquisition the directors assess the useful
economic life of the trademarks. In arriving at
the conclusion that a trademark has an indefinite
life, the directors consider the fact that the Group
is expected to hold and support the trademarks
for an indefinite period, through spending on
consumer marketing and promotional support,
which is deducted in arriving at revenue. The
trademarks are established over many years
and continue to provide considerable economic
benefits. The directors also consider factors such
as the Group’s ability to continue to protect the
legal rights that arise from these trademarks
indefinitely or the absence of any regulatory,
economic or competitive factors that could
truncate their lives.

A strategic decision to withdraw marketing
support from trademarks or the weakening
trademarks’ appeal through changes in
customer preferences might result in the
directors concluding that the trademarks’ lives
had become finite. Were intangible assets to
be assigned a definite life, a charge would be
recorded that would reduce reported profit
from operations and reduce the value of the
assets reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

RUGER  EFHEIE 2 ERF
HETTRHE - REBEZEAR T
MEFHzERKE EFAR
A& EFEHR T T RSB
ROBBEEMS REHI R
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FARFHZERRZIER - %
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
B ZE2016F12A31AILFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 5. FEGHHETRG&TTHABEE

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(B) KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(v) Impairment of trade and other receivables
The Group estimates the impairment allowances
for trade and other receivables by assessing
the recoverability based on credit history and
prevailing market conditions. This requires the
use of estimates and judgements. Allowances
are applied to trade and other receivables where
events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the balances may not be collectible. Where
the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will affect the carrying
amounts of trade and other receivables and
thus the impairment loss in the period in which
such estimate is changed. The Group reassesses
the impairment allowances at the end of each
reporting period.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the chief operating decision-maker,
being the directors of the Company, for the purpose of
resources allocation and performance assessment focuses
specifically on the assessment of operating performance
in each operating unit, which is the basis upon which the
Group is organised. Each operating unit is distinguished
based on types of goods or services delivered or provided.
No operating segments identified by the chief operating
decision-maker have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group. Financial information on
segment results and segment assets are regularly provided
to the chief operating decision maker while no information of
segment liabilities is provided.

1 1 6 Symphony Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The Group’s reportable and operating segments under
HKFRS 8 are as follows:

- Retailing and sourcing — retailing and provision of
sourcing services for branded apparel, swimwear and

accessories;

- Branding — development and management of “PONY”
brand;

- Property investment and holding;
- Outlet malls;
- Financial services; and

- Duty free.

6.

#7RE B B R bt 51

For the year ended 31 December 2016
EZE2016F12A318ILFE
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(A)

118

SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS

The following is an analysis of the Group'’s revenue and

results by reportable segment:

6. SEREAE (&)

(A) SHMEXRFERES

AT B RED B2 AKEE
ESEYE S Paliik

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE20165F12A31HILEE
Property
Retailing investment Financial
and sourcing Branding  and holding  Outlet malls services Duty free  Consolidated
MERER
FEERE KR RAME BISHRE SRR RBER o]
(Note)
(BaE)
HKD('000) HKD('000) HKD('000) HKD('000) HKD('000) HKD('000) HKD('000)
FET FiER THET FHET TR TER FET
REVENUE BRE
External sales #HIMEE 131,114 39,561 36,245 29,719 119,592 7,625 363,856
Inter-segment sales DHEEE - - 2,912 - - - 2,912
131,114 39,561 39,157 29,719 119,592 7,625 366,768
Segment profit/(loss) FEEF/ (BR) 2,554 8,969 35,176 (37,021) 51,396 (11,507) 49,567
Unallocated income RABBA
— Interest income —FIEBHA 3,814
- Others —Htb 498
Central administrative costs ‘:F %ﬁEﬁZ&K (24,653)
Share of results of joint REREXE
ventures 964
Profit before income tax BRETEREZ AR
expenses 30,190
Note: Kzt
The revenue from outlet malls @%iﬁﬁﬁ/‘*ﬂw&%
segment is analysed as AT
follows:
Gross revenue from e EHEEERA
concessionaire sales 252,446
Commission income from R EHEMRGRE KA
concessionaire sales

Symphony Holdings Limited
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(A)

SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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6. SEREAF (&)

(A) HEHMEXRFERES (&)

(CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE2015F12A31H IHFE
Property
Retailing investment Financial
and sourcing and holding  Outlet malls services Duty free  Consolidated
MERER
TEARE REME BISRE SRR RBER e
(Note)
(BsE)
HKD('000) HKD('000) HKD('000) HKD('000) HKD('000) HKD('000)
FHET TET FET FiET TER FET
REVENUE -3
External sales HIMNEE 155,267 34,042 38,830 92,868 5,169 351,067
Inter-segment sales HEbEHEE - 1,872 - - - 1,872
155,267 35914 38,880 92,868 5,169 352,939
Segment profit/(loss) PEEF/ (BE) 24,663 23,506 (63,341) 58,720 (13,592) 223,894
Unallocated income RABEKA
~ Interest income —FIEMA 6,719
— Translation reserve —REVGA E R EET
released to profit or loss FRRZERZ
on obtaining control of 2R
joint ventures 2,051
— Gain on disposal of ~HEMBARIKE
subsidiaries 155
— Other —Hib 1,011
Central administrative costs HRITHAR (37,020)
Share of results of joint HRErEXE
ventures (1,757)
Profit before income tax WA R AR
eXpenses 195,053
Note: st
The revenue from outlet malls B SR BB AIULA
segment is analysed as AHWT:
follows:
Gross revenue from R EHEE BRI
concessionaire sales 263,601
Commission income from RTEEEMSRSBA
concessionaire sales 38,880

Segment profit/(loss) represents the profit earned or

the loss incurred by each segment without allocation
of central administrative costs, interest income,
translation reserve released to profit or loss on
obtaining control of joint ventures, gain on disposal
of subsidiaries, and share of results of joint ventures.
Such segment result is reported to the chief operating
decision-maker for the purpose of resources allocation
and performance assessment.

DEEN, (IR BE D HMEEN TR
TTERARA KB IRA - RIS & BB EIZH
RO EEa 2L FEE DEHEBAR
Wam kb aEbEXENBERTARIRZ
mMEEENEBEIR- BRSO BEEI2
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. HEEH(EF)
(B) SEGMENT ASSETS (B) SEEE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets by AT AERESBETNAEEE
reportable segment: EDH:
Segment assets SEEE
2016 2015
HKD('000) HKD('000)
TFHET FET
Retailing and sourcing TEHERE 47,335 85,781
Branding mh R HE 151,002 159,169
Property investment and holding MERERFEBEME 1,480,837 1,463,242
Outlet malls B FEHR 583,560 622,362
Financial services © B AR 75 547,123 867,921
Duty free RIETE 15,443 18,324
Total segment assets DEEELE 2,825,300 3,216,799
Unallocated IOk 569,876 507,814
Consolidated assets HRAEEE 3,395,176 3,724,613
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance AUERDERREND IR EER
and allocating resources between segments, all BRRe /JL\%ZEE”' CERTHMETCE E

assets are allocated to reportable segments other

than interests in joint ventures, loan to an associate,

amount due from joint ventures, loan to non-controlling

interests, deferred tax assets, club debenture,

restricted bank deposits and bank balances and cash.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. FEREHE (F)

(C) OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION (C) HithomEEH
For the year ended 31 December 2016 H=F2016F12A31HILEE
Property
Retailing investment Financial
and sourcing Branding  and holding  Outlet malls services Duty free  Consolidated
MERER
TEARE KR REME BERE SRR RBER &8
HKD('000) HKD('000) HKD('000) HKD('000) HKD('000) HKD('000) HKD('000)
FET FiET TER FiET FiET TER FET
Amounts included in the A ESEET
measure of segment profit/ (BE)IDHEEN
(loss) or segment assets: HE:
Capital expenditure (Note) BARX (f1:) 2,628 8 619 7,723 12 222 11,212
Depreciation of property, plant  #1% + BiE Rk {EH &
and equipment 3,508 378 8,896 17,978 528 3,491 34,779
Amortisation of prepaid lease ~ TEf T8 € FIBH
payments - - - 6,958 - - 6,958
Increase in fair value of REMEATEEEM
investment properties - - 20,370 - - - 20,370
Provision of allowance for bad ~ RIEFEREH A G
and doubtful debts - 3,874 - - 8,000 - 11,874
Reversal of allowance for FERERRD FE
inventories, net 1,517 1,408 - - - 383 3,308
Interest income FlSMA - - - - 89,924 - 89,924
Interest expense FEM% - - 18,429 - - - 18,429
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b, 4| = =
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. SEREH (&)
(C) OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION (C) Hpsm#p&EH (&)
(CONTINUED) BE2015% 124318 LF &
For the year ended 31 December 2015
Property
Retailing investment Financial
and sourcing Branding  and holding  Outlet malls services Duty free  Consolidated
MERER
TERRE Mg R BENE RS SEMRS RHES A
HKD('000) HKD('000) HKD('000) HKD('000) HKD('000) HKD('000) HKD('000)
T TR FiEn TiEx T THET TR
Amounts included in the A EDET
measure of segment profit/ (BB)ILBEEM
(loss) or segment assets: P
Capital expenditure (Note) BRRX () 3,904 329 33,042 24,592 2993 7,252 72,112
Depreciation of property, plant  #1% B Rk &H7E
and equipment 3,103 386 7,674 25,385 413 3,435 40,396
Amortisation of prepaid lease  TA & SR IB# 4
payments - - - 7,349 - - 7,349
Increase in fair value of BREMEATEBELEM
investment properties - - 3,443 - - - 3,443
Provision of allowance for bad ~ RSZFR &K &/
and doubtful debts - 6,000 - - - - 6,000
Reversall(provision) of BEERER/ (BE)
allowance for inventories, FE
net 9,990 1,135 - - - (1,127) 9,998
Gain on disposal of intangible 5 & E & E Rz
assets - 222,497 - - - - 222,497
Interest income FSHA - - - - 63,902 - 63,902
Interest expense FIEHX - - 10,965 - - - 10,965
Note: Capital expenditure includes additions to property, plant and Wit : BRRIZBEAEME BEREE-
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equipment.

Symphony Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2016



6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(D) GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION
The Group’s revenue from external customers by

(E)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#7RE B B R bt 51

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE20165F12A31H ILFE

6. SEREAF (&)

geographical location of the delivery destinations

and information about its non-current assets by

geographical location of the assets are detailed below:

(D) HEZFE

AEEBINBEFPHIRAIREXE D
it DB REIFRBDEEEHLE
EMER D ENFHITOT

Revenue from
external customers

Non-current assets
located (Note (i)

BiMBEERBA kREEERER (F1710))
2016 2015 2016 2015
HKD('000) HKD('000) HKD('000) HKD('000)
TERT TAL FTERT AL
The People’s Republic of China AR LA 190,118 220,944 1,512,315 1,607,197
Taiwan ag 7,625 5,169 5,146 8,307
Hong Kong (Place of domicile) a5 (REH) 126,553 100,113 506,181 478,101
United States of America %M 7,029 905 - -
Other Asia countries (Note (7)) HebTMER (Az0)) 26,781 23,189 - -
Others (Note (i)) i (H50)) 5,750 747 146,676 147,047
363,856 351,067 2,170,318 2,240,652

Notes: Hiat -

0) The geographical information for the revenue attributed to (i) ERNERERERNKAR S BES

each country is not available and the cost to capture such

information would be excessive.

(ii) Non-current assets exclude deferred tax assets, restricted bank

deposit, interests in joint ventures and loan to an associate.

INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS

(E)

No revenue from transactions with a single external

customer amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s

revenue subsisted during the year ended 31 December

2016 and 2015.

51| £ {8 B 2 PR A5 MR A RO BB [ B Y o

(i) FEBEETREELHELE TR
HIBITERC A BE MR RER
FH BT R -

AFRAEEEFRAH

#H E2016%F &2015F12H318 IEF
B BELAREIILEFPIRS
WAE R E BB TF L EFRI0%BKIA
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
B ZE2016F12A31AILFE

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BAERE
2016 2015
HKD('000) HKD('000)
TFHET T
Interest on bank borrowings RITEKA B 18,429 10,965
Bank borrowings amounting to HK$173,082,000 (2015: A E173,082,000%8 5t (20154
HK$173,002,000) are repayable within one year. 173,002,000/ 7T ) K IRITE R AR —F R
8iE -
8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 8. Fi{¥HixZH
The amount of income tax expenses in the consolidated REEERERANMERY HE%E:
statement of comprehensive income represents:
2016 2015
HKD('000) HKD('000)
TFHET T T
Current tax AHABIE
Hong Kong BB
— Profits tax —FEH
— current year —REEZ (6,084) (11,660)
— over provision in prior years — BT FERBEEE 49 -
Other jurisdictions HAi R AR
— Enterprise income tax —TEMER
— current year —KRFEE (2,852) (6,818)
— under provision in prior years —BEFEREEE 47) (5,081)
— Other —HAtp
— current year —REE (1,015) (4,869)
(9,949) (28,428)
Deferred tax EERIE
— current year —REEF (6,196) (10,547)
Income tax expenses FriS®i s i (16,145) (38,975)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

HONG KONG TAX
Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits for both years.

PRC TAX

All group companies operating in the PRC are subject to
the applicable tax rate of 25% during the years ended 31
December 2016 and 2015, except for an acquired subsidiary
incorporated in Hong Kong and engaged in property
investment in the PRC, which is subject to the applicable tax
rate of 10% on its gross rental income earned in the PRC,
based on the existing legislation, interpretation and practices
in respect thereof.

Up to the date of these financial statements, the above
acquired subsidiary has not filed the tax returns for corporate
income tax in the PRC in respect of its income derived
from the PRC. The PRC tax authority has the right to levy
penalty for late filing of tax returns. The amount of such
potential penalty cannot be reliably estimated as the range
of which is wide and therefore no provision was made in
these consolidated financial statements. However, for all new
tenancy agreements signed between the Group and tenants,
a new term has been added such that the tenants are
required to pay PRC Enterprise Income Tax on behalf of the
Group. Based on the experience of the Group’s management
and the above measures adopted during the year ended
31 December 2016, the amount of such penalty, if any,
will not be material to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. In addition, pursuant to the agreement in respect
of acquisition of that subsidiary, the vendor has undertaken
to indemnify the Group for any liability arising from the above
late filing of tax returns prior to the completion date of the
acquisition.

#7RE B B R bt 51

For the year ended 31 December 2016
EZE2016F12A318ILFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
B ZE2016F12A31AILFE

8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

OTHERS
Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before income tax expense per the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as follows:

Fre#zth (8)

Hith
H BRI P E R BIR - JH KA R 7
FREEMBRITHEGE-

FEMBHRX A HAGE 2EKERTR
PSS H A& VBT RR AN T

2016 2015
HKD’000 HKD’000
THET T
Profit before income tax expenses S PTIS R RS 30,190 195,053
Tax expense calculated at Hong Kong KEANEBHE16.5%
Profits Tax rate of 16.5% FAAHEZBB X (4,981) (32,184)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax TEHRBIBENHRSZ 2
purposes M E (3,772) (10,107)
Tax effect of revenue not taxable for tax BARTNBAZEBZE
purposes 7,868 8,612
Tax effect of share of results of joint ventures HEBELEXEB BB E - (290)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERWMIGEE I RGTE (15,432) -
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERATHRERERE L
difference not recognised Mg (29) -
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses FABRARERTBER L
previously not recognised Mg 2 124 2,011
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries RE A BLERE R L/
operating in other jurisdictions WEARTRME 2 & 75 (1,936)
Over/(under) provision in respect of prior years &1 & E BB RS
(BETR) 2 (5,081)
Income tax expenses PSR H (16,145) (38,975)

In addition to the amount charged to profit or loss, deferred
tax relating to the revaluation of the Group’s properties has
been charged or credited directly to other comprehensive
income.
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9. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

(A) OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR O B FE 3R X Bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE20165F12A31H ILFE

9. FEiF

(A) HbUWA R

2016 2015
HKD('000) HKD('000)
THET FAET
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE B A FU R 38 4,470
Bad debts recovery ZREK 30 -
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - BERZERE
plant and equipment - 2
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HER SR E W=
investments - 5,605
Gain on disposal of intangible assets HEELEEWZ - 222,497
Interest income from bank deposits R ERITERFBUA 1,839 6,719
Interest income from joint ventures REEZELEFBUA 1,975 -
Net gain on trading securities R HBHIF W= - 161
Translation reserves released to REVS & &1
profit or loss on obtaining control of joint B[ 1825 7 [E W {# #
ventures - 2,051
Government grant* BT f B * 1,801 1,695
Others EA 5,699 7,238
11,382 050,438

*

The Group received grants from the relevant PRC government

authorities in support of the Group’s retail business in the PRC.
There were no unfulfilled conditions to receive the grants.

S B AT A BT R A i B
UZ A EERE B2 FERET B
BEER 7 B) T RIS 2 AR EK NS F o
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7B B 75 ¥R R Bt 5
For the year ended 31 December 2016

HZE2016F12A31H LFE
9. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (CONTINUED) 9. FEEm¥l (&)
(B) OTHER EXPENSES (B) HihHX
2016 2015
HKD(’000) HKD('000)
FET FET
Bad debts written off B iHE AR 3,362 3,048
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BER
equipment FiEEE 10 -
Write off of property, plant and equipment Y% BB LR EMER 8 4,731
Provision of allowance for bad and RIZIREEEE
doubtful debts, net FEE
— Trade and loans receivables —8 5 R BRI
U E R 11,874 6,000
Net loss on trading securities RPHFEHHFEE 822 -
Fair value loss on re-measurement of EFE—AEEEN
equity interests in a joint venture Mgz AFE(EEEISE - 20
Others Hib 3,898 1,836
19,974 15,635
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
EZE2016F12A318ILFE

9. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (CONTINUED) 9. EERFI(4E)

(C) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR HAS BEEN ARRIVED (C) FEERFIES:

AT:
2016 2015
HKD('000) HKD('000)
FHET FHET
After charging: B -
Directors’ emoluments (NotelO(a)) EE2WE (WitioE)) 5,425 6,393
Other employee costs H g B KA 56,296 65,150
Retirement benefits schemes contributions, iR {fRi@ FI5t 24 5% -
excluding Directors TREES 6,881 7,501
68,602 79,044
Auditor's remuneration ZER B & 1,860 1,710
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments T E R IBE i 6,958 7,349
Cost of inventories recognised as expense R AR INFERA 91,998 85,779
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #J2  BE MR E T & 34,779 40,396
Exchange losses, net E X B 18558 2,061 -
Write off of property, plant and equipment — #12 - [ = M & R 8 4,731
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BER
plant and equipment HEBE 10 -
After crediting: MEEFTA:
Reversal of allowance for inventories, GFERBEEDFER
net (Note) (HFE) 3,308 9,998
Gross rental income from investment REMER WA LLEE
properties 36,245 34,042
Less: direct operating expenses from B ELEESRARN
investment properties that generate HEMEEELERS
rental income (597) (595)
35,648 33,447
Interest income from: M EHA
Loans receivable and advances to KEEKE R MIEET
customers in margin financing RECHEREL 2BHK 89,924 63,902

Brer: RIBRFESMEENFERERDTY
Efd TR E R INATE

Note: The reversal of allowance for inventories arising from an
increase in net realisable value was caused by the increase in
estimated scrap value.

HUEEHRAE
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
B ZE2016F12A31AILFE

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(A) DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'’S

10.

EFHRERESH

(A EERFETHASHN

EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ emoluments is disclosed as follows: FEENEHMEHINAT
2016 20164
Cheng Liu
Chan Chan Chen  TunNei  Chow Yu George Sze Hong
Kar Lee, Ting Fang (Chief Chun,  Ho Shing Hong- Shum  Sun Sun, Wah Wang Kim
Gary Chuen Mei @ Executive) ~ Alexander Chak & chih ®  Pui Kay Tony ®Kei Jackie ~ Cheong®  Total
HER
(XEfTH
BREH  RENY RHEE? AR BAF¥H WKEC  HEHY  aRE EEHY ERE AHHe &%
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TET THEn TER TERT TER  TERT  TER  TERT  TER  TERT  TER  TER
Fees BE - - - - 170 - - 160 - 170 180 680
Other emoluments: £t s
Salaries and other benefits 54 REMER 1,962 - - 2,382 - - - - - - - 4344
Bonus (Note) AL (W) 165 - - 200 - - - - - - - 365
Contributions to retirement BIRERIBIE
benefits schemes 18 - - 18 - - - - - - - 36
Share-based payments MR - - - - - - - - - - - -
Total emoluments HelE 2,145 - - 2,600 170 - - 160 - 170 180 5,425
2015 20154
Cheng Liu
Chan Chan Chen  TunNei  ChowYu George Sze Hong
Kar Lee, Ting Fang (Chief Chun,  Ho Shing Hong- Shum  Sun Sun,  Wah Wang Kim
Gary Chuen Mei @ Executive)  Alexander Chak @ chih @ Pui Kay Tony © KeiJackie  Cheong © Total
gEk
(XBIR
BEfl  RENY BRFEEC  A8)  RATH  WRED  HREY IR B¥EY  BERE O FRE0 A4
HKD'000  HKD'000O  HKD'000 ~ HKD'000  HKD'000O  HKD'000 ~ HKD'000  HKD'000 ~ HKD'000 ~ HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000
TEr AT FExr  FTEAr  TEx  TEx  FTExr  TEr  TAxr  TEx AT TExn
Fees &8 120 - - - % 120 - % - % - 528
Other emoluments: £t s
Salaries and other benefits e REMER 1573 - - 1,712 - - - - 1,710 - - 499
Bonus (Note) A (M) 138 - - 150 - - - - 150 - - 438
Contributions to retirement R
benefits schemes eI 83 - - 89 - - - - 20 - - 262
Share-based payments IABR{A S A - - - - - - - - - - 170 170
Total emoluments Wl 1914 - - 1,91 % 120 - % 1,950 % 170 6,393
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Note:

(6) appointed in 2015

(1), (2), (3), (4), (5) retired/resigned in 2015

The bonus is based on the performance of
individuals and the entity.

Symphony Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(A)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

There are no payments for the loss of office paid to
Directors in connection with the management of affairs
of the Group during the years ended 31 December
2016 and 2015.

No retirement benefit was paid to or receivable by
Directors for management of affairs of the Group
during 31 December 2016 and 2015.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, certain
Directors were granted share options, in respect of
their services to the Group, under the share option
scheme of the Company, further details of which are
set out in Note 30 to the financial statements. The fair
value of such options, which was recognised in profit
or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income over the vesting period, was determined as
at the date of grant and the amounts included in the
financial statements for both years are included in the
above Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
disclosures.

#7RE B B R bt 51

For the year ended 31 December 2016
EZE2016F12A318ILFE

10. EXHERESHN (F)

(A EERIRTBHAEHMN(H)

B 220165 N2015F12A31H 1EF
B BEESAEREAREEES
BH BB T & SRR -

BZ20165F K2015% 12431 A 1E - #i
BERREAEEEEEHABNE
765 1T JE S A X R MR R AR A o

B Z20156F12A31IALFERN - &F
BESEREBARR 2B BIFER
AEBREEZ RBERBRE AR
E—PHBERMHERERMEI0-F
RERE s AFEE (REBIRELR
EEHEWERZBEAER) IR
B HE R R M EFE T AR
RZEBIFALXEZERTRTR
ANEFMZHER-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&R O Bif 75 3R ZE Bt 3F
For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE20165F12A310 IFEE

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND 10. EEHENRESFHIN(E)
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(B) EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (B) &SN

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015,
the five highest paid individuals of the Group included
the Chief Executive and one Director (2015: the Chief
Executive and two Directors) whose emoluments are
disclosed in Note 10(a) above. The emoluments of the
remaining three (2015: two) individuals are as follows:

B 220164 N20155F 12 A31H 1F4F
B AEESSFHMNSEAL B85
REHITHAEBRIZEE (20155 :
BT ABNMBRESR) RENH
FHE 7 £ ST 3E10(a) 4% B8 - L 8434
(2015%F : 2%) ALHyF B an T

2016 2015

HKD’000 HKD’000

FET FHET

Salaries and other benefits e MEMER 3,695 3,101
Retirement benefits schemes contributions iR K48 |5t 24 7% 45 83
3,740 3,189

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

WENFHHETIRER

2016 2015
No. of No. of
employees employees
EEAE BB A

HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1,000,001 %
1,500,000/ 7T 3 -

HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 1,500,001 L%
2,000,000/ 7T - 2

1 32 Symphony Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016
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10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE20165F12A31H ILFE

10. EXHERESHN (F)

(CONTINUED)
(B) EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) (B) {EEHEM (%)
The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior ENSRENSREEAENFMIHE
management were within the following bands: THIEE R
2016 2015
No. of No. of
employees employees
EEAH EE A
Nil to HKD1,000,000 = 21,000,000/ 7T 2 4
HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1,000,001/ T2
1,500,000/ T 3 2
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 1,500,001/% T2
2,000,000/ 7¢ - 2
11. DIVIDENDS 11. 52
2016 2015
HKD('000) HKD('000)
FET FHT
2015 final dividend of HKD0.02 per ordinary BIRT2015%F BIR % B B
share paid during the year (2014: Nil) TEAR0.028 T
(20144 « &) 53,974 -
No interim dividend was declared or paid during the years BE2016%F K2016512A31 H 1L FEHE
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015. For the year ended B SR A HARR S, - 7 220164712 A31
31 December 2016, the Board recommends the payment of BIEFE BEFEREAMARRBRIKN
final dividend of HKD0.0038 (2015: HKD0.02) per ordinary HAA P2 9 i 3B % 0.003878 7T, (2015%F -
share to the shareholders of the Company. FO0.0287T) °
FEEEHRAT

2016 FE WS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
B ZE2016F12A31AILFE

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share

12.

BikEA

ARBIEEANEBIEBRERNREERF TS
TWTIIBEE

134

attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

EARNINGS a7
2016 2015
HKD('000) HKD('000)
FET FHET
Profit for the year attributable to the owners of ~ ANQ B A JEAE FE 5%
the Company 27,746 180,822
2016 2015
Number Number
of shares of shares
iAnt =] B in B
('000) ('000)
(Fhi%) (F8&)
Number of shares RREE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares AT EESRERBF KN
for the purpose of basic earnings per share 38 A% hn A 15 B 2,700,487 2681411
Effect of diluted potential ordinary shares BUEESTBAR ZE
(Note): (Hiet) -
— Options — B 1,126 9,530
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ FILAGTEEREER T 2
for the purpose of diluted earnings per share 38 A% I A - 15 X 2,701,613 2,690,941
Earnings per share BiER
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) SRERER CEML) 1.03 6.74
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) SRESERR B 1.03 6.72
Note: The Company’s warrants as at 31 December 2016 did not give rise to Mist: RARK2016512A31 B BREERFHET

any dilution effect to the earnings per share because the exercise price
of the Company’s warrants issued during the year ended 31 December
2016 was higher than the average market price of the Company shares

for the period.

Symphony Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#7RE B B R bt 51

For the year ended 31 December 2016
EZE2016F12A318ILFE

13. Y% - B E &R &

Leasehold land  Leasehold land Furniture,
and buildings  and buildings Leasehold Plant and fixtures and Motor
in Hong Kong in the PRC Buildings p hinery i vehicles Vessel Total
REEH RepEl
HELHRR  HELHER HEME fRE
[ & i &3 B kB HEERNRS  RERRH RE e it
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TET TET T FhL TAT FEL T T TET

Cost or valuation BAGfEE
At 1 January 2015 201551418 147,282 - 329,051 86,498 25858 24,624 6,033 - 619,346
Exchange realignment EXE] - (1,609)) (17976) (2,603) 23 (1,405) 6 - (23,610)
Additions wE - 28523 8555 27,629 131 2,645 1,707 2922 72,112
Transfer from investment properties SaREng 62,718 - - - - - - - 62,718
Surplus arising on revaluation BRELMBE - - 4 - - - - - 4
Disposal of subsidiaries (Vote 44) HEMBRR (Hiu) - - - (7915) (10,010) (3,765) (675) - (22,365)
Write off HE - - - (13,112) (15,154) (1,448) (1,071) - (30,785)
Disposals & - - - - - (18) (1,871) - (1,889)
At 31 December 2015 #2015%12A318 210,000 26914 319,634 90,497 802 20,633 4129 2922 675,531
Comprising: BE:
At cost A - - - 90,497 802 20,633 4,129 2922 118,983
At valuation - 2015 fhE-2015% 210,000 26,914 319634 - - - - - 556,548

210,000 26914 319,634 90,497 802 20,633 4129 2922 675,531
Exchange realignment & 5 85 - (1,535) (18,132) (4,694) (323) (490) (401) - (25,575)
Additions HE - - 4138 6,269 - 340 457 8 11,212
Surplus arising on revaluation BRELMBE 15,000 - - - - - - - 15,000
Wite off & - - - - - (29) - - (29)
Disposals e - - - (562) - 82 (35) - (679)
At 31 December 2016 12016F12A318 225,000 25379 305,640 91,510 479 20372 4,150 2,930 675,460
Comprising: fa:
At cost S - - - 91,510 479 20372 4,150 2,930 119441
At valuation - 2016 fHE-2016F 225,000 25,379 305,640 - - - - - 556,019

225,000 25379 305,640 91,510 479 20372 4,150 2,930 675,460
Deprecation g4
At 1 January 2015 201541418 - - - 44,693 25,049 15,427 3578 - 83747
Exchange realignment 5 E5 - - (373) (1,066) ) (2,191) (64) - (3,69)
Provided for the year FERE 6,030 244 8,244 19,156 145 5463 944 170 40,3%
Write back on revaluation BE%EE (6,030) (244) (7871) - - - - - (14,145)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Nofe 44) HEMERR (Hzu) - - - (7,289) (9578) (3,063) (334) - (20,264)
Write off it - - - (9,399) (15,154) (699) (802) - (26,054)
Eliminated on disposal HEREH - - - - - (13) (1,339) - (1,351)
At 31 December 2015 M2015%12A318 - - - 46,095 460 14924 1984 170 63,633
Exchange realignment 5B - (11) (585) (3,100 (321) (444) (360) - (4,821)
Provided for the year FEEE 6,882 414 8909 14,905 133 2,506 737 293 34,779
Wite back on revaluation BfEREE (6,882) (403) (6,937) - - - - - (14222)
Write off HE - - - - - (21) - - (1)
Eliminated on disposal HERRS - - - (560) - (75) (7) - (642)
At 31 December 2016 201641274318 - - 1,387 57,340 272 16,890 2,354 462 78,706
Carrying value REE
At 31 December 2016 #2016%12A318 225,000 25379 304,253 34170 207 3482 1,7% 2467 596,754
At 31 December 2015 M2015%12A318 210,000 26914 319,634 44,402 342 5,709 2,145 2,752 611,898

HUEERRATE
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
B ZE2016F12A31AILFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. M -BERERE(8)

(CONTINUED)

The Group’s buildings located in Shenyang and Shanghai,
the PRC and the leasehold land and buildings located
in Hong Kong were valued on 31 December 2016 by
Prudential Surveyors (Hong Kong) Limited, an independent
firm of professional property valuers not connected to
the Group. The fair value of the leasehold land and
buildings in Hong Kong and Shanghai, the PRC of
approximately HKD250,379,000 as at 31 December 2016
(2015: HKD236,914,000) is a level 2 recurring fair value
measurement and the buildings in Shenyang, the PRC of
approximately HKD304,253,000 as at 31 December 2016
(2015: HKD319,634,000) is a level 3 recurring fair value
measurement. There were no transfers into or out of level 3
during the year.

The valuations of leasehold land and buildings in Hong
Kong adopted a direct comparison approach with reference
to market comparable sales evidence available in the
market. The valuations of buildings in the PRC adopted the
depreciated replacement cost approach in the absence of
comparable sales evidence.

1 36 Symphony Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016

MR20165F12A31 80  REE N EHERS Kk
LENBFRERAEBNHEE L REFE
FREIARE (B0 M E 2 B EEYEME
FITRIRIT(BB)BRAFIEITHE
R2016F 128318 - REBRFH LM
& £ K 88 5 #9250,379,00058 7t (2015
% :236,914,0008 )W R FEET RE
ZHREEMRFEETE  MAR20165F12
A318 - AR EILES 8 F £9304,253,000
77T (20154F : 319,634,000/ 7T ) FI A F (&
BAAE=-AKEERATEENAEZE-FR
MEER s SR FE =R

HREBNEE T REFHHETIRSR
HEELRBOA D2REMS LM SAL
BHEBBMETE MERTENETFH
HEERZ JLRBEEREZBERT IR
MTEEERAEMETE °



13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

A reconciliation of the opening and closing level 3 fair value

balance is provided below.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR O B FE 3R X Bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE20165F12A31H ILFE

13. W% - M E Rk E (48])

FORFRE=BRATEEEREEROT -

2016 2015
HKD’000 HKD’000
TFHT FAET
Opening balance (level 3 recurring fair value) — F¥ &5 & (F ZREH M
NEEE) 319,634 329,051
Additions NE 4,138 8,555
Exchange realignment M & 7 (17,547) (17,603)
Depreciation E (8,909) (8,244)
Gain on revaluation of properties held for own 5t AE fth 2 U A 895 1F
use included in other comprehensive income BRMMENEGHKE 6,937 7,875
Closing balance (level 3 recurring fair value) FRER (BoREFMN
N $E@) 304,253 319,634

INFORMATION ABOUT FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS USING SIGNIFICANT
UNOBSERVABLE INPUTS

HREAEXTTHRERABRN 2
FREEOEH

Properties Valuation approach Significant unobservable inputs Range
/ES fEER* EXTOUHREBNER gE
2016 2015
HKD HKD
The PRC Depreciated replacement Construction costs (HKD/sq. meter) 6,785 - 8,564 7,431 -9,200
cost approach
& WEEERANE BERAR B/ oK)

A significant increase/(decrease) in construction costs would

result in a significant increase/(decrease) in fair value of the O/

buildings.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during

the year.

FA-HETEREHRE

RERANBEEEN, CIL) BERET
AT @EEEERM GAD) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
B ZE2016F12A31AILFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

The fair value measurement is based on the above

properties’ highest and best use, which does not differ from

their actual use.

Had the land and buildings not been revalued, they

would have been included in these consolidated financial

statements at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
in the amount of approximately HKD389,076,000 (2015:

HKD412,917,000).

Certain property, plant and equipment are pledged to a bank

to secure the bank borrowings and general banking facilities

granted to the Group (Note 28).

13. W% - M E Rk E (48)

RNPEBEAEDNANEAYME &S REE
Rz (RERARLEER) REE-

WM BT EENEHE BEUES
AR 2 5HT E1E - #9389,076,00058 7T
(2015%F : 412,917,000/ 7T ) 5t A4 & B 7%

WK

ETWE -BEERBEEEMTRRTINA

BERETAKEMRITER

Erhim (KfFE28) °

K —MRIRITIE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. &M%
Investment
properties Completed
under investment
construction properties Total
ERE Lo ] =537
BEYE BEYE EeiE
HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000
Group X&EH FET FAET FAT
FAIR VALUE AFEE
At 1 January 2015 R2015F1A1H 462,177 843,540 1,305,717
Transfer to property, BEYE  BE MEFE
plant and equipment - (62,718) (62,718)
Increase in fair value recognised REZERHNAFER
in profit or loss 0 193 3,250 3,443
Exchange realignment PE % &7 (25,254) (30,765) (56,019)
At 31 December 2015 201512 A31H 437,116 753,307 1,190,423
Increase in fair value recognised RIBHEERE
in profit or loss NEEE 2,974 17,396 20,370
Exchange realignment [zl (25,104) (30,421) (55,525)
At 31 December 2016 R20165F12A31H 414,986 740,282 1,155,268
138 neiesases e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

()

All of the Group’s leasehold interests in land and buildings held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes
are classified and accounted for as investment properties and are
measured using the fair value model.

As at 31 December 2015, the fair value of the commercial and
industrial properties in Hong Kong and Beijing, the PRC of
approximately HKD753,307,000 was a level 2 recurring fair value
measurement. During the year ended 31 December 2016, the fair
value of commercial properties in Beijing, the PRC of approximately
HKD504,282,000 (2015: fair value of HKD532,308,000) was
transferred from level 2 fair value measurement to level 3 fair value
measurement (2015: no transfer). Other investment properties in
Shenyang, the PRC of approximately HKD414,986,000 as at 31
December 2016 (2015: HKD437,116,000) is a level 3 recurring fair
value measurement in both years. A reconciliation of the opening and
closing level 3 fair value balance is provided below.

#7RE B B R bt 51

For the year ended 31 December 2016
EZE2016F12A318ILFE

14. B EME (F)

A

(a)

(b)

AEEREEHEFE WA LB AR BB %
HIFTE 1T RIETFH)HE#m  IBBRURE
YRR WAL FEERNGE

R2015F12A31H  RE&EE R # B 1F 7 4 B 3
Je T Y %49753,307,00058 T 49 2 F1E BT 4
FEoREEMERTFEEE RO RAE
WY # #9504,282,000/% 7T (20156 - 2 FEE
532,308,000 L) 5 — RN FIEE 82
FEZRAF(EEE (C015F « I AHEERE) -
R2016F12A31H + R B8 5 69 & it 18 &)
2 49414,986,0007% 7T (2015%F : 437,116,000/%
TT) BREF R FE = RS E L FEEE -
FIRFHRE =R FEEZFERLT -

2016 2015
HKD'000 HKD’000
FHET FET

Opening balance (level 3 recurring fair value) FHEES (F=MEEMN
NEEE) 437,116 462,177
Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss RIEEERMN A FEEEM 2,974 193
Transfer from level 2 HMAE N 504,282 -
Exchange realignment & H &5 (25,104) (25,254)

Closing balance (level 3 recurring fair value) FARER

(F=HEEMNTEE) 919,268 437,116

The fair values of the Group's investment properties in Beijing, the
PRC, at 31 December 2016, was arrived at on the basis of valuations
carried out on that date by Knight Frank Petty Limited, an independent
firm of professional property valuer not connected to the Group.
Fair value is determined by applying the capitalisation of net income
approach, using the discounted cash flow method, based on the
estimated rental value of the property. The valuation takes account of
expected vacancy rates and rental growth rates of the properties. The
discount rates have been adjusted for the condition and location of
the buildings. The valuation also includes the estimated terminal value
and made provisions for reversionary income potential at the end of
the projection period. In prior years, the fair value of these investment
properties was determined by using the market approach. The change
in valuation technique in the current year was a result of more tenancy
agreements being renewed which in the view of the valuer had made
the use of income approach is more appropriate.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties in Beijing, the
PRC, at 31 December 2015, and other investment properties at 31
December 2016 and 2015, were arrived at on the basis of valuations
carried out on those dates by Prudential Surveyors (Hong Kong)
Limited, an independent firm of professional property valuers not
connected to the Group. The valuations of investment properties were
arrived with reference to market comparable sales evidence available
in the market.

201651231 H » A% B R B L R i) 1% &
WA 2 (BB Ty 87N 5 8] 7 S G 2 95
BHRYEIGELT TR BIFTETTHIR 2 AlE %
FETTAIEEREES F - A FEETIREYF
BOfGEt T EE  RABE R R 2% EAK
AFFEPOZETE < 155151 R E A FEH 2
ERMEIGRFE  BiHEEHBETFEVEIF R %
EHIF2 © (B 1B 7 E R (G5 RALBIE I TR E
REFERBRAELIE - RIBIEFE ZER
EYEA L TEETRATEEETE  KFRE
BRI 28 A EEE ZHE T g
BT B2 GAFIFUALEEBIRE -

R2015%12 531 A A5 BIRH# 4L Z 18 &)
ERR2016%F R2015F12A31 H A R EW %
BT (BB TS By 527K 5 B0 # BT E,2 0/ B
WEGEBATTHET (BE) BRA AT E
158 AR EENE  REYEZEERZETS
A 15,2 B L T 45 8 B R E T E °
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
B ZE2016F12A31AILFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

140

14. B EME (F)

(Continued)

Information about fair value measurements using significant

unobservable inputs

Wet: (%)

(b) (&)

ERERERTABEEGHARENRFEE

EMER
Range
&E
Properties Valuation approach Notes  Significant unobservable inputs
HEAE Mat BEXAEUHRENBHE 2016 2015
Shenyang, Direct comparison approach () (Discount)/premium on -3% to 10% -10% to 4%
the PRC L characteristics of the properties
A B RS HELEE PERIES (F%) 58
Beijing, Term and reversionary method (i) Term yield Reversionary yield 5.9% N/A
the PRC FH =18 H il TiEA
A B R FHRERE
Reversionary yield 5.5% N/A
EEWE TiEA
Market qnit rent (HKD/sg. meter) 232 L\I/A
mIBEMEE (B, FHK) i A
Direct comparison approach () (Discount)/premium on N/A -10% to 4%
) characteristics of the properties TiEHR
HELEE PERIER (FR),RE
Notes: Hiat -
(i) The valuations take into account the characteristics of the (i) EEZERYEFIE BIF RS2

(ii)

properties which included the location, size, and time of the
comparable transactions.

A significant increase/(decrease) in the discount on
characteristics of the properties, or a significant (decrease)/
increase in the premium on characteristics of the properties
would result in a significant (decrease)/increase in fair value of
the investment properties.

Term and reversionary method measures the fair value of the
properties by taking into account the rental income derived
from the existing leases with due allowance for the reversionary
income potential of the leases, which are then capitalised into
the value at appropriate rates.

A significant increase/(decrease) in term yield and reversionary
yied of the properties, or a significant (decrease)/increase in
market unit rent of the properties would result in a significant
(decrease)/increase in fair value of the investment properties.

The fair value measurement is based on the above properties’ highest

and best use, which does not differ from their actual use.

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, a large portion of the completed

investment properties were rented out under operating leases. Details
of operating lease arrangements are set out in Note 36.

Symphony Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Certain investment property is pledged to a bank to secure the bank
borrowings and general banking facilities granted to the Group (Note
28).

The Group has not yet obtained formal title to its interest in a parcel
of land as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 with a carrying amount
of approximately HKD210,291,000 (2015: HKD221,542,000). In the
opinion of the Directors, the absence of formal title of this land interest
has not impaired its value to the Group as the Group had paid the
full purchase consideration to the local land bureau and will promptly
apply for the registration of formal title once the Group has fulfilled
the relevant conditions. The Directors regard the probability of being
deprived from the use of the land on the ground of lack of formal title is
remote.

15. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

#7RE B B R bt 51

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE20165F12A31H ILFE

14. &M% (&)

Hiat: (%)

(c)

(d)

ETREYFCEATRRTUIERR
TTEA R TR EB — KR RTISE 5
& (ffat28) -

K5 B R IR T — I U8 7 49 IF
L AR E ER20169F R2015F 12
F31H #775210,291,000:% 5T (20154 :
221,542,000/87T) - EER A iZ A
BIET & F R HRZ 1 a2
MR E - AR E B E ez i e A &
b+ AR (B I B N B F
FHEAK FEBE 15 1 12 37 BT 5 3 P IE =0 %
- EFRBAN G EEMAEE L
1 (& PR A BE 1 B AR

15. AHEERIA

2016 2015
HKD’000 HKD’000
FET FETT
At 1 January M1A1H 261,407 284,766
Amortisation B 5 (6,958) (7,349)
Exchange adjustment (ERRIEE (13,619) (16,010)
At 31 December ®12H31H 240,830 261,407
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BEREBENMONE:

Current asset MENEE 6,617 7,159
Non-current asset ERBEE 234,213 254 248
240,830 261,407

HUEREEBRAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&R O Bif 75 3R ZE Bt 3F

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B ZE2016F12A31AILFE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

16. BILEE

Trading rights Trademarks Total
XS L= FLEE]
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD’000
Group AEE FHET FET FHET
Cost: A :
At 1 January 2015 R2015F1A1H 599 209,946 210,545
Disposals fang=S - (64,346) (64,346)
Exchange realignment =gl - 218 218
At 31 December 2015 and 2016 HA2015%F 220165
12H31H 599 145,818 146,417
Accumulated impairment: KEtiE:
At 31 December 2016 and 2015 720164 20154
12A31H - - -
Net book value: BREFE :
At 31 December 2016 R20165F12A31H 599 145,818 146,417
At 31 December 2015 2015 12A31H 599 145,818 146,417

The trademarks are in respect of the “PONY” brand and
the trading rights are those in Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited (the “Exchange”) which allow the Group
to trade securities on or through the Exchange. They are
considered by management of the Group as having an
indefinite useful life because they are expected to contribute
net cash inflows to the Group indefinitely. They have been
tested for impairment annually and considered to be not
impaired at the end of reporting period.

1 42 Symphony Holdings Limited
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16.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

For the purposes of the impairment test in respect of the
“PONY” brand, its recoverable amount was determined
based on fair value less cost of disposal, using a discounted
cash flow method, covering a detailed 10-year budget plan
plus an extrapolated cash flow projections by applying a long
term growth rate subsequent to this 10-year plan, with a
post-tax discount rate of 20.0% (2015: 20.0%).

The key assumptions used in the budget plan during the
years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015
are:

Cash flow beyond the 10-year period are extrapolated
using an estimated 3% (2015: 3%) growth rate.

ii. That gross margins will be maintained at its current
level throughout the 10-year (2015: 10-year) budget
plan.

The Group management’s key assumptions have been
determined based on past performance and its expectations
for the market's development. The discount rate used is post-
tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant business.

The Directors concluded that the fair value less cost of
disposal is sufficient to justify the carrying value of the
“PONY” brand and hence no impairment of the “PONY”
brand is necessary as at 31 December 2016 and 2015.

16. &

#7RE B B R bt 51

For the year ended 31 December 2016
EZE2016F12A318ILFE

CEE (1§)

BRE [PONY | @ 2R ERIR M = - A A
EeEORERABIARESREEFILATF
BERLERAEE  OREFHANI0FE
Het& m ERZI0F T 1R 3R R HIIE
REEE 2B eRBABE MATALIRE
#20.0% (20154 : 20.0% ) °

B ZE2016%F12 431 H K%2015% 124311 Ik
FEZBEEFIEANEIERKRAT

i BBIOFEHM 2B &R v E Bt
3% (2015%F : 3% ) 2 B R EIHEH -

i,  PE(ELOFE (20154 : 104 )FE & 5
%\J%F‘T%%U%Hﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁm%

AEEHEEBZ T ZRRIDBEBERSR
REHMSRE 2 BMET - BIRE R
AR - [RER SRR RIS A B 2 AR

BEERE AFEEBLERKCUE
B8 TPONYJ mhEBRTE 8 - A I 7A20165F &
20154124318 /A5 [PONY | @ g 1EH
/JEJME"
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ARE PSR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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HE20165F12A31H ILFE

17. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES/

AMOUNT DUE FROM JOINT VENTURES

0
L]

>
M

g RSB RN

2016 2015

HKD’000 HKD’000

FHET FAET

Share of net assets other than goodwill HEE (BEWIN FE 89,085 -
Goodwill & 67,169 -
156,254 -

At 31 December 2016, the Group had interests in the

following joint ventures:

2016512 H31H - AEEFHEATEE
BEO M

Place of Class Proportion of ownership Principal place
Joint venture incorporation of share interest held by the Group  Principal activities of business
FEEHEN
aELH UL RS HERRSESL  ERED E3:4°F TIH
2016 2015
REGHEEREBIRAA The PRC Ordinary 25% N/A Investment holding The PRC
(Note i) ( #t7#i) i AR TEA BEER A
B MM RREEE The PRC Ordinary 50% N/A Operation and management The PRC
AR AF (Note i) (Hiati) A TR TiE A of outlet malls A
1 B R
25 B R A R E The PRC Ordinary 50% N/A Property investment The PRC
BBR AR (Note i) (H17ti) I gLl TiEA MERE R
Aggressive Resources Limited The British Ordinary 60% N/A Investment holding N/A
(Note ii and iii) Virgin Islands & 3@ % i A & RS N3 A
(Bt azii & i) EBEELHS

Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

17. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES/
AMOUNT DUE FROM JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(0]

(ii)

(iii)

The contractual arrangements provide the Group with only the rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangements. The rights to the assets and
obligation for the liabilities of the joint arrangements rest primarily with
the above joint ventures. Under HKFRS 11, these joint arrangements
are classified as joint ventures and have been included in the
consolidated financial statements using the equity method. The Group
directly holds a 50% equity interest in each of %5 & it it A B3P 3
EBABRAR and ZSERMARBEEZEBR AR, and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of H/2% 5 EEZER AR A A, holds the remaining
50% equity interest in each of Z[55 i M AR HEEE AR A A
and RS ERHHERKEEBRAF -

This entity is not consolidated although the Group holds more than
50% of its voting rights, as the Group only has joint control of the entity
by virtue of the terms of the shareholder agreement amongst the joint
venture partners.

According to the Sales and Purchase Agreement of Aggressive
Resources Limited, the vendor guaranteed the Group that the net profit
after tax shall be at least HK$10,000,000 and HK$11,000,000 for the
years 2017 and 2018 respectively. In the view of directors, the fair
value of the vendor guaranteed is minimal.

#7RE B B R bt 51

For the year ended 31 December 2016
EZE2016F12A318ILFE

SEREER TEUEERER
I8 (%)

Byt

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

BRRPSAEBRETEAELHAEETEL
BN -ZHEALRHEEZRMNEABRZEBT
REURR B &b - RIBFEF RS EN
F1W ZEEERHROBREELE YE
RAERENGA P BRRAR - AEBEEES
ELRGBEHHIERHEEEARATARELG
Bk AR E X BB R RS0% L - mES
HEXERABRARNZ -H2EMBRRRFE
ZHEBHHHRARBEERERATARLGE
IR AR E B R AR Z B TE0%MAE -

BEAEEIFTELERO% 2 RER  ZEBL
BEe AR REARAEERBEAZEHZMH
RIS Z AR IR Whadk R R A s2 B B 2 KR HE
o

15 % Aggressive Resources Limited 2 B & 3% »
7 A7 = EIE R E E20174F 20184 2 14
#ii %1% 4 510,000,000 7t K2 11,000,0007 7T °
EERB ERZEAAFEEBKRTEMN-

AGGREGATE FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE ERMELEIERZEELENEE
JOINT VENTURE THAT ARE NOT INDIVIDUALLY M EE
MATERIAL
2016 2015
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET FAET
The Group’s share of loss for the year AEESEFEEE 964 (1,757)
The Group’s share of other AEBDEEMEEERA
comprehensive income (2,349) 14
The Group’s share of total REBSEE2EWRALEE
comprehensive income (1,385) (1,743)
FuEEERAS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
B ZE2016F12A31AILFE

17. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES/ 17.

AMOUNT DUE FROM JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

AGGREGATE FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE
JOINT VENTURE THAT ARE NOT INDIVIDUALLY
MATERIAL (CONTINUED)

SELEHEE TENSERER
I8 (%)

BERMSEFEXZEELEMER
MBEE (8)

2016 2015

HKD’000 HKD’000

FHET FETT

Amount due from joint ventures JBUE &> ZEFRIA 53,069 -

The above stated amount due from joint ventures were
unsecured, interest-bearing at 5% per annum and repayable
on demand.

18. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE/LOAN TO AN  18.

EXPrti A D EFR R EE 1R
FHEL%t B RBRBREE -

g%@%ZEﬁ/ﬁ#%%%ﬁ

ASSOCIATE
2016 2015
HKD’000 HKD’000
T FHET
Interest in an associate T o ] - -
Loan to an associate (note) ERTHEE (M) 5,587 -
5,587 -
Note: The loan is unsecured and repayable upon mutual agreement by both Hiit - ZERREERRERIOTREREREE-

parties. Loan amount of HK$3,911,000 bears interest at 5.4% per
annum and the remaining balance of HKD1,676,000 is non-interest
bearing.

1 46 Symphony Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016

B & 53,911,000 LR B F5.4%:1 B K458
1,676,000/ 0 BT E ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

18. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE/LOAN TO AN

19.

ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED)

Detail of the Group’s associate is as follows.

#7RE B B R bt 51

For the year ended 31 December 2016
EZE2016F12A318ILFE

18. BiE RS HRTFHEDL

% (8)

AEEBELEZFRMT -

Place of Proportion of ownership Principal place
Associate incorporation interest held by the Group Principal activities of business
XEERAN
BELE a2 HAEERZE NI TEEH TREXHE
2016 2015
Just Dawn Limited The British Virgin Islands 30% N/A- Investment holding N/A
KBRS NER  REBR il
GOODWILL 19. HE

Goodwill of approximately HKD35,590,000 was allocated to
the cash-generating unit of financial services for impairment
testing.

For the purposes of the goodwill impairment test, its
recoverable amount was determined based on a value-in-
use calculation, covering a detailed 5-year budget plan plus
an extrapolated cash flow projections by applying a long term
growth rate subsequent to this 5-year plan, with a pre-tax
discount rate of 19.5% (2015: 19.5%).

The key assumptions used in the budget plan during the year
ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 are:

Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using an estimated zero (2015: zero) growth rate.

ii. That gross margins will be maintained at its current
level throughout the 5-year (2015: 5-year) budget plan.

The Group management’s key assumptions have been
determined based on past performance and its expectations
for the market's development. The discount rate used is pre-
tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant business.

2 4935,590,000/8 7T, * # 53 fid 2 & Bh PR 75
ZHEELBEM  AETTRER -

PEAEREARATS  HrJ e B iR E
FABENE CREFENSFEETS
MERZSFEEEHARBEREESR
LB mIER)EE AR E A19.5%
(20155 :19.5% ) °

HZE2016512A31H k2015412 A31H 1k
FEZEAFEFEANEE/REBOT

L BAREMMZRERDEMETE
EREHH (20156 :F) -

i REESFIBERIHR EF= B4
I A KF (20154 54 ) o

AEBEEREZIERRDBEBERR
REHMSRRE I BHET - BIRE R
AR - R BR EARRA R TS A B 2 AL gl -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
B ZE2016F12A31AILFE

19.

20.

21.

GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

The Directors concluded that the cash-generating unit
demonstrates sufficient cashflows that justify the carrying
value of the goodwill and hence no impairment of goodwill is
necessary as at 31 December 2016 and 2015.

19. & (&)

EERR ReEEENRANELEHN
RenEdERHEREE BItR20165
K20156512 A31 A H/A R B VE L RI(E °

INVENTORIES 20. BE&
2016 2015
HKD’000 HKD’000
FET FAET
Finished goods BIRK o 20,874 58,862
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. 8 5 R H it FEW AR =X
2016 2015
HKD(’000) HKD('000)
FET FHET
Trade receivables E Z AR
— Other than financial services segment — & B AR 7 FPBR AN 48,971 44,433
— Financial services segment —EMRE DS 20,483 31,264
Total trade receivables B 5 e RSB 69,454 75,697
Less: allowance for doubtful debts il RERBEE (23,664) (19,790)
45,790 55,907
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments ~ EfbEWER 5148 &
TR IR 100,795 64,012
Less: allowance for doubtful debts O REREME - E A EUAR IR
— other receivables (4,077) (4,077)
96,718 59,935
Total trade and other receivables B 5 M EMmEWRIREEE 142,508 115,842
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

TRADE RECEIVABLES FROM SEGMENTS OTHER
THAN FINANCIAL SERVICES SEGMENT

The Group allows an average credit period ranging from 60
to 90 days to its trade customers. Allowance for doubtful
debts of HK$23,664,000 at 31 December 2016 (2015:
HK$19,790,000) was solely in respect of trade receivable of
the others than financial services segment. Before accepting
a new customer, the Group assesses the potential customer’s
credit quality and grants a credit limit to the customer.
Credit limits and score attributed to customers are reviewed
twice a year. Approximately 86% (2015: 59%) of the trade
receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have
no default payment history. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

TRADE RECEIVABLES FROM FINANCIAL SERVICES
SEGMENT

#7RE B B R bt 51

For the year ended 31 December 2016
EZE2016F12A318ILFE

21. B 5 R HMEUERR (8)

REKREBRBAHBLUINBHES
FE Wit AR 2%
AEBEAEEFHEF IR AHE0A =90
ATEMTFHEER - R20165F12A31
B 2 %8R ##K23,664,000/% 7T (20154
19,790,000 7T ) {2 B £ B AR TS 2 SBIASNAY
B RBER - RENTEPR A EEE
HERERFPEEER WETZEFLNE
BERFE -BEENEERBELADESETFHET
WX 5 K #186% (20154F 1 59% ) FE
BRI B R B 5 FE UK AR SR 0 4B 1 A 3 ED
B o AN EEN MR Z SR A (R o

KB &R ART 5 38 E 5 AR

2016 2015
HKD('000) HKD('000)
THT FHE T
Trade receivables arising from ordinary REHFBE —MREHBIE
course of business of dealing in securities: EXNE S EIERR:
Cash clients ReRP 158 239
Clearing house HEET - 22,315
Trade receivables arising from ordinary RETYHIE—REBKBE
course of business of provision of: EENE S EUER
Money lending wE 20,313 8,633
Insurance brokerage R4 12 77
20,483 31,264
MR PR )

2016 FE WS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE20165F12A31H ILFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

TRADE RECEIVABLES FROM FINANCIAL SERVICES
SEGMENT (CONTINUED)

Save for the credit period allowed by the Group, the trade
receivables shall be due on the settlement date of the
respective securities contract transaction. In view of the
fact that such receivables relate to a number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit
risk. Overdue receivables from cash clients of approximately
HKD86,000 as at 31 December 2016 (2015: HKD190,000)
bear interest at interest rates with reference to the Hong
Kong dollar prime rate (“Prime Rate”) plus 6%.

The following is an aged analysis of the Group’s trade
receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts presented
based on the invoice date or transaction date (where
applicable) at the end of the reporting period:

21. 5 R HMEUERR (&)

KB ERRT 5 B E 5 EKERR
(&)

BRAERE AT E SRS B SRR
REBHFEHNRXINEEBI B -ERNE
FEKETSRE T IRER R ES
REFEERR - 7R20165F12H31H - 8]
JEWER & & P K FRIE 4 /86,0007 7T (2015
% :190,00087T) * 2ERETTREBHN XK
(IREENE]) MN6% 2 MEFHB -

RBEPR AEEUBRRAHHRFHH
H (HER) REEZTNE 5 B USRI
BARERBENRESITT

2016 2015

HKD(’000) HKD('000)

FET FTAT

0 to 30 days 0&30Xk 37,251 41,810
31 to 60 days 31260XK 2,603 1,891
61 to 90 days 61E90K 1,209 2,023
Over 90 days #90K 4,727 10,183
45,790 55,907

Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts (see
below for aged analysis) which are past due at the end of the
reporting period for which the Group has not recognised an
allowance for doubtful debts because there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still
considered recoverable.

1 50 Symphony Holdings Limited
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR O B FE 3R X Bt 5

AGING OF TRADE RECEIVABLES WHICH ARE PAST

DUE BUT NOT IMPAIRED

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE20165F12A31H ILFE

21. B 5 R HMEUERR (8)

3F 5 16 12 B 38 HA B2 5 B Mt PR R B0 B it

2016 2015

HKD(’000) HKD('000)

FHET FAET

Over 90 days 90K 4,727 10,183
MOVEMENT IN THE ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL RIRIBEEE — & 5 EIARR

DEBTS - TRADE RECEIVABLES

2016 2015

HKD('000) HKD('000)

FHET FAET

Balance at beginning of the year FHEERR 19,790 13,790

Impairment losses recognised BRERAREEE 3,874 6,000

Balance at end of the year FRER 23,664 19,790

The above provision for impairment of trade receivables
represents a provision for an impaired trade receivable
with a carrying amount before provision of approximately
HKD23,664,000 (2015: HKD25,188,000). This impaired
receivable related to a customer that is slow in settlement
and management assessed that only a portion or none of the
balance is expected to be recovered.

N EE S EREFREREZIENEE
Ail B T (E %) 523,664,000/ 7T (20154

25,188,000/ 70) M E BB E 5 1 Uk Bk 18
H-EDRERBKERSREERIENS

FEHA AT T U o
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&R O Bif 75 3R ZE Bt 3F
For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE20165F12A310 IFEE
21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. BES R HMEWERS: (48)
(CONTINUED)

MOVEMENT IN THE ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL
DEBTS - OTHER RECEIVABLES

REIREEREE - H b EKARR

2016 2015

HKD('000) HKD('000)

FHT FHE T

Balance at beginning and end of the year FYRFERE R 4,077 4,077

The above provision for impairment of other receivables
represents a provision for an impaired other receivable
with a carrying amount before provision of approximately
HKD4,077,000 (2015: HKD4,077,000). This impaired
receivable relates to a debtor that is slow in settlement and
management assessed that only a portion or none of the
balance is expected to be recovered.

22. ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS IN MARGIN 22.

VA = E L AR SR (B B = FE K R
A BR T (B 49 54,077,0005 7T (20154 :
4,077,0007% 7T ) 89 2 5 1B E b & U AR S0
Ho B RBERKERFREERIENE
WERF - MERETMES —HH I BiE
EHTEHA T UE -

REFREEMEETRZBR

FINANCING
2016 2015
HKD(’000) HKD('000)
FET FET
Directors and their associates EENEBEBAL 133 2,698
Other margin clients HEREFEEEP 119,523 123,352
Balance at end of the year FREH 119,656 126,050
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22. ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS IN MARGIN

23.

FINANCING (CONTINUED)

Advances to customers in margin financing are repayable
on demand and carry interest ranging from Prime Rate
to Prime Rate plus 3% per annum. Margin clients are
required to pledge securities collateral to the Group in order
to obtain credit facilities for securities trading. The amount
of credit facilities granted to them is determined by the
discounted value of securities accepted by the Group. At 31
December 2016, the total market value of securities pledged
as collateral in respect of the loan to margin clients was
approximately HKD531,318,000 (2015: HK$699,241,000).
The Group is allowed to dispose of the collateral in settlement
of the customers’ obligations to maintain the agreed level of
margin and any other liability of the customers due to the
Group.

No aging analysis is disclosed for advances to customers in
margin financing as, in the opinion of the Directors, an aging
analysis is not meaningful in view of the business nature of
margin financing.

LOANS RECEIVABLE

#7RE B B R bt 51

For the year ended 31 December 2016
EZE2016F12A318ILFE

22. RUTFPREESHMEEFZER

(8)

RUTRESBETP ZBRARERE
B BN FREEENXEREENENE
FI3%:st B -RESEPARNANEEEME
HEMBARSEREEEERE -RTE
BEFPZEERESHBAREMERE
%2 BRIR(ERETE - 7R20165F 12 A31H - iR
HIRESEF 2EFMBERERERR
B 38 75 48 TH B 4) /531,318,0007% 7T, (2015
% :699,241,000/8 7T ) ° A5 [ A] H &K A
mABITEPHETMERBERKFZEL
MBEEFPERAEEZERNEMARZ-

ENRETREZLEFUEE EFRARE
oM AETE i EHIREHE TRE
TRERFPZBRBERR M-

23. FEUE R

2016 2015
HKD('000) HKD('000)
FHET FHET
Secured BER 341,810 629,196
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B RERE G (8,000) -
333,810 629,196

HUEREEBRAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
B ZE2016F12A31AILFE

23. LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED) 23. Bl ER (&)

MOVEMENT IN THE ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL
DEBTS - LOANS RECEIVABLE

AR AR -BIRER

2016 2015

HKD(’000) HKD('000)

THET FHETT

Balance at beginning of the year FYEER - -
Impairment loss recognised R R EEE 8,000 -
Balance at end of the year FREH 8,000 -

The loans receivable are secured by charges over the
borrowers’ properties and/or financial assets, interest bearing
at 5%-24% per annum (2015: 12%-36% per annum) and
repayable between one month to one year from the date of
advance.

Customers giving rise to loans receivable are obliged
to settle the amounts according to the terms set out in
relevant contracts. Interest rates are offered based on the
assessment of a number of factors including the borrowers’
creditworthiness and repayment ability, collaterals as well as
the general economic trends.

The Directors consider the fair values of loans receivable
which are expected to be recovered within one year are not
materially different from their carrying amounts because the
balances have short maturity periods at inception.
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HE20165F12A31H ILFE
24. TRADING SECURITIES 24. X 5 EBH
2016 2015
HKD('000) HKD('000)
FET FET
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, REB LM Z2RAES
at fair value BN EE 10,714 16,420

25.

The above equity securities are classified as held for trading,

and upon initial recognition, designated as financial assets at

fair value through profit or loss.

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSIT AND BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

(A)

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSIT

The balance of HKD3,337,000 (2015: HKD3,538,000)
is denominated in RMB and carries a fixed interest at
4.75% (2015: 1.75%) per annum. The use of the bank
deposit requires the consent from one of the occupants
of the Group’s outlet mall in the PRC.

The balance of HKD1,533,000 (2015: HKD1,515,000)
is denominated in New Taiwan Dollar (“NTD”) and
carries a fixed interest at 0.326% (2015: 1.345%)
per annum. The use of the bank deposit requires the
consent from the landlord and suppliers. A balance
of HKD8&,374,000 as at 31 December 2015 was
denominated in RMB and carried a fixed interest
at 4.75% per annum. The use of the bank deposit
required the consent from the supplier of the Group’s
retail segment in the PRC.

25.

FRABRAFESDBESFBIEEE  MREKX
BRREESRATFEEIAERZZSR

ZRRHFERITER AR RITEHER R
e

(A)

ZREIERITER

% % #23,337,000% 7T (20154 :
3,538,000/ 7T ) A A R EHE » LAE
T M EA.75% (20155 1 1.75% ) &5F
E-BARITERAAEETHTE
EBHEERRESIEE-

4 1,533,000 7T (20154 :
1,515,000/ 7T ) LA & B 5HE - LAE
TE 4 F % 1.345% (20154 : 1.345% )
AR -BARTERARIRHERE
7[R & o 20155 12 A31 H 1 45 #4
8,374,000/ LA A REEGHE - AEE
FMZRLT75%5t B - BRRITFHA
AEERFETESMEEHRET
AR
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25. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSIT AND BANK
BALANCES AND CASH (CONTINUED)

(B) BANK BALANCES AND CASH - HELD ON

€

156

BEHALF OF CUSTOMERS

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts
with authorised institutions to hold clients’ monies
arising from its normal course of business. The Group
classifies the clients” monies as bank and cash balance
held on behalf of customers under the current assets
section of the consolidated statement of financial
position and recognised the balances of the trust
accounts (Note 26) as amounts due to respective
clients on the grounds that the Group is liable for any
loss or misappropriation of clients’ monies. The cash
held on behalf of customers is restricted and governed
by the Securities and Futures (Client Money) Rules
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance. The
Group is allowed to retain some or all of the interest
on the clients’” monies, but is not allowed to use the
clients’ monies to settle its own obligations.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

[t included time deposits of approximately
HKD94,167,000 (2015: HKD106,906,000) which
carried fixed interest rates ranging from 0.02% to
4.80% (2015: 0.10% to 4.07%) per annum. The
remaining balance represents bank balances which
carried interest at prevailing market rates which ranged
from 0.01% to 0.35% (2015: 0.01% to 0.35%) per
annum during the year.

As at 31 December 2016, cash and bank balances
(including restricted bank deposit) denominated in
RMB and held in the PRC amounted to approximately
HKD65,203,000 (2015: HKD101,977,000). RMB is
not freely convertible into foreign currencies in the
PRC. Under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement and Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for foreign cur-
rencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Symphony Holdings Limited
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25. ZPRHIRITHER  CIRIPRTT
RURRITEBR RIS (8])

(B) IRITHBRRAL-KEFHA
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AMZE0.02%%E4.80% (20154 :
0.10%Z4.07% )it ENEHTF
F#194,167,0005% 7T (20154 ¢
106,906,000 7T ) « 88 T & 88 ¥ F
WIZIR 17T 5 F F %*0.01%%0.35%
(20154 : 0.01%%0.35% ) 5t B4R
TTHER -
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26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
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HE2016F12A31H ILFE

26. B 5 & H {th FE 1 BR =X

2016 2015

HKD('000) HKD('000)

THET T

Trade and bills payables B RENEE 36,422 32,761

Accounts payable from financial FENT & B AR 7% 2 BRAR 5K

services segment 32,218 16,426
Other payables, temporary receipts, E b FETER SR - B br Uk

accruals and receipts in advance JESTBRZA R B 190,196 216,424

Total trade and other payables BHNEMEMNRFERE 258,836 265,611

The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills payables

presented based on the invoice date or transaction date

RBER - UBZRAHRRZHAH (W8
) REEZIINE S LENEERNKEKD

(where applicable) at the end of the reporting period: T :
2016 2015
HKD('000) HKD('000)
THET FHET
0 to 30 days 0E30Kk 17,490 16,572
31 to 60 days 31E60K 15,088 11,358
61 to 90 days 61F90K 2,358 2,761
Over 90 days #90K 1,486 2,070
36,422 32,761

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90

days. The Group has financial risk management policies in

place to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit

timeframe.

BENFHEEHROX AEEDHE

M ERE
RIEEHIRA

4EE o
=k

HUEEHRAE
2016 FE WS

32 BOR PARE LR B FE A AR K

157



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&R O Bif 75 3R ZE Bt 3

For the year ended 31 December 2016
EHZE2016F12A31AILFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

26. B R HEMIEMIRR (8)

The settlement term of accounts payable attributable to
dealing in securities are two trading days after the trade date.

No aging analysis is disclosed for payables to margin clients
as, in the opinion of the Directors, an aging analysis is not
meaningful in view of the business nature of securities
dealing and margin financing.

Note: The balances represent accounts payable to clients and other
institutions in respect of trust and segregated bank balances received
and held for clients and other institutions in the course of the conduct
of regulated activities.
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(CONTINUED)
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE FROM FINANCIAL SERVICES K B £ 54 AR 5 53 & FE {4 BR X
SEGMENT
2016 2015
HKD(’000) HKD('000)
FHET FHET
Accounts payable arising from ordinary course  FAHX S HEEBBRESL
of business of dealing in securities (Note): B RE T BRIR (M aE) -
Cash clients BeRP 11,560 7,336
Margin clients REERF 16,491 8,995
Clearing house EEFT 4,155 -
32,206 16,331
Accounts payable arising from ordinary course IR IA T & B H ¥ £ B7E
of business of provision of: EEMEME:
Insurance brokerage R g4 12 95
32,218 16,426

EFEERNERZEENRRZZ AR
MIERZH e

ERNEFEEMRESRENRBED
E=ZRR AENREBSTEFPREBEREKD
rivEEE  HIY ERERE DT

Biat . ZREEBIERNER REMBBERR PR
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27. DEFERRED TAXATION

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR O B FE 3R X Bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2016
EHZE2016F12A318ILFE

The following table is the analysis of the deferred tax

27.

EIREHLIE

FEUAR TS s A R IR A R 0 TN

balances for financial reporting purposes: T
2016 2015
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET FHT
Deferred tax assets RIEFRIBEE BE (18,084) (22,486)
Deferred tax liabilities BEHIBEAR 87,556 85,930
69,472 63,444

The following table shows the major deferred tax liabilities/

(assets) recognised by the Group and movements thereon

AEEEERNEIBELEHIEBEE (&

) REENAFERBEFEDN

R

during the current and prior years: NN
Revaluation of
freehold and Undistributed Fair value
leasehold Revaluation Accelerated eamings of adjustment
landand  of investment tax PRC on intangible
buildings properties depreciation subsidiaries Tax losses assets Total
KA
BELHR -t MERE  PEMEAT BHEEZ
BFE{H{E Bff & KARER HERR ATREESE a5
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TEL TEr TEL TiEn TEr TEL TER
At 1 January 2015 R2015%1 718 63982 7122 10233 73 (45,699) 7,366 43077
Exchange realignment E R B3l - (133 - - - - (133)
Chargel(credit) to profit o loss R/ (GEA) s - (577) 573 - 10551 - 10547
Charge to other comprehensive income MEEEZERA 9,953 - - - - - 9,953
At 31 December 2015 R2015512A31H 73935 6412 10806 73 (35,148) 7,366 63444
Exchange realignment &R B3 - (166) @ - - - (168)
Chargef(credit) to profit o loss 5/ GtA) B - 3,361 (1,208) - 4133 - 6,19
At 31 December 2016 R2016%12A318 73935 9,607 9,506 73 (31,015) 7,366 69,472
HUEERRAT
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27.

DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2016, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately HKD579,873,000 (2015: HKD556,204,000)
available to offset against future profits. Tax losses to
the extent of approximately HKD187,970,000 (2015:
HKD213,018,000) in respect of which a deferred tax asset
has been recognised. The Group had utilised deferred
tax assets of HKD4,133,000 (2015: HKD2,325,000) and
written off HKD nil (2015: HKD8,226,000) during the year.
Management has prepared a robust business plan based
on a sound business model and is confident that the Group
will be able to generate taxable profits from the companies
in which these tax losses arose. As a result, management
believes that these losses will be utilised in the foreseeable
future. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the remaining unused tax losses of approximately
HKD391,903,000 (2015: HKD343,186,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. All the tax losses may
be carried forward indefinitely except for those arising from
the PRC which may be carried forward for five years.

7. EEHIA (§)

MR2016F12A318  AEBEBE R AR
18 £ 18 #49579,873,0005% Jt (20154 :
556,204,000/ 7T ) AT fit 35 $8 K 2155 F1
A8 49187,970,000 7T (20154 :
213,018,000 L) 2 B E B EEER A
FETRIEEE -GN ALENARERE
& 4,133,000/ 7T (20154 : 2,325,0005
7o) REMERZ T (20154 : 8,226,000/
TLEEEERERE2ZEBEANRR —
DERZEBFISRAEAEEBEEE
EZEREEE 2 SBRA R EESER
Faf e Al BEEREZEEEFTN
A RARRANEE A - BT Al FBHIAR R A
BB MW ERAK TR AHREEE
391,903,000/ 7T (20154 : 343,186,000
TL) ERIEETRIBEE - AR A8 ] &
REGE HZERETFETJLEERF
w7 B R 1B Al B b o

28. BANK BORROWINGS 28. IRITER
2016 2015
HKD’000 HKD’000
TFHET FET
Current TE
Carrying amount of variable interest-rate bank B —F RNERZEFIERH
loans repayable within one year IRITENEEAE
— unsecured — K A 155,082 155,002
— secured —HHEHA 18,000 18,000
173,082 173,002
Non-current ERE
Carrying amount of secured variable interest-  HBZEE T e F = 5
rate bank loans that are not repayable: B ERT # BRTE(E -
— more than one year, but not exceeding —ZR1IFERBIB2F
two years 236,245 18,000
— more than two year, but not exceeding — % R2F B R BSF
five years 155,082 236,245
— After five years —bF 1% 155,082 310,004
546,409 564,249
719,491 737,251
1 60 Symphony Holdings Limited
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28. BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

The Group has variable interest-rate bank loans which carry
interest ranging from 2.00% to 2.97% (2015: 1.84% to
2.47%). The weighted average effective interest rate of the
Group's bank loans is 2.71% (2015: 2.16%).

No undrawn borrowing facilities were available for future
operating activities and to settle capital commitments in both
years.

The Group had pledged certain of its leasehold land and
buildings and completed investment properties, as set out
in Notes 13 and 14, with carrying values of approximately
HKD225,000,000 and HKD709,282,000 (2015:
HKD210,000,000 and HKD722,308,000) respectively, to
secure bank borrowings granted to the Group of which
approximately HKD564,409,000 (2015: HKD582,249,000).

#7RE B B R bt 53

For the year ended 31 December 2016
EHZE2016F12A318ILFE

28. IRITERK (&)

REBMBRTERNEZTBEEX  FIBT
N FR2.00%%E2.97% (20154F : 1.84% %=
247%) - AEBRITTERZ B HIMEF
MZE52.71% (20154 : 2.16% ) °

P E F R A - B R R R A B R E
AHARARREE R MIFEEANEE-

MR 13X I4FTE R EBE 2 EA
ETHELHREBFURERIKEY
% (BRE1E 2 B4 /225,000,0007% 7T &
709,282,000/ 7T (20154 : 210,000,000/
7T %722,308,000% 7T ) ) - AFERE T AR
£ B #IR17T B ;K 49564,409,0007% 7T (2015
F : 582,249,000/ 7T ) °
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EHZE2016F12A31AILFE
29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. &
Number of Nominal
shares value
BB m{E
(‘000) HKD’000
(FB%) FET
Authorised: JERE
Ordinary shares of HKDO.10 each /R EBO. 108 7T 1 Z B R
(2015: HKDO.10 each) (2015% : &R B 8
0.10;%7T)
At 1 January 2015 and 31 December 2015 R2015F1A18 &
and 31 December 2016 2015F12A318 &
201612 A31H 20,000,000 2,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITNER:
Ordinary shares of HKDO.10 each R EBO. 108 T 1) Z B AR
(2015: HKDO. 10 each) (20154 : &/ [ET 18
0.10;%7T)
At 1 January 2015 R2015F1A1H 2,669,514 266,952
Exercise of share options (Note) TER A (A7) 28,230 2,823
At 31 December 2015 201512 A31H 2,697,744 269,775
Exercise of share options (Note) T{ERERRAE (AY2E) 8,010 800
At 31 December 2016 12016412318 2,705,754 270,575

Note: During the year, share options were exercised to subscribe for
8,010,000 (2015: 28,230,000) ordinary shares of the Company
at a cash consideration, before expenses, of approximately
HKD4,465,000 (2015: HKD11,433,000), of which HKD800,000
(2015: HKD2,823,000) was credited to share capital and the
balance of approximately HKD3,665,000 (2015: HKD8,610,000) was
credited to the share premium account. An amount of approximately
HKD1,445,000 (2015: HKD3,357,000) was transferred from the share
option reserve to the share premium account upon the exercise of the
share options.

All shares issued by the Company ranked pari passu with the
then existing shares in all respects.
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 10 June 2011, shareholders of the Company have
approved and adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing eligible participants
with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the
Company and to encourage participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the
benefit of the Company and its Shareholders as a whole. All
Directors, full-time employees and any other persons who, at
the sole discretion of the Board of Directors, have contributed
or will contribute to the Group are eligible to participate in the
Scheme.

Pursuant to the Scheme, shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme or any
other share option scheme adopted by the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue on the date of adoption. The Company may renew
this 10% limit with Shareholders’ approval provided that each
such renewal may not exceed 10% of shares in the Company
in issue as at the date of the shareholders’ meeting.

The total number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Scheme or any other share
option scheme adopted by the Company must not exceed
30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, the total
number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued
upon the exercise of the options granted to each participant
(including both exercised and unexercised options) under
the Scheme or any other share option schemes adopted by
the Company in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue.

#7RE B B R bt 53

For the year ended 31 December 2016
EHZE2016F12A318ILFE

30. B HESTEI

201156 H108 » AN A AR #E/fE K R 4%
B ([ZEH8l))  SaERHEE T
BERSEENSARANE N ER I
B2RENARBMEBRNOEEN GRS
K BAORSARBRERDOEE- A
EEF 2REBNMREFENEAR/D
R g W ARKEEL HBE T A A
THNAERSEZAE -

RIFZAT ) iRt 8 TE S E A MR
REDHRMNBREEMERLORE
BREERAREETORG A X TATBE
ARRBRERA A AN BITRMDAI10%
M A AR LA - AN R R ATEE AT 10% VR
BOESERENTABBARANER
RE A END HITRNDMI0% -

RITEA Z B B REME AR R R
A0V 8 AU RE AT B 10 5 T ME e SR 7T R O R R
TTEREAHE T R REB TRV A R B (D 488
AR B AR B B 1T #930% ©

BROEER R BIRRILE AR RAITRERZ
A% AT 8l S A KL A AN R B R A 0 R AL
AEIME FE2EENBRE (BFEETT
B R AR TIE RO RE R ) IS BT RS T 3%
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 30. BEBRRHESTEI (48)

The period within which the options must be exercised will
be specified by the Company at the time of grant. This period
must expire no later than 10 years from the date of grant of
the options. At the time of grant of the options, the Company
may specify a minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised. The offer of a grant of
share options may be accepted within 14 days from the date
on which the letter containing the offer is delivered to that
participant and the amount payable on acceptance of an
option is HKD1.00.

The subscription price for the shares of the Company to
be issued upon exercise of the options shall be no less
than the higher of (i) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (ii) the average
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company on the
date of grant. The subscription price will be approved by the
Board of Directors at the time the option is offered to the
participants.

No options may be granted under the Scheme after the date
of the tenth anniversary of the adoption of the Scheme.

1 64 Symphony Holdings Limited
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EZE2016F12A318ILFE
LR =
30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 30. RERx#ERTEl (&)

Details of the movements of the share options granted under REZE2016%F12A318 ILFE RN RIBEZ

the Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2016 are FrEIR BRI E BT

as follows:
Number of share options
BRiENE

Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise price as at Granted Exercised Lapsed as at
per share 1 January during during during 31 December
Name of participants Date of grant Exercise period (HKD) 2016 the year the year the year 2016
120164 R2016%
BRTER 1818 12A31H
28\t BFEH 8 (#&7) i R AT RERRHE RERTTHE RERKY AR {THE
Directors 9/9/2013 9/9/2013 - 8/9/2016 0.406 - - - - -
% 9/9/2014 - 8/9/2016 0.406 - - - - -
9/9/2015 - 8/9/2016 0406 - - - - -
97102013 9/10/2013 - 8/10/2016 0.402 - - - - -
9/10/2014 - 8/10/2016 0402 - - - - -
9/10/2015 - 8/10/2016 0.402 - - - - -
17/6/2014 17/6/2014 - 16/6/2017 0550 6,000,000 - (6,000,000) - -
411212015 4/12/2015 - 3/12/2016 0.760 1,000,000 - - (1,000,000) -
Employees 9/9/2013 9/9/2013 - 8/9/2016 0.406 - - - - -
E& 9/9/2014 - 8/9/2016 0406 - - - - -
9/9/2015 - 8/9/2016 0.406 - - - - -
9/10/2013 9/10/2013 - 8/10/2016 0.402 - - - - -
9/10/2014 - 8/10/2016 0402 350,000 - (140,000) (210,000) -
9/10/2015 - 8/10/2016 0.402 960,000 - (870,000) (90,000) -
411212015 17712016 - 31/12/2016 0.760 10,000,000 - (1,000,000) (9,000,000 -
18,310,000 - (8,010,000) (10,300,000) -
Weighted average exercise price (HKD) 0.666 N/A 0.558 0.750 N/A
METHEE (B) T TER
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 30. BBRRHESTEI (48)

166

Details of the movements of the share options granted under

MBI E2015F12A31R IEFER - RIEZ

the Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2015 were FrEIR MBS E BT
as follows:
Number of share options
FERENE

Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise price as at Granted Exercised Lapsed as at
Name of per share 1 January during during during 31 December
participants Date of grant Exercise period (HKD) 2015 the year the year the year 2015
20154 R2015%
BRTER 1818 12A31H
28\t BFEH 8 (#&7) iR AT RERRHE RERTTHE RERKY R {THE
Directors 9/9/2013 9/9/2013 - 8/9/2016 0.406 - - - - -
% 9/9/2014 - 8/9/2016 0.406 7,000,000 - (7,000,000) - -
9/9/2015 - 8/9/2016 0.406 10,800,000 - (3,900,000) (6,900,000) -
97102013 9/10/2013 - 8/10/2016 0.402 - - - - -
9/10/2014 - 8/10/2016 0402 - - - - -
9/10/2015 - 8/10/2016 0.402 - - - - -
17/6/2014 17/6/2014 - 16/6/2017 0.550 6,000,000 - - - 6,000,000
411212015 4/12/2015 - 3/12/2016 0.760 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
Employees 9/9/2013 9/9/2013 - 8/9/2016 0.406 - - - - -
E& 9/9/2014 - 8/9/2016 0.406 2,320,000 - (2,320,000 - -
9/9/2015 - 8/9/2016 0.406 12,000,000 - (7,800,000) (4,200,000) -
9/10/2013 9/10/2013 - 8/10/2016 0.402 540,000 - (540,000) - -
9/10/2014 - 8/10/2016 0402 4,470,000 - (4,120,000) - 350,000
9/10/2015 - 8/10/2016 0.402 4,470,000 - (2,550,000) (960,000) 960,000
411212015 17712016 - 31/12/2016 0.760 - 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
47,600,000 11,000,000 (28,230,000) (12,060,000) 18,310,000
Weighted average exercise price (HKD) 0423 0.760 0.405 0.406 0.666

MEFHTEE (B

As at 31 December 2016, no share options was outstanding.
As at 31 December 2015, the number and weighted average
exercise price of share options exercisable at the end of the
reporting period were 8,310,000 shares and HKDO0.552,
respectively.

The weighted average remaining contractual life for share
options outstanding at the end of reporting period is nil
(2015: 1.13 years). The weighted average share price at the
date of exercise of options exercised during the year was
HKDO0.84 (2015: HKDO.83).
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R20165F12 4318 » I & i RIT{E 2 B AR
1 - 7220156124318  AJfT{EERAENE
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A0.552/8 7T ©

AR 5 HA SR 1) AR 7T (2 B A A 1) pn e P19 &
AN FHRE (20155 1.13F) - RF
METTEBRETTE B Br0 i F IR (E
£0.8475 7T (20154F : 0.83% L) °



30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The total number of shares available for issue under
the share option scheme as at 31 December 2016 was
811,726,074 shares (No outstanding share options had been
granted but not yet lapsed or exercised) (2015: 809,323,074
shares (including options for 18,310,000 shares that have
been granted but not yet lapsed or exercised)) which
represented 30% (2015: 29.3%) of the issued share capital

of the Company at 31 December 2016.

The estimated fair value of the options granted on 9
September 2013 was HKDO0.1184 per option. The fair value
was calculated using the Black-Scholes model with Binomial

Tree method. The inputs into the model were as follows:

Share price at grant date HKDO.400
Exercise price HKDO0.406
Expected volatility 43.526%
Expected life 3 years
Risk-free rate 0.693%

Expected dividend yield

The estimated fair value of the options granted on 9 October
2013 was HKDO0.1204 per option. The fair value was
calculated using the Black-Scholes model with Binomial Tree

method. The inputs into the model were as follows:

Share price at grant date HKDO.400
Exercise price HKDO0.402
Expected volatility 44.015%
Expected life 3 years
Risk-free rate 0.545%

Expected dividend yield

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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30. FEARHERTEI (&)

R20165F12 A31 B AR B B A it &1 ) (i 3%
THI IR 1) 4B 21 /R811,726,074 Az 17 (I &
EER LA W AR KRB ETEBIE)
(2015%F : 809,323,074 iz fn (BIEE R
HH 1B i R 2K 2K Bk M 1T {5 918,310,000 A
EVRBAHE ) - (AR EIN2016512A31H
B #EITIRANEI30% (2015%F : 29.3% ) °

R2013F9A9REREEMA TR HBER
B EF R TFEERES N ERE0.1184%
7o RHBETMER Z X AN m —F
ARG E - ZEANBABIRLT

IR B ERAR(E 0.4007 7T
171618 0.40678 7T
TEHAR 18 43.526%
T8 HA 4F 5 3%
1 [ g ) 2 0.693%
TEEARR B & 0%

M2013F10A9HE MA AR A LR LDIER
MG AT EE AT D ERIE.12047%
T o N EETMER Z XA s — &F
RETEAHE - ZEXOEABIEET

R L H R E 0.400/ 7T
1T1E(E 0.4027 7T
T8 B R v 44.015%
& HA 4 B 3F
B L ) R 0.545%
Bk SR 0%
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 30. BBRRHESTEI (48)

The estimated fair value of the options granted on 17
June 2014 was HKDO0.1921 per option. The fair value was
calculated using the Black-Scholes model with Binomial Tree
method. The inputs into the model were as follows:

Share price at grant date HKDO.550
Exercise price HKDO.550
Expected volatility 51.087%
Expected life 3 years
Risk-free rate 0.771%
Expected dividend yield 0%

The estimated fair values of the options granted to eligible
persons on 4 December 2015 were HKDO.1699 and
HKDO.1707 per option. The fair value was calculated using
the Black-Scholes model with Binomial Tree method. The
inputs into the model were as follows:

Share price at grant date HKDO.760
Exercise price HKDO.760
56.772%/54.938%
Expected life 1/1.08 years
Risk-free rate 0.09%/0.1077 %
Expected dividend yield 0%

Expected volatility

The volatility assumption, measured at the standard deviation
of expected share price returns, is based on a statistical
analysis of daily share prices over the last three years.

The share options granted on 9 September 2013 were
subject to the following vesting schedule:

R201456 A17HE MEERA LR EER

$EEU1Eu+QEFFTEZ%t1‘@%HxTEO 192178
RNFBETER - XEHENHB 7 —&F

BT RAFE - ZEANBABIERLT

- daul= -0 iR ] 0.5507 7T
1B 0.5507 7T
TEHAR 1@ 51.087%
TEETFHA 3F
1 [ gz ) 2 0.771%
TEEARR B & 0%

2016512 H4RE MEER A TR E
R EF A FEED B A S BRE
0.1699% 7T }&0.17078 7T - X FHBETIER
—XEDER A - SRR E - %R
B A BRI

MR BB RE 0.7607 7T
TEE 0.7607% 7T
T8 HA R 18 56.772%/54.938%
TEETFHA 1/1.084
B b A 2 0.09%/0.1077%
TEHARR B K 0%

RIEAT A (E [ AR R E 5T B UK IE R
RIOVRBEBE=ZFEARENSABED
ratESH -

R2013F9A9R RN BREBXZ A TR
BREXRRR:

i]

Maximum number
of share options

exercisable
REZT{T#E
Vesting schedule EBRER FERERE
From 9 September 2013 to 8 September 2014 2013F9 H9H £2014F9 A8H 40%
From 9 September 2014 to 8 September 2015 201459 H9H £=2015F9 A8H 70%
From 9 September 2015 to 8 September 2016 2015F9 H9H £2016F9 A8H 100%
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The share options granted on 9 October 2013 were subject
to the following vesting schedule:

#7RE B B R bt 53

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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30. FEARHERTEI (&)

2013F 10 9B KB EARIA T &
BRERRR:

Maximum number
of share options

exercisable
®ZO{T{E
Vesting schedule 5 BIF R RS E
From 9 October 2013 to 8 October 2014 2013F10H9H £20144F10HA8H 40%
From 9 October 2014 to 8 October 2015 2014 10H9H £2015F10H8H 70%
From 9 October 2015 to 8 October 2016 2015%F 10 H9H £2016F10A8H 100%

The share options granted to employees on 4 December
2015 are subject to the following vesting schedule:

R2015F12 A48 E FIREMBREAST LA
TEHBRERAER:

Maximum number
of share options

exercisable
®ZO{TE
Vesting schedule EREREER BEIRtEEE
From 1 July 2016 to 31 December 2016 2016F7H1H E2016F12H31H 100%

No vesting conditions were set for the share options granted
to Directors on 17 June 2014 and 4 December 2015.

The fair value of share options granted was recognised as
an employee cost with a corresponding increase in share
options reserve within equity over the relevant vesting
periods.

The Group recognised an expense of approximately
HKD1,481,000 (2015: HKD1,666,000) for the year ended
31 December 2016 in relation to share options granted by
the Company.

M201456 H170 R2015F 12 4R T &
FBREIR A REHFBRER G

ERIBRENAFEEERREEX
7R T B AR R S R ) A R A B B R
B IR AR AR AN -

HE2016F12A31R IFF 8 AEEg A
N BV H A B IS RE SR B 2 1,481,00078 7T
(20154 : 1,666,000/ 7T) °
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31. BONUS WARRANTS

On 18 March 2016, the Company announced a proposed
bonus issue of warrants on the basis of one warrant for every
five Shares held on the record date (i.e. 17 June 2016). On
6 July 2016, 539,732,716 units of warrants were issued.
Each warrant entitles the holder thereof to subscribe in cash
for one share at the initial subscription price of HKD1.00 per
share (subject to adjustments). The warrants are exercisable
at any time during a period of three years commencing from
the date of issue of the warrants (i.e. 6 July 2016). Details of
the bonus warrants are disclosed in the Company's circular

31.

ALFIRE IR 1SS

201643 A18A » AR B AEEBIZN L
X8 8 (201656 A170 ) &4 A AR
MR —MRRREE 2 BERITAFRR
HE7E - A2016%F 7 A6 H 3 17539,732,7161%
RIREE - BHRREFE THEFA AR
- URERETRVTZREELOOE T
RREERG (ATHE) RREZEH
BREITRAEE B (B120165F7 A6
H) =FABER1TE - B AAL TR ER T
BRANA T E B A20165E4 A298 2 @ ik

dated 29 April 2016. No warrants were exercised during the EoFAMERREEEITFE
year.
32. RESERVES 32. &
Share
Share Contributed options Retained
Company F45 premium surplus reserve profits Total
R (8 BEARG  BRERE BERH @t
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TAL AL FEL AL TRL
At 1 January 2015 R2015F1A1H 924,998 586,774 4,970 257,596 1,774,338
Share-based payment PABR AR X £+ - - 1,666 - 1,666
Exercise of share options (Note 30)  17{E B %4 (#77£30) 11,967 - (3,357) - 8610
Lapse of share options BRELK - - (1,430) 1,430 -
Loss for the year FEBE - - - (14,104) (14,104)
At 31 December 2015 M2015%12A31H 936,965 586,774 1,849 244,922 1,770,510
Share-based payment PR 2 £+ - - 1,481 - 1,481
Exercise of share options (Note 30)  1T{FBRRIE (A17230) 5110 - (1,445) - 3,665
Lapse of share options BRE RN - - (1,885) 1,885 -
Loss for the year FEBE - - - (4,473) (4,473)
Dividend paid BERRE - - - (53,974) (53,974)
At 31 December 2016 #2016512A31F 942,075 586,774 - 188360 1,717,209
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32. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

The following describes the nature and purpose of each

reserve within owners’ equity of the Group:

#7RE B B R bt 53

For the year ended 31 December 2016
EHZE2016F12A318ILFE

32. fitits (&)

TXHAREEESEE SRS RE
PN R B

e HEAR B

Reserve Description and purpose
Contributed Contributed surplus of approximately
surplus HKD63,561,000 represents the

Share premium

Properties
revaluation
reserve

Investments
revaluation
reserve

Share options
reserve

excess of the fair value of the shares

of the subsidiaries acquired and the
nominal amount of the Company’s
shares issued for the acquisition at the
time of the group reorganisation on 9
February 1995. The remaining balance
of approximately HKD523,213,000
represents the implementation of capital
reduction in 2012 pursuant to which
the par value of each existing share if
HKDO.50 each in the issued capital of
the Company were reduced by HKDO0.40
each.

Amount subscribed for share capital in
excess of nominal value.

Gains/losses arising on the revaluation

of properties (other than investment
properties). The balance of this reserve is
wholly undistributable.

Gains/losses arising on the revaluation
of available-for-sale investments.

The balance of this reserve is wholly
undistributable.

Cumulative expenses recognised on
the granting of share options to the
employee over the vesting period.

B B E 4 4963,561,00078
TCIyiE B BT B A FEY
A& 15 A B E 71995
FOoOHIRGEEHE KR
W B T B AT B R R BIAR 19
FREEMERE - FREH
#9523,213,0007% 7T Ty 5 1A
2012 B HER AN EIR, - 15
It AR E B B TAR AR
SRR EE0.507 T B &M%
WA RO EEFRERK0.40
BT e

R0k (B RBRACEEHEEDN

TRIH

MEELERE VX (REVERIN ERG
EERWER BB - NER
EEEHIEG R/ TA DK

RESMHE THEEREERELN
Wzt EiE - AEBH RS
BB TR DK

BRERE KREBHMRRTEBRZE

PR 2 RETFIS
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32. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

Reserve Description and purpose
Translation Gains/losses arising on retranslating
reserve the net assets of foreign operations into

presentation currency.

Statutory reserve  Appropriation of profits of the a Taiwan
subsidiary to non-distributable reserve
fund account as required by the relevant
Taiwan statue.

Retained profits Cumulative net gains and losses
recognised in profit or loss.

33. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts,
which include trade and other payables, bank borrowings,
loan from non-controlling interests, net of bank balances
and cash, restricted bank deposits and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital and
various reserves.

1 72 Symphony Holdings Limited
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33. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
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The Directors review the capital structure regularly. As part of

this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital and the

risks associated the share capital. The Group will balance its

overall capital structure through new share issues as well as

the issue of new debts or the redemption of existing debts.

The net debts-to-equity ratios at 31 December 2016 and

33. EXREMGER (§)

EETHENAREERRE -FREH
M—Fn EFEERERAHEANER
PN 2 [ B o 7 5% [ 7S 5B B B AT R A Ko
THESRBERRAER FHHEER]

RIRHE -

2016 82015F 12 A31 H It FEEK#E =

2015 were as follows: FEBAIMTR:

2016 2015
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET FHT
Trade and other payables B 5 N E b FET BRI 258,836 265,611
Bank borrowings IRITEN 719,491 737,251
Loan from non-controlling interests KEFZEREZER 153,254 153,254
1,131,581 1,156,116
Less: Bank balances and cash W BRITEBRRIRS (328,468) (470,025)
Restricted bank deposits SIRAFIEITFER (4,870) (13,427)
Net debts BEFE 798,243 672,664
Equity HE 2,177,817 2,319,135
Net debts to equity ratio BESERFE 37% 29%

W E AR AT

2016 FE WS

173



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&R O Bif 75 3R ZE Bt 3

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B ZE2016F 128318 IEFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(A) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

34. &R TH

(A) &£RTHEER

2016 2015
Carrying amount Fair value | Carrying amount Fair value
FREE ATEEE RHEE NFERE
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FET FET TEL THL
Financial assets SHEE
Fair value through profit or loss TABRNATER
(held for trading) (BHEEE)
- Trading securities -BEE&H 10,714 10,714 16,420 16,420
Loans and receivables B FE I AR SR
- Bank balances and cash —-RITEHRERE 351,147 (note) 494,519 (note)
(Bis) 53]
— Amount due from joint ventures —ElAEEHE 53,069 (note) - (note)
(PisE) i3]
— Loan to non-controlling interest - BT ERER 1,668 (note) - (note)
(Mis) (Mi5E)
— Restricted bank deposits —ZBRHBITER 4,870 (note) 13,427 (note)
(BisE) (M35%)
— Trade and other receivables - BHREMERER 129,060 (note) 94,068 (note)
(FisE) i3]
- Advances to customers in margin -~ —IREFRECRE 119,656 (note) 126,050 (note)
financing BEZ8F (Mis) 53]
- Loans receivables -EWER 333,810 (note) 629,196 (note)
(BizE) 53]
Financial liabilities measured at SRBEERRERAGE
amortised cost
— Trade and other payables - B REMEAER 99,601 (note) 108,874 (note)
(FisE) (M35%)
— Bank borrowings —FITER 719,491 (note) 737,251 (note)
(Mis) i3]
— Loan from non-controlling interests ~ — 3K B 3E MR E B X 153,254 (note) 153,254 (note)
(Mist) (MF5E)
Note: The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of these HteF: EFERA PWERR ZSEA KA

categories approximate to their fair value on the grounds that
either their maturities are short or their effective interest rates

approximate the discount rates as at the end of the reporting

period.
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7 B B 75 ¥R 2R B 51
For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE2016F12A31HILFE
34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 34. £t TH (4§)
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (B) £REMMEZEBEFERBIR
AND POLICIES
The Group’s major financial instruments include AEENEZTZEem T ERERKE S
amounts due from joint ventures, loan to non- EFIE BERTHERERZ XH
controlling interest, trading securities, trade and BHE B NHMEBWER RET
other receivables, advances to customers in margin RECBMERP 2R - ERER
financing, loans receivable, bank balances and cash, RITEBR RIS IREBRTER
restricted bank deposits, trade and other payables, B REMBEMER RITEREK
bank borrowings and loan from non-controlling BIEERERER - LSBT AR
interests. Details of these financial instruments are FEIBE AN - E e T A
disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated HENRBREEEERR FIXRE
with these financial instruments include currency risk, B EERE - REBE SRR MRA
interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and equity EERR RSN ERRHBEREH
price risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks HIATX - EREFRETE REZIL
are set out below. Management manages and monitors L@ b - FEOR ] RS A UM B EUE 2
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are HHE o
implemented on a timely and effective manner.
(i)  Currency risk (i) BHEELE
Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign PN oE S U NN T o BN et
currency sales and purchases, which expose the HERBESAEREAZING
Group to foreign currency risk. [ Bgs
At the end of the reporting period, the carrying ReREER - AEBARBEEE
amounts of the Group’s monetary assets and EENNEERUINNERLE
monetary liabilities that were denominated in a AMrSERNEAERERA
currency other than the functional currency of R REEST
the relevant group entities were as follows:
Liabilities Assets
af =13
2016 2015 2016 2015
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FHT TET FET TAT
HKD BT 475,414 478,587 637,716 1,064,758
FEEEBRAT
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

176

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i)  Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis
The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuation
in USD/HKD exchange rate. However, the foreign
currency risk is not significant as HKD is pegged
to USD.

(ii)  Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate bank deposits and
loans receivable. The Directors consider the
Group'’s exposure to fair value interest rate risk is
not significant as interest bearing bank deposits
and loans receivable are within short maturity
periods.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank deposits,
advances from customers in margin financing
and bank borrowings. It is the Group’s policy to
keep its deposits at floating rate of interest so as
to minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate arising from the Group’s
USD denominated bank deposits and HKD and
USD denominated bank loans.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(ii)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for non-derivative instruments at the
end of the reporting period. The analysis is
prepared assuming these financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 50
basis point increase or decrease is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to
key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates on bank deposits and advances
to customers in margin financing had been
50 basis points (2015: 50 basis points)
higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s profit for the year
ended 31 December 2016 would increase/
decrease by HKD1,029,000 (2015: profit for
the year increase/decrease by HKD2,269,000)
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest
rates on its variable-rate bank deposits and
advances to customers in margin financing. In
addition, if interest rates on bank borrowings
had been 50 basis points (2015: 50 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s profit for the year
ended 31 December 2016 would decrease/
increase by HKD3,004,000 (2015: profit for
the year decrease/increase by HKD3,078,000)
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest
rates on its variable-rate bank borrowings.

#RE B B R bt 53

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B E2016F128318 IEFE

34. €T R (&)

(B) £REMEZEBEFERBIR (&)

(i) FIEmEE (&)
HRE T
ATBRE DT EBEERER
EHRIEITE T AR EE
AEMERE - NBREHR A5
MIHREZERALANERT
ARNEFHERAIBMER - K
SEANAEIEZEREABER
) & [ B & BRANDOEBL E 7T I
TERAEE WK EEEY
GRS = E N IR

W ERTTTF SR & R ARt TR F
CRMEREPZEREA /TR
50 B (2015%F : 50E2) © &
FTEREMmSERBERTE.
BN E# £2016F12H31H
1FF AR A G & 1 0 R A
1,029,000 7t (20154 : F A
& I 3808 4 2,269,0007%
L)W TERAEBE KRB F
BB RITER KRR TIRE
CRERE 2 BRTEEFIR
BB FT B o b A SR IT B R
= EF+ T BR50E B (2015
F 5052 mFATA E A A &
AEHEH T AAEEHE
2016%F12A318 1+ E /955 F
# 5 /1 113,004,000/% 7T
(2015%F : F Wi AR 218 0
3,078,000/7T) * Ty A%LE
RZEF B RITERAMEE A

R 2 PR
3 A PR 22 5
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

178

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(iii) ~ Credit risk

The credit risk of these segments is primarily
attributable to its trade and other receivables,
advances to customers in margin financing and
loans receivable. In order to minimise the credit
risk, management of the Group has delegated
a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the Directors consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

Segments other than financial services segment
The Group had a concentration of credit risk in
relation to trade receivables of these segments
as 17% (2015: 22%) and 57% (2015: 44%) of
these segments’ total trade receivables were due
from their largest customer and the five largest
customers respectively. These receivables were
mainly within the branding, retailing and sourcing
segments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(iii)  Credit risk (Continued)

(iv)

Financial services segment

This segment has put in place a well-established
credit policy governing the granting of credit limit
to customers. Customers are generally required
to deposit their securities, properties or other
appropriate assets with the Group as collateral to
their borrowings. The credit risks of customers
are regularly monitored with reference to the
realisable values of the collateral.

The Group had a concentration of credit risk
in relation to trade receivables, advances to
customers in margin financing and loans
receivable of this segment as 16% (2015: 21%)
and 53% (2015: 57%) of this segment’s total
receivables were due from their largest customer
and the five largest customers respectively.

The credit risk of the Group's other financial
assets, which comprise amount due from joint
ventures, loan to non-controlling interests,
bank balances, bank balances held on behalf
of customers, restricted bank deposits,
trading securities, arises from default of the
counterparties, with a maximum exposure equal
to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the operations of the
Group and mitigate the effects of fluctuations
in cash flows. For the Group'’s financial services
segment, there is a constant need of funding
for the settlement of securities transactions and
for the provision of financing and loans to the
customers.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 34. £RIT A (&)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(B) £RMEMREZEERBR (F)

(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued) (iv) HEELEE(E)
The following table details the Group's TRFMAEEREGTHE
remaining contractual maturity for its non- BN R A EHS
derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed ERFEH ZRDENREREE
repayment terms. The table has been drawn WARBBRReRE RIEREE
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of AxPEMNBEmMEH - L2
financial liabilities according to the earliest date KA BB BB R R A IRTT
on which the Group can be required to pay. ERgyARRREREN TR
Specifically, bank borrowings with a repayment RITIEEITHEHEF AR - H
on demand clause are included in the earliest IEPTE SR A G A TR
time band regardless of the probability of the BEEEHERBH - KRBT
banks choosing to exercise their rights. The FIERAEGRER-
maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment
dates. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows.
Liquidity and interest risk tables B E 2 R FEE g &K
On demand Carrying
Weighted or Total amount
average less than 1-3 312 More than  undiscounted at
2016 20165 interest rate 1 month months months 1 year cash flows  31.12.2016
12016
flEmE REOfHEH REH 12A3182
FHE  PRIER 138 3-12f8R ER-% HeReE WRE{E
%  HKD'OOO  HKD'OOO  HKD'O00  HKD'O0O  HKD'000  HKD'00O
TER TR THER TER THER THER
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ FE$T4£SME R
Trade and other payables B REMERFE - 99,601 - - - 99,601 99,601
Bank borrowings - varia-ble interest-rate 35175 3 — 2 E)F|% 2.71 156,685 2,537 11,524 605,793 776,539 719,491
Loan from non-controlling interests REFEREZNER - - - - 153,254 153,254 153,254
256,286 2537 11524 759,047 1029394 972,346
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued)

(v)

Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)

#RE B B R bt 53

For the year ended 31 December 2016

B ZE20165F12A31H LFE

34. €T R (&)

(B) REMEEEERBK (&)

(iv)

REEREE ()
RBELRF|FREER LT (F)

On demand Carrying
Weighted or Total amount
average less than 13 312 More than  undiscounted at
2015 2015% interest rate 1 month months months 1 year cashflows  31.12.2015
20158
MEmE  REAMAR KB 1283182
THE  SRUEAR 1-3fA 31284 SR—F  BEREE REE
% HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
Fi#n Thr Fin Fin Fitn Fin
Non-derivative financial liabilities FELHMAER

Trade and other payables ZHREMENTE - 108,874 - - - 108874 108874
Bank borrowings - varia-ble interest-rate 3517 & 5 — 3 &)F|% 2.16 156,311 2,086 9476 628 147 796,020 737,251
Loan from non-controlling interests REFEREZNER - - - - 153,254 153,254 153,254
265,185 2,086 9476 781,401 1,008,148 999,379

Equity price risk v) BREEHERE

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of
equity securities decrease as a result of changes
in the levels of equity indices and the value of
individual securities. The Group was exposed to
equity price risk arising from individual equity
investments classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss as at 31 December
2016 and 2015.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to
every 5% change in the fair values of the Group’s
equity investments, with all other variables held
constant and before any impact on tax, based on
their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting
period.

P A (B A% L B =2 3 AR 15 30K
FRERESFEEESH S
MR AESZ A FEETH®ROR
Bz » 720164 K2015412 431
B NEEFE S RAERE
RRBDER/BEBBERAT
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KK -

TRINTAEE 2 RARE 2
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(B BB RRET T LA
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(v)  Equity price risk (Continued)

34. €T R (&)

(B) £RMEMREZEEERBER (F)

) RFEHERLE(F)

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in profit (decrease)
in fair value before tax in equity
AFEEZ KBiBmaAz #EEzEn
wm (RL) i (B (ED)
% HKD'000 HKD'000
% THET FHET
2016 20165
Investments listed in Hong Kong REELETZ®E
— Trading securities —-BEERS 5% 536 -
2015 2015%F
Investments listed in Hong Kong REA LT ZRE
— Trading securities —-BEBH 5% 821 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 34. £RIT A (&)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (B) £REMEZEBEFERBIR (&)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(vi) Offsetting financial assets and financial i) BHEEHEERSHERE
liabilities
The following tables present details of TEREJNNAEHETTFRE 2
the Group’s financial instruments subject BT H - AJoRbIENTT 2 BT REAE
to offsetting, enforceable master netting HRBERBEUREFS-

arrangements and similar agreements.

Financial assets subject to offsetting

TFHHZEMEE

Related amounts not offset
in the statement of
financial position

BERMBERRREHEZ
HEE#

Gross Net

amount of amount of

recognised financial

financial assets
Gross liabilities presented Financial
amount of  offset in the inthe instruments
recognised statement  statement of other Cash
financial of financial financial than cash collateral
assets position position collateral received  Net amount

REBRAZ RUBHKRRX RLHWE
EER HACHD 25z Mz ElEg
SHAERE SHMARGE SMAEFE  SMIA e 8
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TATL ThL TER TET TR TER

At 31 December 2016 20165%12R318
Type of financial assets CREEES
Trade receivable from HKSCC RERBEEY
B SRRER 31,520 (31,520) - - - -
At 31 December 2015 R2015%12A31H
Type of financial assets SREEES
Trade receivable from HKSCC REEREE
B HRRER 35,402 (13,087) 2315 - - 2315
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

184

(vi) Offsetting financial assets and financial

liabilities (Continued)

32. £ TR (&)

(B) £RMEMREZEERBR (F)

(vi) HHEHEERSHMER
(4)

Financial liabilities subject to offsetting

AFRHEZ AR

Related amounts not offset in
the statement of
financial position

BERMBRRREHZ
HEeE
Gross
amount of
recognised  Net amount
financial of financial
assets liabilities Financial
Gross amount offsetin  presented in instruments
of recognised  the statement the statement other Cash
financial of financial of financial than cash collateral
liabilities position position collateral received  Net amount
REB®RER REBE®RREZ ReHAR
R RHECED 23l2 sz EkBE
SHARGE SMAEGE SMARTE SMIA et )
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
Fign T Fign Fign Tin Fign
At 31 December 2016 12016%12R31R
Type of financial liabilties SREEER
REBRREL
Trade payable from HKSCC BIERER 35,675 (31,520) 4,155 - - 4,155
At 31 December 2015 R2015512A31R
Type of financial liabilities SREEER
REBREE
Trade payable from HKSCC O NS 13,087 (13,087) - - - -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
B E2016F128318 IEFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 34. £RIT A (&)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(vi) Offsetting financial assets and financial

(B) REMEEEERBK (&)

vi) HHEHEEREHMER

liabilities (Continued)

The tables below reconcile the amounts of

trade and other receivables and trade and

(4)
TERBREAMBARRKMZ
SIARKE 28 5 R E AW AR

other payables of the Group as presented in the HEE S R EMENRERERE
consolidated statement of financial position: ZEHER:
Trade and other receivables HZRA M BN
2016 2015
HKD’000 HKD'000
FHET FHET
Net amount of trade receivables KEBEBEEZ
from HKSCC 2 S REWRF - 22,315
Trade and other receivables not TNEREHEGE
in the scope of offsetting disclosure B 5 M E A e W BR TR 142,508 93,527
Trade and other receivables AT RE
as disclosed in the consolidated FiEEZEsES R
statement of financial position B U BR 3K 142,508 115,842
Trade and other payables B 2R A TR
2016 2015
HKD’000 HKD’000
FET FET
Net amount of trade payables REBBER
from HKSCC B2 RNERFFHE 4,155 -
Trade and other payables not NERIEHREE 2
in the scope of offsetting disclosure & % K FL o & (4 FR 5K 254,681 265,611
Trade and other payables A AR R R
as disclosed in the consolidated FEECESD R
statement of financial position AL R AR 258,836 265,611
FUEEAERAS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
B ZE2016F12A31AILFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(C) FAIR VALUE

186

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

° Level 1 — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities, the fair
value of financial assets with standard terms and
conditions and traded on active liquid markets
are determined with reference to quoted market
bid prices (level 1).

° Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices
included with in Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

° Level 3 — inputs for the asset or liability that are
not based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs).

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and liabilities recorded at amortised
cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
EZE2016F12A318ILFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 34. £RIT A (&)

(C) FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED) ©)
Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, all grouped into Level 1, based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of
the inputs to the fair value measurements. Level 1 fair
value measurements are those derived from quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical

AFEE(F)
BRI BRI B ey 22 F (B (BT

=
TRATBMTAEA AN FEER
RzEmtE (MEHREAFEE

FEEFEBABEMBESERL
DT BRINFEBETDRE
A HREERBOE RN T ST HRE
(REFHB)AE-

assets.
2016 2015
HKD’000 HKD’000
THET FHE T
Level 1 E—RR
Fair value through profit or BRATEBEIIAER
loss financial assets - listed SREE—L™ 10,714 16,420
35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 35. HAAETRK
Details of potential tax liabilities in connection with the PRI BOA P B MM R ATEA 2B
potential penalty arising from the late filing of PRC tax Sie (WE)BENEERBEEZFBR
returns, if any, are detailed in Note 8. B EE8FF il
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
B ZE2016F 128318 IEFE

36. OPERATING LEASES

THE GROUP AS LESSEE

The Group made the following minimum lease payments

during the year as follows:

36. FEHE

FREAKRBA
REERFRERATREREHR

2016 2015
HKD’000 HKD'000
THET T

Operating lease rentals in respect of: UTEENEEEERES

Minimum lease payments: =IEBERKE

— offices o NE 669 1,741
— stafff quarters —8I1IwEs 258 -
— retail shops —-ZEE 5,294 3,677
Contingent rentals A ® 6,150 5,202
12,371 10,620

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had

commitments for future minimum lease payments for offices,

warehouses, staff quarters and retail shops under non-

cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

RBEHAR AEBARINEERERT
ARUEHKEHENNAE RE-BIHE
ERTERHNARFERENE &5
HENSHFNT

2016 2015

HKD’000 HKD’000

FHET FHET

Within one year —FR 16,003 4,968
In the second to fifth year, inclusive F_FEFERF

(BIEEEME) 1,602 1,864

17,605 6,832

Operating lease payments represent rental payable by the

Group for certain of its retail shops. Leases are negotiated for

lease terms of one to three years.

1 88 Symphony Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016

REMEFRDEASEENEETEE
EHOEE BOEHEER—E=FT

o

&



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36. OPERATING LEASES (CONTINUED)

37.

THE GROUP AS LESSEE (CONTINUED)

The above lease commitments represent basic rents only
and do not include contingent rents payable in respect of
certain retail shops leased by the Group. In general, these
contingent rents are calculated with reference to the relevant
retail shops’ turnover using pre-determined formulae. It is
not possible to estimate in advance the amount of such
contingent rent payable.

THE GROUP AS LESSOR
Property rental income earned during the year was
HKD36,245,000 (2015: HKD34,042,000). Investment
properties held for rental purposes have committed tenants
for the next two to three years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease

#RE B B R bt 53

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B E2016F128318 IEFE

6. EEHE (1§)

FEEARBEA (&F)
LREEAEEEEAES  BTREAE
BHENETETERHNENKAREE-
—RME ZEXARBEH2EZHBETE
NS ERERAELEENREAFE
SRAENARIAE SNSRI A
T

FREAHBA

FA - FEYE LKA 36,245,000/8 7T
(2015%F : 34,042,0007T) ° RARRME=
FREVERZNRENFECHINE
}5

o

RBEHR AEEBEBEF AT RRKE
MEFBEEHMT

payments:
2016 2015
HKD’000 HKD’000
TFHT FHE T
Within one year —FR 24,532 32,587
In the second to fifth year, inclusive F_FEERF
(BEERMT) 18,147 36,603
42,679 69,190
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 37. EXEIE
2016 2015
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHT FHE T
Contracted for but not provided BFRACETIL S KRG
— Capital expenditure in respect of the —BHEKLEERES
establishment of a joint venture BEAREX 3,893 32,437
FEEEBRAT

2016 FEHE
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
B ZE2016F12A31AILFE

38.

39.

190

UNDERWRITING AND SUB-
UNDERWRITING COMMITMENTS

The Group guaranteed to purchase the securities in
underwriting amounted to Nil (2015: HKD14,998,000)
being offered by sales of securities, at an agreed-upon price
between the Group and issuer of securities, regardless of
whether or not the securities could be sold to investors
in the future. In the opinion of the directors of the Group,
the fair values of the underwriting and sub-underwriting
arrangements were insignificant to the Group.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) for all its qualifying employees in Hong
Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group, under the control of trustees. The
Group contributes 5% or HKD1,500 in maximum of relevant
payroll costs to the MPF Scheme, which contribution is
matched by employees.

The subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC are members
of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated
by the government of the PRC. The retirement scheme
contributions, which are based on a certain percentage of the
salaries of the relevant subsidiaries’ employees, are charged
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in
the period to which they relate and represent the amount of
contributions payable by these subsidiaries to the scheme.

The Group also participates in defined contribution
retirement schemes organised by the relevant local
government authorities in other jurisdictions where the
Group operates. Certain employees of the Group eligible
for participating in the retirement schemes are entitled to
retirement benefits from the schemes. The Group is required
to make contributions to the retirement schemes up to
the time of retirement of the eligible employees, excluding
those employees who resigned before their retirements, at a
percentage that is specified by the local governments.
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40. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(A)

(B)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into the following

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR O B FE 3R X Bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE20165F12A31H ILFE

40. FEAN LT E

(A) FAEALXRS

FRAAEERAESE BEELE

transactions with Mr. Cheng Tun Nei, the Director: EITUTRS:
2016 2015
HKD’000 HKD’000
Nature e TFHET FHET
Commission income BeA 63 216
Interest income AEUA 241 219
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEEW¥ FE L XE - 2,896
Entertainment expenses ¥BHBGE 321 -
Management fee expenses BEBRAY 50 -
Rental expenses Hefx 324 -

Total amount of margin financing facilities RERBETRESHBHE

granted as at the year end date (Note) Tz B&5 (M) 10,000 10,000
Maximum amount of margin financing RECHER= TR 4,556 11,633

Note: Advances to the Director in margin financing are repayable
on demand, carry interest at Prime Rate plus 3% per annum,
and are secured by securities collateral for both years. These
transactions constitute connected transactions as defined
under the Listing Rules, and those that are not exempted from
disclosures in accordance with the Listing Rules are set out in
the section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” in the

Corporate Gov-ernance Report.

COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT

Mz PREFERN HRESHERESED

ZEFEANERKEE ERESNE
GEM3%aTE - W AR FHEIA RIERTE
ReZEZXHER EMRBIETIRE
ZHER S MREETRATER R
FHEBEZRZENEEELRRSE [55
BRERS] —f-

(B) EEEHEANEFHM

PERSONNEL

The remuneration of the Directors and other members FNEENHMEEEEAENF

of key management during the year was as follows: B a0 T
2016 2015
HKD’000 HKD’000
FET FTAT
Short-term benefits 52 HAE 10,640 14,645
Post-employment benefits KL EAEER 110 555
10,750 15,200

The remuneration of the Directors and key executives
is determined by the Board of Di-rectors having regard

to the performance of the individuals and market

trends.

HUEEHRAE
2016 FE WS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
B ZE2016F12A31AILFE

41. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

41. ER AT FIRERR

2016 2015
Notes HKD’000 HKD’000
Bt F#T FHET
Non-current assets EMEEE
Investments in subsidiaries HERWE QA 988 988
Amounts due from subsidiaries I ENGIE 2,316,199 2.287,359
2,317,187 2,288,347
Current assets MEEE
Other receivables H b W g IE 1,861 636
Bank balances and cash RITEB LIRS 152,294 233,820
154,155 234,456
Current liabilities mEaE
Amounts due to subsidiaries Rl ENGIE 16,703 16,702
Other payables H b fE IR 1,609 810
Bank borrowings RITEE 155,082 155,002
173,394 172,514
Net current (liabilities)/assets e (afk) EEFE (19,239) 61,942
Non-current liabilities EREBAE
Bank borrowings RITER 310,164 310,004
Net assets BEFE 1,987,784 2,040,285
Equity s
Share capital fi% 7R 29 270,575 269,775
Reserves 1 32 1,717,209 1,770,510
1,987,784 2,040,285
1 92 Symphony Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016



42. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

42.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31

December 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

#7RE B B R bt 51

For the year ended 31 December 2016
EZE2016F12A318ILFE

T B B A BB HEfR

20165 k2015612 H31H - R ARIM £
EMBARFBRT:

Place of
incorporation/ Paid up Effective interest in issued/
registration issued/registered registered capital held
Subsidiary and operation share capital by the Company Principal activities
A FADREERT/
HEAS BHREENE  BME/ B/ BERA BHRBAHRHS EBED
2016 2015
Directly Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
B ik B flt
Cosmo Group Holdings Limited ~ The British Virgin Ordinary USD10,000 100% - 100% - Investment holding
Islands T %10,000% T REER
HERAES
Misto Worldwide Limited The British Virgin Ordinary USD1 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Islands LTRmRIET REER
EERAES
Power Plus Limited The British Virgin Ordinary USD1 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Islands EilE BREER
EBELES
Premier Ever Group Limited The British Virgin Ordinary USD63,068,127 - 100% - 62.5%  Investment holding
Islands T RA63,068,1275 T REER
EERAES
Rivergold International Limited ~ The British Virgin Ordinary USD78,364,080 - 100% - 70%  Investment holding
Islands L3805 78,364,080% T BAEER
EERAES
BERERITEERR The PRC (Wholly Registered capital - 100% - 70%  Property investment
BRAT owned foreign USD70,766,000 MEERE
enterprise) & 70,766,000% 7T
hE (SNEEE
%)
W S A PR 23 E)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE PSR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B ZE2016F12A31AILFE

42. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

42. KB ASIEHER (8)

(CONTINUED)
Place of
incorporation/ Paid up Effective interest in issued/
registration issued/registered registered capital held
Subsidiary and operation share capital by the Company Principal activities
AL AATRAERT/
B AE B REEHE B8R BT/ BRRE BERAFRER TEEH
2016 2015
Directly Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
B Gk E#% fls
China Rise Capital Co., Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HKD5,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Provision of
HEEERERATF ) 48 5,000,000 7T insurance,
brokerage services
and portfolio
management
RERE CL0RS
MEEEEER
BBk 7%
China Rise Finance Co., Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HKD10,000 - 100% - 100%  Provision of money
EERBERAA e ERI%10,0008 T lending services
REEBEERS
China Rise Finance Group Hong Kong Ordinary HKD10,000 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Company Limited A% L3&M%10,000%8 T RAZR
EEoREEBRLA
China Rise Securities Asset Hong Kong Ordinary HKD100,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Dealing and advising
Management Company N & 3&M%100,000,000% 7T in securities
Limited REEFHZHR

HEEESEEEEERAT BRRE

KGHAEERRAT The PRC (Wholly Registered capital - 100% - 625%  Operation and
owned foreign USD9,800,000 management of
enterprise) 14 789,800,000% 7 outlet malls

RE (5 RERIEERERE
BAGE)

RGEFHMAEEBMRAR The PRC (Wholly Registered capital - 58% - 58%  Property investment
owned foreign USD42,500,000 MERE
enterprise) & 7R42,500,000% 7T

HRE (5
BAGE)

BHEEYEEERAA The PRC (Wholly Registered capital - 58% - 58%  Property investment
owned foreign USD18,300,000 MERE
enterprise) & 7K18,300,000% 7T

RE (5
BAGE)

Symphony Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR O B FE 3R X Bt 5
For the year ended 31 December 2016

EZE2016F12A318ILFE
42. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 42. RMBATIMI#ER (8)
(CONTINUED)
Place of
incorporation/ Paid up Effective interest in issued/
registration issued/registered registered capital held
Subsidiary and operation share capital by the Company Principal activities
A AATRHHERT
HEAT B REERE B8R #T/BRRE BRRAFRER TEEH
2016 2015
Directly Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
B ik E#% filt
JFT Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKD316,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Provision of IT,
BHEBERERAT ) 3 %316,000,000 7 corporate services
and portfolio
management
REFERM X
REMREES
ERHORE
Kwan Tai Resources Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKD10 - 100% - 100%  Property investment
ERBRARAT B LRRI0BT MERE
Smart Shine Industries Limited ~ The British Virgin Ordinary USD 2 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Islands TmR2ET BAEER
RBELHES
SYM Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKD2 - 100% - 100%  Property investment
& LRR2ET NERE
Trillion Earning Limited The British Virgin Ordinary USD1 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Islands EWRIET REER
EERAES
Worldwide Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100% - 100%  Property investment
EMELABR AT &k EiA%10,000% T MERE
Ry (L8 ERES The PRC (Wholly Ordinary USD3,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Property investment
BRAF owned foreign *38A%3,000,000% T MERE
enterprise)
R (90
BELE)
SERRFERMBERAF  Taiwan Ordinary NTD50,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Operation and
=) 38 % 57 & #50,000,000 management of
Duty-Free Shops
BEREBRSHMIE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&R O Bif 75 3R ZE Bt 3F

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B ZE2016F12A31AILFE

42. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

42. KB ASIEHER (8)

(CONTINUED)
Place of
incorporation/ Paid up Effective interest in issued/
registration issued/registered registered capital held
Subsidiary and operation share capital by the Company Principal activities
MM AATRAERT/
HEAT B REEHE EHE#T/BRRE BiERAFRER TEEH
2016 2015
Directly Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
B Gk B [l
Arena (Shanghai) Industrial The PRC Oridinary RMB30,000 - 70% - - Trading, retailing
Co. Limited f L@k AR 30,0007T and distribution of
Psmdl (L8 BEXARAT swimming apparel
and accessories
g5 TERHEHIE
KA R B8
Perfect Day Ventures Limited The British Virgin Ordinary USD 30,000 - 100% - - Investment holding
Islands % %30,000% 7T REER
EBERAES
Pony International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKD2 - 100% - 100%  Sub-licensing of
o L@R2ET trademark rights,
trading and
wholesales
EEAEE
BH L%
Super Jumbo Holdings Limited ~ The British Virgin Ordinary USD1 - 100% - 100%  Development and
Islands LmRIET management of
KBEEAHES “PONY" brand
R ETE [PONY |
i
HERERGERAT The PRC (Wholly Ordinary USD14,080,000 - 100% - 100%  Trading, retailing
owned foreign 3% 1%14,080,000% T and distribution of
enterprise) swimming apparel
B (5N and accessories
BEAGE) 25 TERHEHE
KA m R AL #h
Giant Eagle Enterprises Limited ~ The British Virgin Ordinary USD50,000 - 58% - 58%  Investment holding
Islands L8 AE50,0005% 7T REER
HEELHES
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Annual Report 2016

196




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

42. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt security at the

end of the year or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,

in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results

or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries

would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.

43. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

A.

PREMIER EVER GROUP LIMITED

Due to the acquisition of remaining equity interest in
Premier Ever Group Limited (“Premier Ever”) during
the year ended 31 December 2016, Premier Ever
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group and
the relevant non-controlling interests became nil. The
non-controlling interests of all other subsidiaries that
are not 100% owned by the Group are considered to
be immaterial.

Summarised financial information in relation to the
non-controlling interests of Premier Ever before
intra-group eliminations as at 31 December 2015 is

#7RE B B R bt 51

For the year ended 31 December 2016
EZE2016F12A318ILFE

42. KB ASIEHER (8)

PR 2 R g AR FE AR ) B R A0 - 30 B
B AR BEITERBBRD -

EERR LRMINARBMBRER
TEREASREXENEENRA -EF
RAMEHREMKHBARTNFAENESE
HMBRREMBYBRITK-

43. FiZintE=

A. PREMIER EVER GROUP

LIMITED

BRE £2016F12A8318 IEFE
W U B Premier Ever Group Limited
(Premier Ever )z & A% #
Premier Everfk A& E v 2 &K B
NEIRBAFERER AT - ML
BAEERX BB MEHEMNER
AIZIEER R TR AW IEE RN -

M2015%12A31H » B @Premier
EverZ IEE R 2 IS ER R E
(REEERNARMIESE) DR TX 2

presented below: (I
HKD’000
FET
Current FEFH
Assets BE 22,077
Liabilities =R (56,439)
(34,362)
Non-current TRED
Assets BE 615,753
Liabilities af& (42,700)
573,053
Net assets EBEFE 538,691
Accumulated non-controlling interests LT IEE AR R 153,307

HUEEHRAE
2016 FE WS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE PSR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B ZE2016F12A31AILFE

43. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(CONTINUED)

A.

198

PREMIER EVER GROUP LIMITED
(CONTINUED)

Summarised statement of comprehensive income of

43. FiFixtEm (&)

A. PREMIER EVER GROUP
LIMITED (&)
B F2015%125 31 A - E Premier

Premier Ever for the year ended 31 December 2015 EverZ 2 B 723 ZHFE
HKD’'000
FERT

Revenue - 29,322

Loss before income tax expenses BrET1S B S A E 1B (53,702)
Income tax expenses Frigfif = -

Loss for the year FEEE (53,702)
Other comprehensive income Hith 2 EUA (26,266)
Total comprehensive income for the year FE2EBARRE (79,968)
Loss allocated to non-controlling interests DT IR S 2 BB (19,443)
The information above shows amounts before inter- L ERBERARIEEEARRFEEKHE

company eliminations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

43. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(CONTINUED)

A.

PREMIER EVER GROUP LIMITED
(CONTINUED)
Summarised statement of cash flows of Premier Ever

#7RE B B R bt 51

For the year ended 31 December 2016
EZE2016F12A318ILFE

43. FiFixtEm (&)

PREMIER EVER GROUP
LIMITED (&)
B FE2015%125 31 A - E Premier

for the year ended 31 December 2015 EverZ B &R EFHE
HKD’000
FHET
Cash generated from operations REKEEBEHRE 6,143
Income tax paid ERNAEH -
Net cash from operating activities REKEEEERIR B IFEE 6,143
Cash flow from investing activities REBREEFHZRERE
Net cash used in investing activities RAREERERIR ¢ /F5 (23,836)
Cash flow from financing activities REBEFHHRERE
Net cash used in financing activities AREEEEREREFE (307)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents HeMREFEEBYR I FRE (18,000)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ~ F¥IR & RIS EHEY 34,208
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and EXEFHRSRASEBY T E
cash equivalents (2,498)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRAEGARSEED 13,710

LOAN FROM NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
Save as aforesaid, there is a loan from non-
controlling interest which amounted to approximately
HKD153,254,000 (2015: HKD153,254,000) as at
31 December 2016. The loan is being unsecured,
interest-free and with no fixed terms of repayment.
The non-controlling interest has agreed not to demand
repayment of the loan from the Group within the next
twelve months from the end of the reporting period.
Accordingly, the Directors believe that the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the loan
for at least twelve months after the end of the reporting
period and classified the loan as a non-current liability.

REFERERER

Br bt & b 2016912831
H REBEETBREZOHDERY
%153,254,000/% T (20154 :
153,254,000/ 7T ) - Z E X A E I
IR B A B R 4 & EREAR o 7
A& BARBARR @A R FEE
BEZRETEREEZER K
- EERA NEEEEGKEETR
BEZERU B ZeEOBERIERE
BfE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&R O Bif 75 3R ZE Bt 3F

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B ZE2016F12A31AILFE

44. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

44. HEMBAE

(a) On 18 September 2015, the Group disposed of the (@) M2015%9A18H AEBUR &R

subsidiary, Grand Golden Enterprises Limited (“Grand
Golden”), to an independent third party for a cash
consideration of HKD20. The net liabilities of Grand
Golden and its subsidiaries at the date of disposal were

BOBLABLE =T HEHNB
72 A]Grand Golden Enterprises Limited
([Grand Golden )  Grand Golden
HEARINEERBR 8B FHET

as follows: T
HKD’000
FET
Net liabilities disposed of: HEBEFE:
Tax recoverable A Uk [0 74 18 52,314
Prepayments and other receivables TEA BR 51 & E At B U BR 3R 8
Bank balances and cash RITEHRNIE® 1,653
Other payables H A fE AT BR 5K (1,817)
Tax payable FET IR (52,313)
Shareholders’ loan R R E (97,626)
(97,781)
HKD’000
FHET
Consideration RE -
Less: Shareholders’ loan assigned to the buyer R CEETEFNREER (97,626)
Net liabilities disposed of HEaEFEE 97,781
HEMRB AR K 155

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

200 Symphony Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

44. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

#7RE B B R bt 51

For the year ended 31 December 2016
EZE2016F12A318ILFE

44. HEMBAE ()

(CONTINUED)
(@)  (Continued) (@ (&)
An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash B 1 &Grand Golden X E KB A &)
equivalents in respect of the disposal of Grand Golden Z2HeRRSEEBMRLFES TN
and its subsidiaries was as follows: ™~
HKD’000
T
Cash consideration ReRE -
Bank balances and cash disposed of HERTEH LIRS (1,653)
(1,653)
(b) During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group (b) REZE2015F12A31HIEFEER K
disposed/deemed to have disposed of some other EEHE WAREERES T HMM
subsidiaries for a cash consideration of HKD1,125,000. BARREREAL 1250005 T -
The net liabilities of these subsidiaries at the date of ZEWBRAARNEERHcBEFHE
disposal were as follows: wm
HKD’000
FHET
Net liabilities disposed of: HEABFE:
Property, plant and equipment Y BB MR 2,101
Club debenture gHTES 1,124
Trade and other receivables B 5 M A e I BR X 10,571
Bank balances and cash RITHEH RIS 6,392
Trade and other payables B 5 & E b FE T BRI (24,368)
(4,180)
Non-controlling interests IEVER S 861
(3,319)

HUEEHRAE
2016 FE WS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
B ZE2016F12A31AILFE

44. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

44. HEMBE 23] (4§)

(b)  (Continued) (b) (&)
HKD’000
T
Consideration RAB 1,125
Net liabilities disposed of HEABEFE 3,319
Release of translation reserves FRBRIE H 1B (129)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR 4,315
An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash EHRHEZEMBARIZEE LIRS
equivalents in respect of the disposal of these ZEMREFBAONNOT
subsidiaries was as follows:
HKD’000
T
Cash consideration BeRE 1,125
Bank balances and cash disposed of HERTESREES (6,392)
(5,267)

Symphony Holdings Limited
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45. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 28 April 2015, the Group completed the acquisition
of the remaining 50% equity interest in the joint venture,
Smart Shine Industrial Limited (“Smart Shine”), for a cash
consideration of HKD22,900,000. The Directors considered
this acquisition as an acquisition of assets and liabilities
because Smart Shine did not constitute a business at the
acquisition date.

Upon completion of the acquisition, the Group’s 50%
interest in the joint venture already held was treated as being
disposed of at a fair value of HKD22,900,000 on the date of
acquisition. As a result, a fair value loss on remeasurement
of equity in a joint venture of approximately HKD20,000
was recognised and included in other expenses in of the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

An analysis of the net outflows of cash and cash equivalents
in respect of this acquisition was as follows:

#7RE B B R bt 51

For the year ended 31 December 2016
EZE2016F12A318ILFE

45. WESRt B 2 E]

201564280  NEBTRRBE L%
Smart Shine Industrial Limited ( [Smart Shine |)
82 TNB0% %1 - B B A22,900,0007% 7T ©
EERAZUBBRKBEERAEG
Smart ShineF U i% B Hi R B (E A %75

RUFETERR - ARERAERXEEHEL
50%# 7 1 18 2 5 Wi B 8 1A22,900,000
ATAFEEKRE -t EFFE—EE
105 2 B 2~ B (A 518 £920,00078 7T
EHERLIIAGE ZEWRER 2 EMA

Az EZRE KRR FEBY R IFR
DT

HKD’000
FHET

Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WHEEAXZREeMAFRE:
Cash consideration HEeRE 22,900
Bank balances and cash acquired T IR 1T IR & (33,054)
(10,154)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
B ZE2016F12A31AILFE

46. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

204

On 13 December 2016, the Company announced
the proposed acquisition of a 42% equity interest in
Giant Eagle Enterprises Limited (“Giant Eagle”) and
an application for whitewash waiver (together as the
“Proposed Acquisition”) whereby on 9 December
2016, Cosmo Group Holdings Limited, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (“Cosmo”),
and Goldsilk Capital Limited (“Goldsilk”), entered
into an agreement, pursuant to which Cosmo had
conditionally agreed to purchase and Goldsilk had
conditionally agreed to sell (i) the 42% of the issued
share capital of Giant Eagle, being an indirect
58%-owned subsidiary of the Company; and (i) the
entire debt owed by Giant Eagle group to Goldsilk
and any of its affiliates immediately before completion
on any account whatsoever and whether or not
due for payment at an aggregate consideration of
HK$215,300,000.

The consideration to be satisfied on completion was
made up as to (i) HK$15,300,000 in cash payable by
Cosmo to Goldsilk; and (i) HK$200,000,000 by the
allotment and issuance of 250,000,000 consideration
shares by the Company to Goldsilk or its nominee,
credited as fully paid, at the issue price of HK$0.80
per consideration share. Upon completion, Giant Eagle
would change to an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company.

As at 8 March 2017, the Proposed Acquisition was
fully completed. Details of the Proposed Acquisition are
disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 13
December 2016, 3 January 2017 and 8 March 2017
and circular dated 15 February 2017.

Symphony Holdings Limited
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46. HEHIEEIE

(a)

MR2016F12A138 KA A E M
i 3 W B Giant Eagle Enterprises
Limited ([Giant Eagle |) Z42%%
X RBFERRE(HBEIER
WhEEIE]) M R20165F12H9
H ' Cosmo Group Holdings Limited
(ApmlzBE2ENBRAR:
([Cosmo J) ) E2Goldsilk Capital
Limited ([ Goldsilk J ) T 37 3 5%
It - CosmoE B i A = B8
B il GoldsilkE & &R B &
(i) Giant Eagle (BDAN QR Z# A
58% Mt 2 B A F)) 242%E &
TTHEAN ;2 (ii) Giant Eaglese BN 2
1% 5T B A B AE AT BR B 45 R Goldsilk
REFMBEARZZHESM
THmeGE BN BRER
215,300,0007% JT ©

REENRTREIEZRATHR
YA (i)15,300,000% 7T &
CosmolAl Goldsilk AZR & 2 1+ &
(i1)200,000,0007% 7T B A&~ 7 &
ETEERRER7H0.80 LM
Goldsilksl H X & A BL 3 R EEITA
BR 51| VE 85 2 2. 250,000,0000% X &
B& 17 21 o FASERCES - Giant Eaglei
BREAQREEEZENB ARG -

W EER2017F3A8H &
K -BREWBEEZFER
BN TR HEA2016612A13
H- 201741838 K201743 A8
Az &R BER2017462H15
H 2B e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

46. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(CONTINUED)

(b)

On 24 January 2017, the Company announced
the acquisition of an 80% equity interest in Kingxin
International Investment Limited (“KX") (the “KX
Acquisition”) whereby on 15 December 2016, State
Key Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company (“State Key”), and Mr. Zeng Huan Huang,
the vendor (“KX Vendor”), entered into an agreement
(the “KX Agreement”), pursuant to which State Key
agreed to purchase, and the KX Vendor agreed to
sell, the KX shares, representing 80% of the issued
share capital of Kingxin, at a cash consideration
of RMB76,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$85,100,000). The principal asset of the Kingxin
group is a commercial property situated in Chongging,
the PRC and the principal liability of the Kingxin group
is the debt with principal amount of RMB200,000,000
owed by Chongging Yuntai Meijia Commercial
Operation Management Limited to a financial institution
which is a third party independent of the Company
and its connected persons as at the date of the KX
Agreement.

The KX Acquisition was completed on 12
January 2017 and Kingxin became an indirect
80%-owned subsidiary of the Company. Details of
the KX Acquisition are disclosed in the Company's
announcement dated 24 January 2017.

#7RE B B R bt 51

For the year ended 31 December 2016
EZE2016F12A318ILFE

46. REWREIE (§)

201718248 ANRQ RS i Ik B
cEEBREREBR AT ([2F])
S0%MEE (B WESE])  m
2016%F12A15H EIZ AR A A
(ARl EE2EWNBRAR ([H
E)REF([28EH]) g8
BEEFIUE([28HE]) &
- EEERERE mMedEH
ERELESERD (HERESE
BRITHRAZE0%) REAEARE
76,000,0007T (48 % 7 4985,100,000
BIL) N BHEEH eBEEY
TBEERURPEEEZEEY
¥ mMedSECTEBERAER
EXEBRBEELEREBERAA
BR—EBIRARTREBEEA
TrEZHEREE KeAARKE
200,000,000 2 f&7% °

T EWREEHEN2017F18128 %
K-MmeBEeK R~ AHERS
80%iEm B AR - BWEEE
ZHBHERARQR AR A201741
R4z & -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
B ZE2016F12A31AILFE

46. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(CONTINUED)

(c)

206

On 20 February 2017, Majestic City (Hong Kong)
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
successfully won the tender for the land located at
the north crossroad of Haixiang Avenue and Tianshui
Road, Jimei District, Xiamen, Fujian Province, the PRC
(the “Land”) and entered into a confirmation letter
with the Xiamen Land Bureau. The aggregate site
area of the Land is approximately 60,273 sqm, with a
maximum permissible gross floor area of approximately
54,800 sgm. The total consideration payable for
the acquisition is RMB302,703,000 (equivalent to
approximately HKD342,054,390), comprising: (i) the
price for the land use rights of the Land; (ii) related
land transaction taxes; and (iii) a performance bond
equivalent to 20% of the price of the Land. Details
of the acquisition of the land are disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 21 February 2017.

Symphony Holdings Limited
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46. HEMEEIE (&)

R2017F2R208 KRRl 22 &K
BATMY (B8)BRIFKINE
BAURPEEREEEMNMEXRES
AMREHERKERZX O AZ T
(lZztH])  WEEPIE T BEFK
REERE -2 T 2 BHIREEL A
60,273F 5K =T Al R EEEL
754,800 75 K o iZ W B FE A 2 4B 1K
B & AR#302,703,0007T (HERL
342,054,390 7T ) + BIE()Z T2
T FRREEE (DRt 225
Bk RiEENRZ THERERE®H
THBHORES - WEZ I
BIREN AR T BHA201742A21
=hvd/N-=



RESULTS

Revenue

Profit/(loss) before income
tax (expenses)/credit

Income tax
(expenses)/credit

Profit/(loss) for the year
from continuing
operations

Profit/(loss) for the year
from discontinued
operations, after tax

Profit/(loss) for the year

Profit/(loss) attributable to:
— Owners of the
Company
— Non-controlling
interests

E
n

ES

M

i3

RS H (F%),/
EeRTEN, (BR)
s (Ax)/ER

RERFERERBZ
FEREN,/ (BE)

RECKRIERE
EBEREN,/
(B1R) Btk

BN,/ (B])

FEEaF (BR)
—KREHEEA

—JF R

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE

Total assets
Total liabilities

Equity attributable to
owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

BEME
BfERE

UNNCIE 2N
L T
IR

Financial Summary

1512
Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31HILEE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FET FET FET FET FAET
(Restated)
(BEE7)
363,856 351,067 263,831 219,165 149,335
30,190 195,053 (30,531) (187,533) (175,869)
(16,145) (38,975) 2,133 2,079 (2,387)
14,045 156,078 (28,398) (185,454) (178,256)
- - 28,604 176,870 (46,090)
14,045 156,078 206 (8,584) (224,346)
27,746 180,822 19,095 15,454 (214,346)
(13,701) (24,744) (18,889) (24,038) (10,000)
14,045 156,078 206 (8,584) (224,346)
As at 31 December
12A31H8
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TFHET FET FET FHEL FHEL
3,395,176 3,724,613 3,488,416 2,965,602 3,021,107
(1,227,866) | (1,254,899) (1,076,673) (904,060)  (1,209,723)
2,167,310 2,469,714 2,411,743 2,061,542 1,811,384
2,177,817 2,319,135 2,188,227 1,788,849 1,491,488
(10,507) 150,579 223,516 272,693 319,896
2,167,310 2,469,714 2,411,743 2,061,542 1,811,384
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Particulars of Major Properties

FEZYEER

(A) PROPERTIES HELD AS PROPERTY, PLANT

AND EQUIPMENT

(A) FEBME FERRIEHME

Effective
% held
Location Lease term Area  Sitearea  Use BER
b 2h HEY mE WHREE RBE BRt=
(sq.ft.) (sq.m.)
Unit Nos. 1 to 10 on the B Medium 13,812 N/A Commercial 100
10/F of Island Place Tower, AR EES105% A3 (saleable) NNEA BE
No. 510 King's Road, BEKRNEIOR (ATSHE)
North Point, 121057 B
Hong Kong
Lot No. Shenbei 2008-050 HE AR Medium N/A 100,146  Commercial 100
North Puheda Road BELEGM A3 N iE [SES
Hushi Tai Development Zone,  RAASEERE
Shenyang, Liaoning Province, S A&t
PRC J%1£2008-050%%
Lots No. Shenbei (G) 2008-017 A 2= A R FFNE Medium N/A 45,166  Industrial 100
North Puheda Road, BERERET A T iE I
Hushi Tai Development Zone,  [RAAERER
Shenyang, Liaoning Province, S A&t
PRC %4k (G) 2008-0175%
Units 1 and 2 R AR Long 8,053.34 N/A Commercial 100
6/F Jiuge Business Centre EETELE & H (gross floor) S
No. 2301 Yi Shan Lu, 23015 jete
Shanghai, NI L
PRC GIE1R25R B AL
(B) PROPERTIES HELD AS INVESTMENT (B) nEAKREMENME
PROPERTIES
Effective
% held
Location Lease term Area Site area  Use BE
2L HER mE WHREE RB& BRt=
(sq.ft.) (sq.m.)
Unit Nos. 1 to 10 on the B Medium 13,812 N/A - Commercial 100
3/F of Island Place Tower, it A A3 (saleable) NNEA BE
No. 510 King's Road, 521851058 (FIHE)
North Point, BB AEIRE
Hong Kong 12105 &R
Portion B on 5/F, BB Medium 4,462 N/A  Industrial 100
No. 32 Hung To Road, NEEE R (saleable) TEA IE
Kwun Tong, JEEI7E325% (AI8H%E)
Kowloon SEBEH BiL
208 zympf;o;y Holdings Limited
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Particulars of Major Properties

TEMHESIKH
Effective
% held
Location Lease term Area Site area  Use BER
2L HEY mE hREE g BR=
(sq.ft.) (sq.m.)
Unit C, 2/F, B Long 4,345 N/A Industrial 100
Hop Ming Factory Building, e 3:5 (saleable) NER I
No. 8 On Yip Street, 7 185 (FISHE)
Chai Wan, EHIBKE
Hong Kong MECEL
Site No. 88, hEAREME Medium N/A 44,237  Commercial/ 58
North Puheda Road, FEEELEGT H AR TiE A Residential
Daoyi Development Zone, BT R mE/EE
Shenbei New District, BRERRER
Shenyang, Liaoning Province, & A&t
PRC 885% 1
Site No. 89 AR Medium N/A 55,101  Commercial 58
North Puheda Road, EEELEGT A TEA (SES
Daoyi Development Zone, B
Shenbei New District, BERER
Shenyang, Liaoning Province, &/ A&k
PRC 8O5E # 11
Site No. 124 i AR AME Long N/A 94,450  Commercial/ 58
North Puheda Road, BELEGT R @A Residential
Daoyi Development Zone, EAL TR EEYEES
Shenbei New District EBEEER
Shenyang, Liaoning Province, &/ AL
PRC 12457 1 358
12th, 14th, 16th and iE AR AFE Medium N/A 10,471  Commercial 100
18th Floors, Beijing Junefield ~ tRERE i TiE A [HES
Plaza, 10th Building, R FIINRHE6 8
Nos. 6, 8, 10, 12, 16, 18 1012 - 16185
Xuan Wu Men Outer Street 10571121416
Xuan Wu District, Beijing, PRC ~ M18/E
A site on West of Zhonghau I ARAFE Medium N/A 100,098  Commercial 57
Road, North of Anbao Main AEALGXER P TEA [EES
Road, South of Wenyi Street, EESHMER
at Baoliansi Zhen, Wenfeng LAFE - R B KB
District, Anyang, Henan SINSE X
Province, PRC ARz i
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Information to Stakeholders
il 73 B B4 & & 51

SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

Details of the Annual General Meeting are set out in the Notice of
Annual General Meeting to be despatched to Shareholders together
with a proxy form.

Date: Friday, 9 June 2017
Time: 10:00 a.m.
Venue: 10th Floor, Island Place Tower, 510 King's Road,

North Point, Hong Kong

ANNUAL REPORT

The Annual Report containing financial statements and notes to
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016
has been published on both the websites of the Company (www.
symphonyholdings.com) and the Stock Exchange (www.hkex.com.
hk).

REGISTERED OFFICE

Address: Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Address: 10th Floor, Island Place Tower, 510 King's Road,
North Point, Hong Kong
Email: info@symphonyholdings.com

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Name: Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited

Address: Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Name: Tricor Tengis Limited

Address: Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong

Telephone:  (852) 29801333

Facsimile: (852) 28108185

210 e e

BREXE

BRAFASERFABERRRZERRTET
BROBFBFREBEN -

HH: 20176 AOH EH R

fRE R 108 IE

B BEIAEEE51058
BAE10ME

FH

HAEHE2016F12A318 L FEHARRESE
WK R BREMTHFR  DRIARI R
wmECERTIHEBERE:

M2 - www.symphonyholdings.com

B 22 BT - www.hkex.com.hk

at i 3% 5 B2

Hidk : Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11 Bermuda

MMERERETETEERE,

ik - FE AL AR 2E51098 5 & K E106E
BH : info@symphonyholdings.com

FERGBRETE

#%8: Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda)
Limited

#ik . Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11 Bermuda
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B 5 (852) 29801333
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“Annual General Meeting”

[BERBAFERE ]

“Board”

[E=g)

“CG Code”
[{bZEEA~FAI]

“Company”

NG

“Director(s)”

[E%]

“Group”
[REE ]

“Hong Kong”
T

HHKDH
[7&7t]

“Listing Rules”

[ MR A

“PRC”
[

“RMB”
AR

GLOSSARY

50] &

the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday 9th June
2017 at 10:00 a.m. or any adjournment thereof
RATEIREETR2017F6 A0R 28R LT+ FARAMKREAF R RET

ES

the board of Directors of the Company

ARmEES

Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

ErR RIS E N B EER TR

Symphony Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda with limited
liability, the shares and warrants of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (Stock code: 1223 and Warrant code: 1537)
EEERRAR —HARBREFMK I BRAR  HRH RRRE
BB TR B (AR SR - 1223 R RARMERE R 5% 1537)

the director(s) of the Company
RARES

the Company and its subsidiaries

RRABREKBAF

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
H BB R AT R

Hong Kong dollar, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BT BEREERER

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

B 3 P RE 75 B AR A

The People’s Republic of China which, for the purpose of this announcement,
excludes Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, Macau Special
Administrative Region and Taiwan

REARKENE BtAAEMS  TEEEBFITHE SRPIFITHE

=/=

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

ARME - b B T



GLOSSARY
50l 7’

“Share(s)”
M%7 ]

“Shareholder(s)”
[ A% 2R

“Stock Exchange”
[ Es6 22 P |

“Warrant(s)”
[ RS ]

2 1 2 Symphony Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016

ordinary share(s) of HK$0.1 each in the share capital of the Company
RRBIERAPFREBEO.VET 2 BB

holder(s) of the issued share(s) of the Company
KRR ZBETROFEA

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEREBERXSMERRAA

the warrant(s) issued by the Company which carries(carry) the right to
subscribe for Share(s) at the subscription price of HK$1.00 per Share, subject
to adjustments

RNRARET2RBRES BN ENTRERERMN1.008 T 2 REE (7]
TIAR)RERG
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